
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA            

June 3, 2014 
6:30 P.M. 

 
6:30 PM BUSINESS MEETING 
 
Pledge of Allegiance  

Roll Call    

 
Electronic Attendance  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted by one 
motion. No separate discussion of these items will occur unless a Council Member requests the item to 
be removed from the Consent Agenda. If an item is removed from the Consent Agenda, it will be 
considered elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting.  Prior to asking for a motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda, the Mayor will ask if anyone desires to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for 
public discussion. 
 

1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting May 20, 2014 
 
2.  Bills and Payroll for the last half of May, 2014  

 
 PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address the Council. The 
Illinois Open Meetings Act mandates that the City Council may NOT take action on comments received 
on matters that have not been identified on this agenda, but the Council may direct staff to address the 
topic or refer the matter for action on the agenda for another meeting. Persons addressing the Council 
are requested to limit their presentations to three minutes and to avoid repetitious comments.  We 
would ask you to state your name for the record as well as stand when speaking. 
 
 Public comments/presentations and non-agenda items 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Motion - Adopt Resolution No. 2014-2916: Establishing the prevailing rate of wages in the 
Coles County Area as determined by the Illinois Department of Labor as the wages that 
must apply to public works of the City of Mattoon consistent with mandates of Illinois 
statute. (Graven) 

 
2. Motion - Adopt Resolution No. 2014-2917: Accepting a $25,000 grant from the Illinois 

Housing Development Authority’s Residential Property Municipal Relief Program.  (Gover) 
 



3. Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2014-1516: Approving a $6,200 grant by the 
Tourism Advisory Committee from hotel/motel tax funds to the Mattoon American Legion 
Post 88 for hosting the 2014 Firecracker Classic on June 23-29, 2014; and authorizing the 
Mayor to sign the agreement. (Hall) 

 
4. Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2014-1517: Approving a $4,000 grant by the 

Tourism Advisory Committee from hotel/motel tax funds to Mattoon Babe Ruth 
Organization for hosting the 12 & 15 year olds State Tourneys to be held July 10-13, 2014; 
and authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement. (Hall) 

 
5. Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2014-1518: Approving a $3,000 grant by the 

Tourism Advisory Committee from Bagelfest funds to the Mattoon YMCA for hosting the 
Run for the Bagel event on July 19, 2014; and authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement. 
(Hall) 

 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
 CITY ADMINISTRATOR/ COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 CITY ATTORNEY 
 CITY CLERK 
 FINANCE  
 PUBLIC WORKS 
 FIRE 
 POLICE 
 ARTS AND TOURISM 
 
COMMENTS BY THE COUNCIL 
 
Adjourn 



CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 
UNAPPROVED MINUTES: 
Regular Meeting – May 20, 2014 

The City Council of the City of Mattoon held a regular meeting in the City Hall Council 
Chambers on May 20, 2014. 
 

Mayor Gover presided and called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 Mayor Gover led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
 The following members of the Council answered roll call physically present: YEA 
Commissioner Dave Cox, YEA Commissioner Sandra Graven, YEA Commissioner Rick Hall, 
YEA Commissioner Preston Owen, and YEA Mayor Tim Gover.  
 
 Also physically present were City personnel:  City Administrator Kyle Gill, City 
Attorney Janett Winter-Black, Finance Director/Treasurer Beth Wright, Public Works Director 
Dean Barber, Fire Chief Tony Nichols, Police Chief Jeff Branson, and City Clerk Susan J. 
O’Brien.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Cox moved to approve the consent agenda 
consisting of minutes of the regular meeting May 6, 2014 and special meeting May 13, 2014; 
Fire department report for the month on March, 2014; bills and payroll for the first half of May, 
2014.  

  Bills and Payroll for the  
  first half of May, 2014  
   
  General Fund  

Payroll     $                              248,459.03 
Bills     $                                98,511.71 

   Total   $                              346,970.74 
  Hotel Tax Administration  

Payroll     $                                  2,681.24 
Bills    $                                     178.65 

   Total   $                                  2,859.89 
  Insurance & Tort Judgment 

Bills    $                                48,609.00 
   Total  $                                48,609.00 
  Capital Project Fund 

Bills     $                                  7,630.75 
   Total   $                                  7,630.75 
  Broadway E Bus Dist 

Bills     $                                  2,828.19 
   Total  $                                  2,828.19 
   



Water Fund 
Payroll     $                                34,000.42 
Bills     $                                32,908.28 

   Total   $                                66,908.70 
  Sewer Fund  

Payroll     $                                32,961.77 
Bills     $                              164,696.99 

   Total   $                              197,658.76 
  Heath Insurance Fund  

Bills     $                              132,027.68 
   Total  $                              132,027.68 
  Motor 

Fuel 
Bills     $                                11,668.38 

   Total  $                                11,668.38 
   

 
Mayor Gover opened the floor for comments/discussion which was followed with no 

response.   
 
Mayor Gover declared the motion to approve the consent agenda carried by the following 

vote:  YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.  

 
Mayor Gover opened the floor for Public questions or comments which was followed 

with no response.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Commissioner Owen seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to adopt Ordinance No. 
2014-5368, adopting an ordinance authorizing the issuance of general obligation refunding bonds 
(alternate revenue source), Series 2014, of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, providing 
the details of such bonds and for applicable alternate revenue sources and the levies of direct 
annual taxes sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such bonds, and related matters.  

 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-5368  
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF  
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 
(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2014, OF 
THE CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR 
APPLICABLE ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES AND 



THE LEVIES  OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES 
SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND 
INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, AND RELATED MATTERS 

  WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois (the “Issuer”), is a non-
home rule municipality duly established and operating under the Illinois Municipal Code 
(Section 5/1-1-1 et seq. of Chapter 65 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes and owns and operates a 
municipally-owned separate waterworks system (the “Waterworks System”) and separate 
sewerage system (the “Sewerage System”) in accordance with the provisions of as applicable 
Divisions 129 and 141 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code (Section 5/11-141-1 et seq. of 
Chapter 65 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes), as supplemented and amended, and is entitled to 
receive certain proceeds of State of Illinois income taxes (such distributive share referred to 
herein as the “Revenue Sharing Receipts”) imposed by the State of Illinois pursuant to the 
Income Tax Act and distributed pursuant to the State Revenue Sharing Act; and 

  WHEREAS, the Issuer has outstanding part of (collectively, the “Prior 
Obligations”, under applicable authorizing ordinances (as supplemented and amended, 
collectively, the “Prior Bond Ordinances” issued to finance related “Prior Projects”): (A) 
$4,210,000 initial principal amount General Obligation Bonds (Sewerage Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 2005A (to the extent to be refunded hereunder, the “2005A Obligations”), to 
finance certain sewerage system facilities, improvements and costs (the “2005A Project”); (B) 
$2,105,000 initial principal amount General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2005B (to the extent to be refunded hereunder, the “2005B Obligations”), to finance 
municipal building facilities, improvements and costs (collectively, the “2005B Project”); and 
(C) Loan Agreements (each a “Loan Agreement”) with the Illinois Environmental Protection 
Agency (“IEPA”) with respect to (collectively, the “IEPA Obligations”): (i) Water Project 
(“L17-1265 Project”) Loan No. L17-1265 (the “IEPA L17-1265 Obligations”); and (ii) 
Wastewater Projects: (x) (“L17-1737 Project”) Loan No. L17-1737 (the “IEPA L17-1737 
Obligation”); and (y) (“L17-1187 Project”) Loan No. L17-1187 (the “IEPA L17-1187 
Obligation”); and  

  WHEREAS, of the estimated cost to provide for refinancing certain Prior 
Projects by refunding all or part of the Prior Obligations (each a “Refunding”), and related 
legal, financial, bond discount, printing and publication costs, and other expenses in connection 
therewith, a sufficient amount is presently anticipated and planned to be paid from proceeds of 
the hereinafter described Bonds, and the Issuer presently has no funds available from existing or 
anticipated sources for such purposes; and 

  WHEREAS, the Issuer has insufficient funds to pay the costs of the Refunding of 
the Prior Obligations, and therefore, must borrow money and issue one or more series of bonds 
authorized under this ordinance, at one time or from time to time, in evidence thereof in the 
aggregate principal amounts as herein provided for such purposes; and 



  WHEREAS, through Speer Financial, Inc., Chicago, Illinois, as Financial 
Advisor (the “Financial Advisor”), pursuant to the offering of the Bonds (as defined in Section 
1) for placement and sale and the related Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary 
Official Statement”, which when supplemented and completed is to constitute a final “Official 
Statement”), the Issuer has determined to accept the Bond purchase agreement (which when 
executed and delivered to constitute a “Purchase Agreement”) as submitted by Bernardi 
Securities, Inc., Chicago, Illinois (the “Underwriter”), with respect to which the Issuer will 
execute a related Continuing Disclosure Certificate and Agreement (each a “Disclosure 
Agreement”) under Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“Rule 15c2-
12”) and will either fund an amount or amounts sufficient to refund Prior Obligations by direct 
payment or through paying or other fiscal agents for such Prior Obligations (as applicable, each a 
“Refunding Deposit”) or will fund an escrow, deposit or refunding account (as applicable, each 
a “Refunding Account”) under an escrow, deposit or refunding agreement (as applicable, each a 
“Refunding Agreement”) with a designated escrow, deposit or refunding  agent (as applicable, 
each a “Refunding Agent”), to refund Prior Obligations; and  

  WHEREAS, for convenience of reference only this ordinance is divided into 
numbered sections with headings, which shall not define or limit the provisions hereof, as 
follows: 

            Page 

Preambles  .......................................................................................................................... 1 

Section  1. Definitions........................................................................................................ 3 

Section  2. Preambles, Authority, and Purpose .................................................................. 8 

Section  3. Authorization and Terms of Bonds .................................................................. 8 

Section  4. Registration of Bonds and Book-Entry .......................................................... 11 

Section  5. Execution and Authentication ........................................................................ 14 

Section  6. Transfer, Exchange and Registration ............................................................. 14 

Section  7. Bond Registrar and Paying Agent .................................................................. 15 

Section  8. Alternate Bonds; General Obligations ........................................................... 16 

Section  9. Forms of Bonds .............................................................................................. 17 

Section 10. Levy and Extension of Taxes ......................................................................... 23 

Section 11. Related Agreements ....................................................................................... 24 

Section 12. Special Funds and Accounts .......................................................................... 25 



Section 13. Bond Proceeds Account ................................................................................. 37 

Section 14. Issuance of Additional Bonds ........................................................................ 38 

Section 15. Arbitrage Rebate ............................................................................................ 39 

Section 16. Investment Regulations .................................................................................. 39 

Section 17. Non-Arbitrage and Tax-Exemption ............................................................... 40 

Section 18. Further Assurances and Actions .................................................................... 44 

Section 19. General Covenants ......................................................................................... 45 

Section 20. Ordinance to Constitute a Contract ................................................................ 48 

Section 21. Severability and No Contest .......................................................................... 48 

Section 22. Bank Qualified Bonds .................................................................................... 48 

Section 23. Conflict .......................................................................................................... 48 

Section 24. Effective Date ................................................................................................ 49 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 

  Section 1.  Definitions.  (a) Certain words and terms used in this ordinance shall 
have the meanings given them herein, including above in the preambles hereto, and the meanings 
given them in this Section 1, unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different 
meaning is intended.  Certain definitions are as follows: 

  “Act” means, collectively and as applicable, the Local Government Debt Reform 
Act (Section 350/1 et seq. of Chapter 30 (and particularly Section 350/15 thereof concerning 
alternate bonds) of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, as supplemented and amended, and Division 
141 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code (Sections 5/11-141-1 et seq. of Chapter 65 of the 
Illinois Compiled Statutes), the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/1-1-1 et seq.), and applicable 
law in connection with the pledged revenue source, as supplemented and amended, including, 
without limitation, by the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act [5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.], Section 10 
(Intergovernmental Cooperation) of Article VII (Local Government) of the Constitution of the 
State of Illinois, the Registered Bond Act, the Illinois Bond Replacement Act and the Bond 
Authorization Act. 



  “Alternate Bonds” means “alternate bonds” as described in Section 15 of the 
Local Government Debt Reform Act (Section 350/15 of Chapter 30 of the Illinois Compiled 
Statutes), and includes expressly the Bonds. 

  “Applicable Percentage Limit” means, as applicable to each maturity of Bonds, 
the limit on the percentage of debt service which the Issuer is authorized to pay from applicable 
Enterprise Revenues. 

  “Arbitrage Regulation Agreement” means the Arbitrage Regulation Agreement 
in connection with, among other things, arbitrage rebate and/or Yield Reduction Payments for 
the Bonds. 

  “BDSF” or “bona fide debt service fund” means a fund, which may include 
proceeds of an issue, that (1) is used to primarily to achieve a proper matching of revenues with 
principal and interest payments, within each bond year (i.e. each January 2 to January 1 annual 
period); and (2) is depleted at least once each bond year, except for a reasonable carryover 
amount not to exceed the greater of: (i) the earnings on the fund for the immediately preceding 
bond year; or (ii) one-twelfth of the principal and interest payments on the issue for the 
immediately preceding bond year. 

  “Bond” or “Bonds” means, as issued at one time or from time to time, 
collectively, the Issuer’s Series 2014 Bonds, in each case as authorized to be issued by this 
ordinance, as supplemented and amended. 

  “Bond Order” means one or more certificates signed by the Mayor, and attested 
by the City Clerk and under the seal of the Issuer, setting forth and specifying details of and 
related to the Bonds, including, but without limitation, identification or specification of a Policy 
and an Insurer, book-entry only registration, payment dates, final interest rates, final maturity 
schedules, Senior and/or Junior Bond designation, series designation, denomination, Applicable 
Percentage Limits, Pledged Revenues, Pledged Taxes, optional and mandatory redemption 
provisions, conditional call provisions, status as “qualified tax-exempt obligations,” original 
issue discount (“OID”) and/or reoffering premium, designation of the Bond Registrar, Paying 
Agent, other fiscal agent, and, as applicable, a Refunding Agent under a Refunding Agreement, 
specification of particular Prior Obligations (including maturities thereof) to be subject to 
Refunding, subject to not exceeding the specified aggregate principal amount for the Bonds or 
any increase in the aggregate taxes levied or authorized in each year in Section 10 as Pledged 
Taxes, Refunding Investments or Refunding Securities, which may or may not effect a legal 
defeasance, with respect to any Refunding, and identification of particular Prior Obligations to 
be refunded. 

  “Bond Year” means each annual period of December 16 to the next December 
15, for the Bonds, subject to such lawful elections as the Issuer may make. 



  “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and includes 
related and applicable Income Tax Regulations promulgated by the Treasury Department. 

  “Corporate Authorities” means the Issuer’s City Council. 

  “Depository” means a securities depository with respect to Bonds subject to 
global book entry registration, initially The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, 
New York. 

  “Disclosure Agreement” means the Issuer’s Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
and Agreements under Rule 15c2-12 related to the Bonds. 

  “Enterprise Revenues”, securing and paying the Bonds, subject to an Applicable 
Percentage Limit on debt service for each maturity of Bonds, means Net Revenues of the 
applicable System. 

  “Fiscal Year” means the twelve-month period constituting the Issuer’s fiscal 
year, not inconsistent with applicable law. 

  “Gross Revenues” means all income from whatever source derived from each 
applicable System, including: (i) user charges, fees, rates and other receipts (including revenues 
for use of the System facilities to be received by the Issuer); (ii) investment income; (iii) 
connection, permit and inspection fees and the like; and (iv) penalties and delinquency charges, 
but excluding expressly (a) nonrecurring income from the sale of real estate; (b) governmental or 
other grants; (c) advances or grants made to or from the Issuer; (d) capital development, 
reimbursement, or recovery charges and the like; (e) annexation or preannexation charges; and 
(f) as otherwise determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local 
government funds. 

  “IEPA Obligations”, “IEPA L17-1265 Obligations”, “L17-1187 Obligations” 
and “IEPA L17-1737 Obligations” each shall have the meaning above in the recitals in the 
preamble to this ordinance. 

  “Insurer” means, if any, the issuer of a Policy securing payment of one or more 
series of Bonds. 

  “Issuer” means the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 

  “Junior Bond” means any Outstanding bond or Outstanding bonds payable from 
the Junior Debt Service Account of the Bond and Interest Account under this ordinance. 

  “L17-1265 Project” and “L17-1737 Project” each shall have the meaning in the 
recitals in the preamble to this ordinance. 



  “Net Revenues” means, with respect to each System, Gross Revenues minus 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses. 

  “Net Revenues Subaccount” shall have the meaning in Section 12. 

  “Operation and Maintenance Expenses” means all expenses of operating, 
maintaining and routine repair of each applicable System, including wages, salaries, costs of 
materials and supplies, power, fuel, insurance and related services; but excluding debt service, 
depreciation, or any reserve requirements, and otherwise as determined in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles for local government enterprise funds. 

  “Outstanding”, when used with reference to any referenced obligation, means 
any referenced obligation which is outstanding and unpaid; provided, however, such term shall 
not include obligations:  (i) which have matured and for which moneys are on deposit with 
proper paying agents, or are otherwise properly available, sufficient to pay all principal and 
interest thereof, or (ii) the provision for payment of which has been made by the Issuer by the 
deposit in an irrevocable trust or escrow of funds of direct, full faith and credit non-callable 
obligations of the United States of America, the principal and interest of which will be sufficient 
to pay at maturity or as called for redemption all the principal of and applicable premium on such 
obligations, and will not result in the loss of the exclusion from gross income of the interest 
thereon under Section 103 of the Code. 

  “Parity Bonds” means bonds or any other obligations which share ratably and 
equally in the Pledged Revenues with either the Senior Bonds or the Junior Bonds, as set forth 
and provided for in any such ordinance authorizing the issuance of any such Parity Bonds. 

  “Pledged Revenues” means, subject to the limitation as to the Applicable 
Percentage Limit of debt service for each maturity of the Bonds, constituting “enterprise 
revenues” Revenue Sharing Receipts constituting a “revenue source”, under the Local 
Government Debt Reform Act. 

  “Pledged Taxes” means the general property taxes authorized to be levied in 
Section 10, and specified in an applicable Bond Order, to secure and pay the Bonds. 

  “Pledged Taxes Subaccount” shall have the meaning in Section 12. 

  “Policy” means, if any, an Insurer’s bond insurance policy or other credit facility 
securing payment of one or more series of Bonds. 

  “Prior Obligations” means, collectively, the IEPA Obligations, the 2005A 
Obligations and 2005B Obligations to be refunded under this ordinance. 

  “Prior Bond Ordinances” shall have the meaning above in the recitals in the 
preamble to this ordinance. 



  “Prior Projects” means, collectively, the L17-1265 Project, L17-1737 Project, 
2005A Project, and 2005B Project, each as reference in the recitals in the preamble to this 
ordinance. 

  “Purchase Agreement” means the Bond purchase agreement with the 
Underwriter for the purchase of Bonds, which upon acceptance and execution by the Issuer and 
the Underwriter constitutes the Purchase Agreement for the Bonds. 

  “Qualified Investments” means legal investments of the Issuer under applicable 
law, limited and restricted with respect to any applicable Insurer’s Policy. 

  “Refunding”, “Refunding Account”, “Refunding Agent”, “Refunding 
Agreement” and “Refunding Deposit” each shall have the meaning above in the recitals in the 
preamble to this ordinance, as applicable to each Refunding. 

  “Refunding Investments” or “Refunding Securities” means the investments 
funding the Refunding Account with respect to the Refunding of Prior Obligations, which 
Refunding Investments or Refunding Securities, as applicable, may result in an economic or 
legal defeasance of Prior Obligations to which they relate. 

  “Revenue Fund” means the Revenue Fund created and established under Section 
12 of this ordinance with respect to the Bonds. 

  “Revenue Sharing Receipts” shall have the meaning above in the recitals in the 
preamble to this ordinance. 

  “Revenue Source” means Revenue Sharing Receipts. 

  “Rule 15c2-12” means Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(“SEC”). 

  “Senior Bond” means any Outstanding bond or Outstanding bonds payable from 
the Senior Debt Service Account of the Bond and Interest Account. 

  “Series 2014 Bonds” or “Series 2014” each means the Issuer’s General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014, issued under this 
ordinance. 

  “Sewerage Fund” means the Issuer’s Sewerage Fund, as continued or created 
and established, as the case may be, with respect to applicable Prior Obligations. 

  “Sewerage System” shall have the meaning above in the recitals in the preamble 
to this ordinance. 

  “Systems”, as applicable, shall mean the Waterworks System and/or Sewerage 
System above in the recitals in the preamble to this ordinance. 



  “2005A Obligations” and “2005B Obligations” each shall have the meaning 
above in the recitals in the preamble to this ordinance. 

  “2005A Project” means Sewerage System facilities, improvements and costs, to 
be refinanced with proceeds of the Bonds. 

   “2005B Project” means municipal building facilities, improvements and costs, 
to be refinanced with proceeds of the Bonds. 

  “Underwriter” means Bernardi Securities, Inc., Chicago, Illinois, the underwriter 
in connection with the Bonds, identified in the recitals in the preamble to this ordinance. 

  “Waterworks Fund” means the Issuer’s Waterworks Fund, as continued or 
created and established, as the case may be, with respect to applicable Prior Obligations. 

  “Waterworks System” shall have the meaning above in the recitals in the 
preamble to this ordinance. 

  “Yield” or “yield” means yield computed under Section 1.148-4 of the Income 
Tax Regulations for the Bonds, and yield computed under Section 1.148-5 of the Income Tax 
Regulations for an investment. 

  “Yield Reduction Payments” or “yield reduction payments” shall have the 
meaning in Income Tax Regulations Section s1.148-5(c). 

  “Yield Restricted” or “yield restricted” with reference to an obligation means 
that the yield thereon is limited to the yield on the Bonds. 

  (b)  As used in this ordinance words and terms, defined and not defined, may be 
prefaced by references to “IEPA”, “L17-1265”, “L17-1737”, “L17-1187”, “2005A” and 
“2005B”, “Sewerage” and “Waterworks”, to further define the reference to applicable words 
and terms with respect to related Prior Obligations, Prior Projects and Systems. 

  Section 2.  Preambles, Authority and Purpose.  The Corporate Authorities 
hereby find that all the recitals contained in the preambles and recitals to this ordinance are true, 
complete and correct, and hereby incorporate them into this ordinance by this reference thereto.  
This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the Constitution and applicable laws of the State of 
Illinois, including the Act, for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the costs of refunding 
Prior Bonds, and costs of issuance of the Bonds.  The Corporate Authorities hereby determine 
the remaining period of usefulness of each Prior Project to be not less than twenty (20) years 
from the expected date of delivery of the Bonds.   

  Section 3.  Authorization and Terms of Bonds.  To meet all or a part of the 
estimated costs of refinancing the Prior Projects and the Refunding of Prior Obligations, there is 
hereby allocated the applicable sum to be derived from the proceeds of the Bonds.  For the 
purpose of financing such allocation, Bonds of the Issuer shall be issued and sold at one time or 



from time to time in the aggregate principal amount authorized herein, as follows: General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014 ($9,500,000 maximum 
aggregate principal amount), and shall be issuable in the denominations of $5,000 each or any 
authorized integral multiple thereof. 

  (a) General Terms.  The Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from 1 
upwards in order of their issuance and may bear such identifying numbers or letters as shall be 
useful to facilitate the registration, transfer and exchange of the Bonds.  Unless otherwise 
determined in an order to authenticate the Bonds, the Bonds shall be dated as of or before the 
date or dates of the issuance and sale thereof and acceptable to the Underwriter.  Subject to a 
Bond Order, the Bonds are hereby authorized to bear interest at the rate or rates percent per 
annum not exceeding 6.00% and shall mature on December 15 of the years (subject to 
redemption, as the case may be), and in the principal amount in each year, commencing not 
before the year 2015 and ending not later than the year 2024 as shall be specified in an applicable 
Bond Order. 

  Each Bond shall bear interest from its date, or from the most recent interest 
payment date to which interest has been paid, computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting 
of twelve 30-day months, and payable in lawful money of the United States of America 
semiannually on each June 15 and December 15, commencing on or after December 15, 2014, at 
the rate or rates percent per annum herein authorized.  The principal of and premium, if any, on 
the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation 
and surrender thereof at the designated payment office of the financial institution authorized to 
be designated in this ordinance to act as the Paying Agent for the Bonds (including its 
successors, the “Paying Agent”).  Interest on the Bonds shall be payable on each interest 
payment date to the registered owners of record appearing on the registration books maintained 
by the financial institution authorized to be designated in this ordinance to act as the Bond 
Registrar on behalf of the Issuer for such purpose (including its successors, the “Bond 
Registrar”), at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar as of the close of 
business on the last day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next preceding the 
applicable interest payment date.  Interest on the Bonds shall be paid by check or draft on, as 
applicable, receipts of Pledged Revenues and Pledged Taxes (or other funds) mailed or otherwise 
transmitted by the Paying Agent to such registered owners at their addresses appearing on the 
registration books. 

  (b) Redemption.  The Bonds are subject to redemption, if at all, as follows: 

   (i) Optional Redemption.  Bonds maturing on and after December 
15 as specified in an applicable Bond Order shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on 
any date on December 15 of the year or years specified and thereafter in whole or in part on any 
date, in the principal amount from such maturities or in any order of maturity specified (but in 



inverse order if none is specified), at a redemption price of par, plus accrued interest to the date 
fixed for redemption, and otherwise are not subject to optional redemption. 

(ii) Sinking Fund Redemption.  This subsection (b) shall apply only 
to the extent an applicable Bond Order shall specify any Term Bonds (as applicable to a 
particular series, the “Term Bonds”), and otherwise shall not apply.  Bonds so specified as Term 
Bonds, if any, are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in the principal amount on 
January 1 of the years so specified, but corresponding to the amounts specified above in Section 
3(a), or otherwise as duly set forth in a Bond Order. 

  At its option before the 45th day (or such lesser time acceptable to the Bond 
Registrar) next preceding any mandatory sinking fund redemption date in connection with Term 
Bonds the Issuer by furnishing the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent an appropriate 
certificate of direction and authorization executed by the Mayor or City Treasurer may:  (i) 
deliver to the Bond Registrar for cancellation Term Bonds in any authorized aggregate principal 
amount desired; or (ii) furnish the Paying Agent funds for the purpose of purchasing any of such 
Term Bonds as arranged by the Issuer; or (iii) receive a credit (not previously given) with respect 
to the mandatory sinking fund redemption obligation for such Term Bonds which prior to such 
date have been redeemed and cancelled.  Each such Bond so delivered, previously purchased or 
redeemed shall be credited at 100% of the principal amount thereof, and any excess shall be 
credited with regard to future mandatory sinking fund redemption obligations for such Bonds in 
chronological order, and the principal amount of Bonds to be so redeemed as provided shall be 
accordingly reduced.  In the event Bonds being so redeemed are in a denomination greater than 
$5,000, a portion of such Bonds may be so redeemed, but such portion shall be in the principal 
amount of $5,000 or any authorized integral multiple thereof. 

(iii) Procedure.  The Issuer covenants that it will redeem Bonds 
pursuant to the redemption provisions applicable to such Bonds.  Proper provision for 
redemption having been made, the Issuer covenants that the Bonds so selected for redemption 
shall be payable as at maturity. 

  The Issuer shall, at least 45 days prior to an optional redemption date (unless a 
shorter time shall be satisfactory to the Bond Registrar), notify the Bond Registrar of any 
optional redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed (no such notice 
shall be required in the case of any mandatory sinking fund redemption of Term Bonds).  In the 
event that less than all of the Bonds of a particular series or maturity are called for redemption as 
aforesaid, as necessary, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be 
selected not more than sixty (60) days or less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date 
by the Bond Registrar by such method as the Bond Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate; 
provided, that such lottery shall provide for the selection for redemption of Bonds or portions 
thereof so that any $5,000 Bond or $5,000 portion of a Bond shall be as likely to be called for 
redemption as any other such $5,000 Bond or $5,000 portion.  The Bond Registrar shall 



promptly notify the Issuer in writing of the Bonds or portions of Bonds selected for redemption 
and, in the case of any Bond selected for partial redemption, the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed. 

  Unless waived by the registered owner of Bonds to be redeemed, presentment for 
payment being conclusively such a waiver, notice of any such redemption shall be given by the 
Bond Registrar on behalf of the Issuer by mailing the redemption notice by first class mail not 
less than thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption 
to each registered owner of the Bond or Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond 
Register or at such other address as is furnished in writing by each such registered owner to the 
Bond Registrar. 

  All notices of redemption shall include at least the information as follows: (1) the 
identification of the particular Bonds to be redeemed; (2) the redemption date; (3) the redemption 
price; (4) if less than all of the Bonds of a particular maturity are to be redeemed, the 
identification numbers and maturities (and, in the case of partial redemption of any Bond, the 
respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be redeemed; (5) a statement that on the 
redemption date the redemption price will become due and payable upon each such Bond or 
portion thereof called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and 
after such date; and (6) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the 
redemption price, which place of payment shall be the principal payment office of the Paying 
Agent. 

  On or prior to any redemption date, the Issuer shall deposit with the Paying Agent 
an amount of money sufficient to pay the redemption price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds 
which are to be redeemed on that date. 

  Notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of 
Bonds so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the 
redemption price therein specified, together with accrued interest, and from and after such date 
(unless the Issuer shall default in the payment of the redemption price) such Bonds or portions of 
Bonds shall cease to bear interest.  Neither the failure to mail such redemption notice nor any 
defect in any notice so mailed to any particular registered owner of a Bond shall affect the 
sufficiency of such notice with respect to any other registered owner.  Notice having been 
properly given, failure of a registered owner of a Bond to receive such notice shall not be 
deemed to invalidate, limit or delay the effect of the notice or the redemption action described in 
the notice.  Such notice may be waived in writing by a registered owner of a Bond, either before 
or after the event, and such waiver shall be the equivalent of such notice.  Waivers of notice shall 
be filed with the Bond Registrar, but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the validity 
of any action taken in reliance upon such waiver.   



  Upon surrender of such Bonds for redemption in accordance with such notice, 
such Bonds shall be paid from available funds therefor by the Paying Agent at the redemption 
price.  Interest due on or prior to the redemption date shall be payable as herein provided for 
payment of interest.  Upon surrender for the partial redemption of any Bond, there shall be 
prepared for the registered owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same maturity in the amount of 
the unpaid principal. 

  If any Bond or portion of Bond called for redemption shall not be so paid upon 
surrender thereof for redemption, the principal, and premium, if any, shall, until paid, bear 
interest from the redemption date at the rate borne by the Bond or portion of Bond so called for 
redemption.  All Bonds which have been redeemed shall be marked cancelled by the Bond 
Registrar and shall not be reissued. 

  In addition to the foregoing notice set forth above, further notice shall be given by 
the Bond Registrar on behalf of the Issuer as set out below, but no defect in such further notice 
nor any failure to give all or any portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the 
effectiveness of a call for redemption if notice thereof is given as above prescribed.  Each further 
notice of redemption given hereunder shall contain the information required above for an official 
notice of redemption plus (a) the CUSIP numbers of all Bonds being redeemed; (b) the date of 
issue of the Bonds as originally issued; (c) the rate of interest borne by each Bond being 
redeemed; (d) the maturity date of each Bond being redeemed; and (e) any series or other 
descriptive information needed to identify accurately the Bonds being redeemed. 

  Each further notice of redemption shall be sent at least thirty (30) days before the 
redemption date to all registered securities depositories then holding any Bonds. 

  Upon the payment of the redemption price of Bonds being redeemed, each check 
or other transfer of funds issued for such purpose shall identify the series and the Bond or Bonds, 
or portion thereof, being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

  Section 4. Registration of Bonds and Book-Entry.  The Bonds shall be 
negotiable, subject to the provisions for registration of transfer contained herein and related to 
book-entry only registration. 

  (a) General  This subsection (a) is subject to the provisions of subsection (b) 
concerning book-entry only provisions.  The Issuer shall cause books (the “Bond Register”) for 
the registration and for the transfer of the Bonds as provided in this ordinance to be kept at the 
principal payment office of the Bond Registrar, which is hereby constituted and appointed the 
Bond Registrar of the Issuer.  The Issuer is authorized to prepare, and the Bond Registrar shall 
keep custody of, multiple Bond blanks executed by the Issuer for use in the issuance from time to 
time of the Bonds and in the transfer and exchange of Bonds. 



  Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the designated corporate trust office of 
the Bond Registrar, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of 
transfer in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar and duly executed by the registered owner or 
such owners attorney duly authorized in writing, the Issuer shall execute and the Bond Registrar 
shall authenticate, date and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new fully 
registered Bond or Bonds of the same series and maturity of authorized denominations, for a like 
aggregate principal amount.  Any fully registered Bond or Bonds may be exchanged at the office 
of the Bond Registrar for a like aggregate principal amount of Bond or Bonds of the same series 
and maturity of other authorized denominations.  The execution by the Issuer of any fully 
registered Bond shall constitute full and due authorization of such Bond, and the Bond Registrar 
shall thereby be authorized to authenticate, date and deliver such Bond. 

  The Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange any Bond during 
the period from the fifteenth (15th) day of the calendar month next preceding any interest 
payment date on such Bond and ending on such interest payment date, nor, as applicable, to 
transfer or exchange any Bond after notice calling such Bond for prepayment has been mailed, 
nor during a period of fifteen (15) days next preceding mailing of a notice of prepayment and 
redemption of any Bond. 

  The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered on the Bond Register 
shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of the 
principal of, premium (if any) or interest on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of 
the registered owner thereof or such registered owners legal representative.  All such payments 
shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of 
the sum or sums so paid. 

  No service charge shall be made for any transfer or exchange of Bonds, but the 
Issuer or the Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other 
governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with any transfer or exchange of Bonds 
exchanged in the case of the issuance of a Bond or Bonds for the outstanding portion of a Bond 
surrendered for redemption.  In the event any registered owner fails to provide a correct taxpayer 
identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a charge against such 
registered owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of such 
failure.  In compliance with Section 3406 of the Code, such amount may be deducted by the 
Paying Agent from amounts otherwise payable to such registered owner hereunder or under the 
Bonds. 

  The Mayor or City Treasurer may, in his or her discretion at any time, designate a 
bank with trust powers or trust company, duly authorized to do business as a bond registrar, 
paying agent, or both, to act in one or both such capacities hereunder, in the event the Mayor or 
City Treasurer shall determine it to be advisable.  Notice shall be given to the registered owners 
of any such designation in the same manner, as near as may be practicable, as for a notice of 



redemption of Bonds, and as if the date of such successor taking up its duties were the 
redemption date. 

  (b) Book-Entry-Only Provisions. Unless otherwise provided in a Bond Order, as 
the case may be, the Bonds shall be issued in the form of a separate single fully registered Bond 
of each series for each of the maturities of the Bonds.  Upon initial issuance, the ownership of 
each such Bond shall be registered in the Bond Register therefor in a street name (initially “Cede 
& Co.” for DTC) of the Depository, or any successor thereto, as nominee of the Depository.  
The outstanding Bonds from time to time may be registered by the Bond Register in a street 
name, as nominee of the Depository.  The Issuer’s  Mayor or City Treasurer is authorized to 
execute and deliver on behalf of the Issuer such letters to or agreements with the Depository as 
shall be necessary to effectuate such book-entry system (any such letter or agreement being 
referred to herein as the “Representation Letter”).  Without limiting the generality of the 
authority given to the Mayor or City Treasurer with respect to entering into such Representation 
Letter, it may contain provisions relating to, among other things, (a) payment procedures, (b) 
transfers of the Bonds or of beneficial interest therein, (c) redemption notices and procedures 
unique to the Depository, (d) additional notices or communications, and (e) amendment from 
time to time to conform with changing customs and practices with respect to securities industry 
transfer and payment practices. 

  With respect to Bonds registered in the Bond Register in the name of a nominee 
of the Depository, the Issuer and the Bond Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to 
any broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the Depository holds Bonds from 
time to time as securities depository (each such broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution 
being referred to herein as a “Depository Participant”) or to any person on behalf of whom 
such a Depository Participant or an Indirect Participant holds an interest in the Bonds (an 
“indirect participant” or a “beneficial owner”).  Without limiting the meaning of the 
foregoing, the Issuer and the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or 
obligation with respect to (a) the accuracy of the records of the Depository, the nominee, or any 
Depository Participant, Indirect Participant or Beneficial Owner, with respect to any ownership 
interest in the Bonds, (b) the delivery to any Depository Participant or any other person, other 
than a registered owner of a Bond as shown in the Bond Register, of any notice with respect to 
the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (c) the payment to any Depository Participant 
or any other person, other than a registered owner of a Bond as shown in the Bond Register, of 
any amount with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds. 

  As long as the Bonds are held in a book-entry-only system, no person other than 
the nominee of the Depository, or any successor thereto, as nominee for the Depository, shall 
receive a Bond certificate with respect to any Bonds.  Upon delivery by the Depository to the 
Bond Registrar of written notice to the effect that the Depository has determined to substitute a 
new nominee in place of the prior nominee, and subject to the provisions hereof with respect to 
the payment of interest to the registered owners of Bonds as of the close of business on the 



fifteenth (15th) day (whether or not a business day) of the month next preceding the applicable 
interest payment date, the reference herein to nominee in this ordinance shall refer to such new 
nominee of the Depository. 

  In the event that (a) the Issuer determines that the Depository is incapable of 
discharging its responsibilities described herein and in the Representation Letter, (b) the 
agreement among the Issuer, the Bond Registrar, the Paying Agent and the Depository evidenced 
by the Representation Letter shall be terminated for any reason or (c) the Issuer determines that it 
is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain 
certificated Bonds, the Issuer shall notify the Depository and the Depository Participants of the 
availability of Bond certificates, and the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in 
the Bond Register in the name of a nominee of the Depository.  At that time, the Issuer may 
determine that the Bonds shall be registered in the name of and deposited with a successor 
depository operating a book-entry system, as may be acceptable to the Issuer, or such 
depository’s agent or designee, and if the Issuer does not select such alternate book-entry system, 
then the Bonds may be registered in whatever name or names registered owners of Bonds 
transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions hereof.  
Notwithstanding any other provision of this ordinance to the contrary, so long as any Bond is 
registered in the name of a nominee of the Depository, all payments with respect to principal of 
and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such Bond shall be made and given, 
respectively, in the manner provided in the Representation Letter. 

  Section 5.  Execution and Authentication.  Each Bond shall be executed in the 
name of the Issuer by the manual or authorized facsimile signature of its Mayor and the 
corporate seal of the Issuer, or a facsimile thereof, shall be thereunto affixed, impressed or 
otherwise reproduced or placed thereon and attested by the manual or authorized facsimile 
signature of its City Clerk.  Temporary Bonds, in lieu of or preliminary to the availability of 
Bonds in definitive form, shall be and are hereby authorized and approved.  Typewritten Bonds 
are authorized in the event Section 4(b) applies. 

  In case any officer whose signature, or a facsimile of whose signature, shall 
appear on any Bond shall cease to hold such office before the issuance of such Bond, such Bond 
shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if the person whose 
signature, or a facsimile thereof, appears on such Bond had not ceased to hold such office.  Any 
Bond may be signed, sealed or attested on behalf of the Issuer by any person who, on the date of 
such act, shall hold the proper office, notwithstanding that at the date of such Bond such person 
may not hold such office.  No recourse shall be had for the payment of any Bonds against any 
member of the Corporate Authorities or any officer or employee of the Issuer (past, present or 
future) who executes the Bonds, or on any other basis. 

  Each Bond shall bear thereon a certificate of authentication executed manually by 
the Bond Registrar.  No Bond shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this ordinance or 



shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose until such certificate of authentication shall have 
been duly executed by the Bond Registrar.  Such certificate of authentication shall have been 
duly executed by the Bond Registrar by manual signature, and such certificate of authentication 
upon any such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been authenticated and 
delivered under this ordinance.  The certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to 
have been executed by the Bond Registrar if signed by an authorized officer of or signer for the 
Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same signer or officer sign the certificate of 
authentication on all of the Bonds issued hereunder. 

  Section 6.  Transfer, Exchange and Registration.  Each Bond shall be 
transferable only upon the registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the 
Issuer for that purpose at the designated office of the Bond Registrar, by the registered owner 
thereof in person or by such registered owners attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender 
thereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar and duly 
executed by the registered owner or such registered owners duly authorized attorney.  Upon the 
surrender for transfer of any such Bond, the Issuer shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall 
authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds registered in the name of the transferee of the 
same aggregate principal amount, maturity and interest rate as the surrendered Bond.  Bonds, 
upon surrender thereof at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, with a written instrument 
satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner or such registered 
owners attorney duly authorized in writing, may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal 
amount of Bonds of the same maturity and interest rate and of the denomination of $5,000 or any 
authorized integral multiple thereof, less previous retirements. 

  For every such exchange or registration of transfer of Bonds, the Issuer or the 
Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other 
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or 
sums shall be paid by the person requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to 
the exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer.  No other charge shall be made 
for the privilege of making such transfer or exchange.  The provisions of the Illinois Bond 
Replacement Act shall govern the replacement of lost, destroyed or defaced Bonds. 

  The Issuer, the Paying Agent and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat the 
person in whose name any Bond shall be registered upon the registration books as the absolute 
owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving 
payment of, or on account of, the principal of, premium, if any, or interest thereon and for all 
other purposes whatsoever, and all such payments so made to any such registered owner or upon 
such registered owners order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability 
upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer nor the Paying 
Agent or the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. 



  Section 7.  Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.  The Bond Registrar and Paying 
Agent with respect to this ordinance and the Bonds shall be designated in an applicable Bond 
Order.  The Issuer covenants that it shall at all times retain a Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
with respect to the Bonds and shall cause to be maintained at the office of such Bond Registrar a 
place where Bonds may be presented for registration of transfer or exchange, that it will maintain 
at the designated payment office of the Paying Agent a place where Bonds may be presented for 
payment, that it shall require that the Bond Registrar maintain proper registration books and that 
it shall require the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent to perform the other duties and obligations 
imposed upon each of them by this ordinance in a manner consistent with the standards, customs 
and practices concerning municipal securities.  The Issuer may enter into appropriate agreements 
with any Bond Registrar and any Paying Agent in connection with the foregoing, including as 
follows: 

 (a) to act as Bond Registrar, authenticating agent, Paying Agent and transfer 
agent as provided herein; 

 (b) to maintain a list in the Bond Register of the registered owners of the 
Bonds as set forth herein and to furnish such list to the Issuer upon request, but otherwise 
to keep such list confidential; 

 (c) to cancel and/or destroy Bonds which have been paid at maturity or 
submitted for exchange or transfer; 

 (d) to give notices of redemption of Bonds to be redeemed; 

 (e) to furnish the Issuer at least annually a certificate with respect to Bonds 
cancelled and/or destroyed; and 

 (f) to furnish the Issuer at least annually an audit confirmation of Bonds paid, 
Bonds outstanding and payments made with respect to interest on the Bonds. 

In any event, the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall comply with (a) - (f) above. 

  The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall signify their acceptances of the duties 
and obligations imposed upon them by this ordinance.  The Bond Registrar by executing the 
certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to have certified to the Issuer that it 
has all requisite power to accept, and has accepted, such duties and obligations, including as 
Paying Agent, as the case may be, not only with respect to the Bond so authenticated but with 
respect to all of the Bonds.  The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent are the agents of the Issuer for 
such purposes and shall not be liable in connection with the performance of their respective 
duties except for their own negligence or default.  The Bond Registrar shall, however, be 
responsible for any representation in its certificate of authentication on the Bonds. 

  The Issuer may remove the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent at any time.  In case 
at any time the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent shall resign (such resignation to not be effective 



until a successor has accepted such role) or shall be removed or shall become incapable of 
acting, or shall be adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or if a receiver, liquidator or conservator of 
the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent, or of its property, shall be appointed, or if any public officer 
shall take charge or control of the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent or of their respective 
properties or affairs, the Issuer covenants and agrees that it will thereupon appoint a successor 
Bond Registrar or Paying Agent, as the case may be.  The Issuer shall mail or cause to be mailed 
notice of any such appointment made by it to each registered owner of Bonds within twenty (20) 
days after such appointment.  Any Bond Registrar or any Paying Agent appointed under the 
provisions of this Section 7 shall be a bank, trust company or other qualified professional with 
respect to such matters, authorized to exercise such functions in the State of Illinois. 

  The Issuer shall provide to the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent a copy of any 
amendment to this ordinance or in connection with the Bonds. 

  Section 8.  Alternate Bonds; General Obligations.  The Bonds are and 
constitute Alternate Bonds under the Local Government Debt Reform Act, anticipated to be paid 
from applicable Pledged Revenues.  Bonds, regardless of the date or dates of their issuance, are 
on parity with each other and shall share equally and ratably as to payment in the Pledged 
Revenues applicable to the Bonds.  Under and pursuant to Section 15 of the Local Government 
Debt Reform Act, the full faith and credit of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably pledged to the 
punctual payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds; the Bonds shall 
be direct and general obligations of the Issuer; and the Issuer shall be obligated to levy ad 
valorem taxes upon all the taxable property within the Issuer’s corporate limits, for the payment 
when due the Bonds and the interest thereon, without limitation as to rate or amount (such ad 
valorem taxes being the “Pledged Taxes”), as authorized herein. 

  The applicable Pledged Revenues for Bonds are hereby determined by the 
Corporate Authorities to be sufficient to provide for or pay in each year to final maturity of the 
Bonds, as applicable, the following:  (1) Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the enterprise, 
but not including depreciation, (2) the debt service on all Outstanding revenue bonds payable 
from applicable Pledged Revenues, (3) all amounts required to meet any fund or account 
requirements with respect to such Outstanding revenue bonds, (4) other contractual or tort 
liability obligations, if any, payable from applicable Pledged Revenues, and (5) in each year, an 
amount not less than 1.25 times debt service of all (i) Alternate Bonds payable from such 
Pledged Revenues previously issued and outstanding, and (ii) Alternate Bonds payable from 
such Pledged Revenues proposed to be issued, including the Bonds.  The applicable Pledged 
Revenues shall be and are hereby determined by the Corporate Authorities to provide in each 
year an amount not less than 1.25 times debt service (as defined in Section 2 of the Local 
Government Debt Reform Act) of Alternate Bonds payable from such Pledged Revenues 
previously issued and outstanding and Alternate Bonds proposed to be issued.  Such conditions 
enumerated need not be met for that amount of debt service (as defined in Section 2 of the Local 
Government Debt Reform Act) provided for by the setting aside of proceeds of bonds or other 



moneys at the time of the delivery of such bonds.  The Pledged Revenues (but only Gross 
Revenues for Operation and Maintenance Expenses) are hereby determined by the Corporate 
Authorities to provide in each year Operation and Maintenance Expenses, all amounts required 
to meet any fund or account requirements with respect to this ordinance, any other contractual or 
tort liability obligations, if any, payable from Pledged Revenues, and an amount not less than 
1.25 times debt service (as defined in Section 2 of the Local Government Debt Reform Act) of 
all of the Outstanding Bonds, payable from Pledged Revenues. 

  The determination of the sufficiency of applicable Pledged Revenues is expected 
to be supported by reference to the most recent audit of the Issuer, which is for a Fiscal Year 
ending not earlier than 18 months previous to the time of issuance of the Alternate Bonds.  If 
such Pledged Revenues are otherwise shown to be insufficient, the determination of sufficiency, 
if applicable law so requires (which is not presently required for refunding alternate bonds), and 
not otherwise, shall be supported by the “report” of an independent accountant or feasibility 
analyst, the latter having a national reputation for expertise in such matters, demonstrating the 
sufficiency of such revenues and explaining, if appropriate, by what means the Pledged 
Revenues will be greater than as shown in the audit.  Whenever the sufficiency of Pledged 
Revenues is demonstrated by reference to higher rates or charges and fees for enterprise revenues 
(with respect to the System), such higher rates or charges and fees with respect to the use of the 
services of the System shall have been properly imposed by an ordinance adopted prior to the 
time of delivery of the Bonds.  Although such technical compliance for refunding bonds is not 
required, the Issuer anticipates such compliance. 

  Section 9.  Forms of Bonds.  Unless Bonds in typewritten form are accepted or 
in any contract for the sale of the Bonds the purchaser or purchasers of the Bonds shall agree to 
accept typewritten or other temporary Bonds preliminary to the availability of, or in lieu of, 
Bonds in printed form prepared in compliance with the National Standard Specifications for 
Fully Registered Municipal Securities prepared by the American National Standards Institute, 
Bonds shall comply therewith, and in any event shall be in substantially the following forms 
[provided, however, that appropriate insertions, deletions and modifications in the form of the 
Bonds may be made, including as to the custom of printing Bonds in part on the front and back 
of certificates, a payment schedule and the issuance of a single Bond for each maturity, and to 
conform to applicable Bonds Orders; in an appropriate form approved by Bond counsel]: 

(A)  [FORM/SERIES 2014 BONDS] 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 

THE COUNTY OF COLES 

CITY OF MATTOON 

 



GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND 

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE) 

SERIES 2014 

 

REGISTERED NO._______       REGISTERED $___________ 

 

INTEREST RATE:  MATURITY DATE:  DATED DATE:       CUSIP: 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

 

[1]  KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS that the City of Mattoon (the “Issuer”), a 
non-home rule municipality situated in The County of Coles, in the State of Illinois, 
acknowledges itself indebted and for value received hereby promises to pay to the Registered 
Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set forth above on the 
Maturity Date specified above, and to pay interest on such Principal Amount from the later of the 
Dated Date hereof or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid, at the 
Interest Rate per annum set forth above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 
twelve 30-day months and payable in lawful money of the United States of America 
semiannually on the fifteenth (15th) days of June and December in each year, commencing 
___________ 15, 201__, until the Principal Amount hereof shall have been paid, by check or 
draft on Issuer funds mailed to the Registered Owner of record hereof as of the close of business 
on  the last day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next preceding each 
interest payment date, at the address of such Registered Owner appearing on the registration 
books maintained for such purpose at the designated corporate trust office of First Mid-Illinois 
Bank & Trust, N.A., Mattoon, Illinois, as Bond Registrar (including its successors, the “Bond 
Registrar”).  This Bond, as to principal and premium, if any, when due, will be payable in 
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at 
the designated payment office of First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust, N.A., in Mattoon, Illinois, as 
Paying Agent (including its successors, the “Paying Agent”).   [Insert as applicable: Interest on 
each Bond also may be payable by wire or electronic transfer to (and at the expense of) any 
registered owner of a Bond or Bonds (as of the applicable record date) holding an aggregate 
principal amount of $500,000 or more when such registered owner shall have requested such 
wire or electronic transfer payment to a bank in the continental United States by written 
instruction (with sufficient directions, including bank address and routing and account numbers) 
to the Paying Agent at least fifteen (15) days prior to an interest payment date.]  The Bonds are 



payable from the receipts derived by the Issuer from certain Pledged Revenues (that is, from Net 
Revenues derived from the Issuer’s operation of its municipally-owned separate waterworks and 
sewerage system (each a “System”, subject to Applicable Percentage Limits for each System,) 
and Revenue Sharing Receipts, and although it is expected, and has been certified, that the Bonds 
are to be paid from such Net Revenues [and Revenue Sharing Receipts], which Pledged 
Revenues are pledged to the payment thereof[, second, junior and subordinate to any bonds or 
other obligations thereon having or to have a prior claim], the full faith and credit of the Issuer, 
including the power to levy taxes without limit as to rate or amount (that is, Pledged Taxes) are 
irrevocably pledged for the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and 
each Bond of the series of which it is a part, according to the terms thereof. 

[2]  This Bond is one of a series of Bonds issued in the aggregate principal amount of 
$____________, which are all of like tenor, except as to maturity, interest rate[ and right of and 
redemption], and which are authorized and issued under and pursuant to and in accordance with 
Ordinance No. __________, adopted by the City Council of the Issuer on ___________, 2014, 
and entitled:  “AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF  GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2014, 
OF THE CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, PROVIDING THE DETAILS 
OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR APPLICABLE ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES AND 
THE LEVIES  OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF 
AND INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, AND RELATED MATTERS” (with respect to which 
undefined terms herein shall have the meanings therein, the “Bond Ordinance”, as 
supplemented and amended), pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of Illinois, 
including Section 15 of the Local Government Debt Reform Act (Section 350/15 of Chapter 30 
of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, in connection with “alternate bonds”, as supplemented and 
amended), Divisions 129 and 141 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code (Section 5/11-141-
1 et seq. of Chapter 65 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes), as supplemented and amended, and 
applicable laws in connection with the imposition, distribution, receipt and application of Net 
Revenues and Revenue Sharing Receipts, the Registered Bond Act, the Illinois Bond 
Replacement Act and the Bond Authorization Act.  The Bonds are issued to pay costs of 
refinancing the acquisition, construction and installation of certain System and municipal 
building facilities, improvements and costs. 

[3]  [Insert and adapt, as applicable: Bonds maturing December 15, 20___, 20___ and 
20___ are Term Bonds (the “Term Bonds”), subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in 
the principal amount on December 15 of each of the years, as follows: 

 

Dec. 15, 20___ Term 
Bond 

 Dec. 15, 20___ Term 
Bond 

 Dec. 15, 20___ Term 
Bond 

 

Year 

Principal 

Amount($) 

  

Year 

Principal

Amount($)

  

Year 

Principal

Amount($)



      

      

      

*To be paid at maturity unless previously retired.]   

 [Insert and adapt, as applicable: Bonds of this series maturing on and after December 15, 
201__, shall be subject to optional redemption prior to maturity on any date on and after 
December 15, 201__, in whole or in part in the principal amount from such maturities or in any 
order specified (but in inverse order if none is specified) of maturity, at a redemption price of 
par, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. OR The Bonds of this series are not 
subject to call for optional redemption.]  

[4]  [In the event of the redemption of less than all the Bonds of like maturity, the 
aggregate principal amount thereof to be redeemed shall be $5,000 or an authorized integral 
multiple thereof, and the Bond Registrar shall assign to each Bond of such maturity a distinctive 
number for each $5,000 principal amount of such Bond and shall select by lot from the numbers 
so assigned as many numbers as, at $5,000 for each number, shall equal the principal amount of 
such Bonds to be redeemed.  The Bonds to be redeemed shall be the Bonds to which were 
assigned numbers so selected; provided that only so much of the principal amount of each Bond 
shall be redeemed as shall equal $5,000 for each number assigned to it and so selected.] 

[5]  [The Issuer shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money sufficient to pay 
the redemption price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds which are to be redeemed on the 
redemption date, together with interest to such redemption date, prior to the redemption date.  
Notice of the redemption of Bonds shall be given by first class mail not less than thirty (30) days 
nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for such redemption to the registered owners 
of Bonds to be redeemed at their last addresses appearing on the registration books therefor.  The 
Bonds or portions thereof specified in such notice shall become due and payable at the 
redemption price on the redemption date therein designated, and if, on the redemption date, 
moneys for payment of the redemption price of all the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, 
together with interest to the redemption date, remain on deposit with the Paying Agent, and if 
notice of redemption shall have been mailed as aforesaid (and notwithstanding any defect therein 
or the lack of actual receipt thereof by any registered owner), then from and after the redemption 
date interest on such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to accrue and become payable.  If 
there shall be drawn for redemption less than all of a Bond, the Issuer shall execute and the Bond 
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, without charge to the 
registered owner thereof, for the unredeemed balance of the Bond so surrendered, Bonds of like 
maturity and of the denomination of $5,000 or any authorized integral multiple thereof.] 

[6]  [All notices of redemption shall include at least the information as follows:  (1) the 
redemption date; (2) the redemption price; (3) if less than all of the Bonds of a given maturity are 
to be redeemed, the identification and, in the case of partial redemption of the Bonds, the 
respective principal amounts of the Bonds to be redeemed; (4) a statement that on the redemption 
date the redemption price will become due and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof 
called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from such date; and (5) the 



place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price, which place 
of payment shall be the principal office of the Paying Agent.] 

[7]  This Bond is transferable only upon the registration books therefor by the Registered 
Owner hereof in person, or by such Registered Owners attorney duly authorized in writing, upon 
surrender hereof at the designated office of the Bond Registrar together with a written instrument 
of transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar duly executed by the Registered Owner or by such 
Registered Owners duly authorized attorney, and thereupon a new registered Bond or Bonds, in 
the denominations of $5,000 or any authorized integral multiple thereof and of the same 
aggregate principal amount as this Bond shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor.  In 
like manner, this Bond may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of 
any authorized denomination.] 

[8]  The Bond Registrar shall not be required to exchange or transfer any Bond during the 
period from the fifteenth (15th) day of the month next preceding any interest payment date and 
ending on such interest payment date[ or during a period of fifteen (15) days next preceding the 
mailing of a notice of redemption which could designate all or a part of such Bond for 
redemption, nor to transfer or exchange any Bond after notice calling such Bond for prepayment 
has been mailed, nor during a period of fifteen (15) days next preceding mailing of a notice of 
prepayment and redemption of any Bonds].  The Issuer or the Bond Registrar may make a charge 
sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with 
respect to the transfer or exchange of this Bond.  No other charge shall be made for the privilege 
of making such transfer or exchange.  The Issuer, the Paying Agent and the Bond Registrar may 
treat and consider the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof 
for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal, premium, if any, and 
interest due hereon and for all other purposes whatsoever, and all such payments so made to such 
Registered Owner or upon such Registered Owners order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy 
and discharge the liability upon this Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither 
the Issuer nor the Paying Agent or the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the 
contrary. 

[9]  No recourse shall be had for the payment of any Bonds against the Mayor or any 
member of the city Council or any other officer or employee of the Issuer (past, present or 
future) who executes any Bonds, or on any other basis.  The Issuer may remove the Bond 
Registrar or Paying Agent at any time and for any reason and appoint a successor. 

[10]  This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the certificate 
of authentication hereon shall have been duly executed by the Bond Registrar. 

[11]  The Issuer has designated the Bonds of this series as “qualified tax-exempt 
obligations” under Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

[12]  It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required 
to be done, exist and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond in order to make 
it a legal, valid and binding general obligation of the Issuer have been done, exist and have been 
performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and that the series of 
Bonds of which this Bond is one, together with all other indebtedness of the Issuer is within 
every debt or other limit prescribed by law. 



[13]  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, has caused 
this Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signature of its 
Mayor, and its corporate seal, or a facsimile thereof, to be hereunto affixed or otherwise 
reproduced hereon and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its City Clerk, all as of 
the Dated Date set forth above. 

(SEAL)          CITY OF MATTOON, 

           Coles County, Illinois 

Attest: 

/s/Susan J. O’Brien        /s/ Timothy D. Gover 

City Clerk         Mayor 

[14]      CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

Dated:  _________________________ 

  This is one of the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2014, described in the within mentioned Bond Ordinance. 

 

      FIRST MID-ILLINOIS BANK & TRUST, N.A.   

         Mattoon, Illinois, as Bond Registrar 

 

 By:_______________________________ 

                    Authorized Signer 

Bond Registrar and First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust, N.A. 

Paying Agent:  Mattoon, Illinois 

 

[15]           ASSIGNMENT 

 

  For value received the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto _______________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

[Name, Address and Tax Identification Number of Assignee] 

the within Bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints _________________________ 



attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of 
substitution in the premises. 

 

Dated ____________________________    _______________________________________ 

                      Signature 

Signature Guarantee By: 

__________________________________ 

(Name of Eligible Guarantor Institution as defined 

by SEC Rule 17 Ad-15 (17 CFR 240.1 Ad-15)) 

NOTICE: The signature on this assignment must correspond with the name of the 
Registered Owner as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in every particular, without 
alteration or enlargement or any change whatever. 

  Section 10.  Levy and Extension of Taxes.  For the purpose of providing the 
money required to pay the interest on the Bonds when and as the same falls due and to pay and 
discharge the principal thereof as the same shall mature, there shall be levied upon all the taxable 
property within the Issuer’s corporate limits in each year while any of the Bonds shall be 
Outstanding, direct annual taxes, constituting Pledged Taxes, sufficient for that purpose and 
there is hereby authorized to be levied upon all of the taxable property within the Issuer’s 
corporate limits, in addition to all other taxes, direct annual taxes, in the amounts for each tax or 
levy year, commencing not before levy year 2014 and ending not later than 2024, as shall be 
specified in one or more Bond Orders (i.e. Pledged Taxes).   

  To the extent lawful, interest or principal coming due at any time when there shall 
be insufficient funds on hand to pay the same shall be paid promptly when due from current 
funds on hand in advance of the collection of the taxes herein levied; and when such taxes shall 
have been collected, reimbursement shall be made to such fund or funds from which such 
advance was made in the amounts thus advanced. 

  As soon as this ordinance becomes effective, a copy thereof, certified by the City 
Clerk of the Issuer, which certificate shall recite that this ordinance has been duly adopted, 
together with specified levies of Pledged Taxes in a Bond Order, shall be filed with the County 
Clerk of Coles County, Illinois, who is hereby directed to ascertain the rate percent required to 
produce the aggregate Pledged Taxes to be levied in the years as authorized herein and to extend 
the same for collection on the tax books in connection with other taxes levied in each of such 
years, in and by the Issuer for general corporate purposes of the Issuer, and in each of such years 
such annual Pledged Taxes shall be levied and collected in like manner as taxes for general 
corporate purposes for each of such years are levied and collected and, when collected, such 



Pledged Taxes shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds herein authorized as the same become due and payable. 

  The Issuer covenants and agrees with the owners of the Bonds that so long as any 
of the Bonds remain Outstanding, the Issuer will not cause the abatement of the foregoing taxes 
and otherwise will take no action or fail to take any action which in any way would adversely 
affect the ability of the Issuer to levy and collect the foregoing Levied Taxes and/or Pledged 
Taxes, unless and to the extent there then shall be moneys irrevocably on deposit therefor in the 
applicable debt service account established under Section 12 below.  The Issuer and its officers 
will comply with all present and future applicable laws in order to assure that the foregoing 
Pledged Taxes will be levied, extended and collected as provided herein and deposited in the 
applicable debt service account established in Section 12 below to pay the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds; and whenever the debt service deposit requirements in this paragraph have 
been satisfied, the Corporate Authorities shall duly direct the abatement of Pledged Taxes for the 
year with respect to which such Pledged Taxes have been levied, to the extent so satisfied, and 
appropriate certification of such abatement shall be timely filed with the County Clerk of Coles 
County in connection with such abatement.  If for any reason there is abatement of such levy of 
taxes and the failure thereafter to pay debt service in respect of such abatement, the additional 
amount, together with additional interest accruing, shall be added to the tax levy in the year of, or 
the next year following, such failure. 

  Section 11.  Related Agreements.  The Official Statement, Purchase Agreement, 
Refunding Agreement, Arbitrage Regulation Agreement and Disclosure Agreement, in 
substantially the forms thereof customary to the transactions under this ordinance shall be and 
are hereby approved and authorized to be executed, delivered and performed. 

  The Official Statement in connection with the Bonds, as presented before the 
Corporate Authorities in preliminary form, shall be and is hereby approved, deemed final under 
Rule 15c2-12 and is authorized to be used by the Underwriter in the offering and sale of the 
Bonds.  The Preliminary Official Statement is hereby authorized to be completed to constitute a 
final Official Statement under such Rule 15c2-12.  The Issuer is authorized to cooperate with the 
Underwriter in connection with compliance by the Underwriter with Rule 15c2-12 and 
applicable rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board related to the Bonds. 

  All things done with respect to the Purchase Agreement, Refunding Agreement, 
Arbitrage Regulation Agreement, Disclosure Agreement and the Official Statement by the 
Issuer’s Mayor, City Clerk, City Administrator, City Treasurer or City Attorney, in connection 
with the issuance and sale of the Bonds, shall be and are hereby in all respects ratified, confirmed 
and approved.  The Mayor, City Clerk, City Administrator, City Treasurer, City Attorney and 
other officials of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to do and perform, or cause to be 
done or performed for or on behalf of the Issuer, each and every thing necessary for the issuance 
of the Bonds, including the proper execution, delivery and performance by the Issuer of the 



Official Statement, Purchase Agreement, Disclosure Agreement, Refunding Agreement and 
Arbitrage Regulation Agreement, and related instruments and certificates, such documents to be 
in substantially forms  usual to transactions herein described, with such changes therein as the 
officers executing them shall approve, and the purchase by and delivery of the Bonds to or at the 
direction of the Underwriter. 

  No elected or appointed officer of the Issuer is in any manner interested, directly 
or indirectly, in his or her own name or in the name of any other person, association, trust or 
corporation in the Purchase Agreement. 

  Section 12.  Special Funds and Accounts.  The (I) Waterworks Fund, (II) 
Sewerage Fund and (III) Revenue Fund shall be created and established, or continued, as the 
case may be.  The Bonds shall be Junior or Senior Bonds as specified in an applicable Bond 
Order.  Unless otherwise specified in a Bond Order all funding shall be on or before the first day 
of each month. 

(I) WATERWORKS FUND.  Upon the issuance of any Bonds, the Waterworks System shall 
continue to be operated on a Fiscal Year basis commencing on the first day of May and ending 
the last day of April of each calendar year.  All of the revenues from any source whatsoever 
derived from the operation of the System shall continue to be set aside as collected and be 
deposited in or credited to a separate fund and in accounts in a bank to be designated or 
continued under another ordinance, as the case may be, by the Corporate Authorities, which fund 
is hereby created and established or continued, as the case may be,  as the Issuer’s “Waterworks 
Fund”, which shall constitute a trust fund, including for the purpose of carrying out the 
covenants, terms, and conditions of this ordinance related to the Bonds, including, without 
limitation, the establishment (or continuance and redesignation as desirable) within such fund of 
the “Operation and Maintenance Account”, the  “Bond and Interest Account” (within which 
may be a “Senior Debt Service Account” and/or “Senior Reserve Account” and/or a “Junior 
Debt Service Account”, and/or a “Junior Reserve Account”), the “Depreciation Account”, 
the “Reserve Account” and the “Surplus Account”. 

  First, there shall be deposited to or retained in the Operation and Maintenance 
Account an amount sufficient, when added to the amount then on deposit in such Account, to 
establish or maintain a balance to an amount not less than the amount considered necessary to 
pay operation and maintenance expenses for the System for the then current and next month. 
Then, within the Waterworks Fund, there shall be credited and paid into the applicable Debt 
Service Account, on or before the first day of each month after any Bonds are issued, by the City 
Treasurer or other appropriate financial officer of the Issuer, without any further official action 
or direction than this ordinance, in the order in which such Accounts are hereinafter mentioned 
(provided (X) that ant Net Revenues to be deposited into or credited to a “Net Revenues 
Subaccount” of  applicable Debt Service Account for the Bonds shall be subject to the 
Applicable Percentage Limit and (Y) that any Pledged Taxes with respect to the Bonds shall be 



deposited directly into a “Pledged Taxes Subaccount” of the applicable Debt Service Account), 
and (Z) Revenue Sharing Receipts shall be directly deposited into or credited to the applicable 
Debt Service Account, subject to the requirements of any account having a prior claim, all 
moneys in the Waterworks Fund in accordance with the following provisions: 

  (a)  Senior Debt Service Account.  There shall be credited to the Senior Debt 
Service Account and held, in cash and investments, a fractional amount of the interest becoming 
due on the next succeeding interest payment date on all applicable Outstanding Senior Bonds, if 
any, payable from each such Account and also a fractional amount of the principal becoming due 
or subject to mandatory redemption on the next succeeding principal maturity or mandatory 
redemption date of all Outstanding Senior Bonds, if any, payable from the Senior Debt Service 
Account until there shall have been accumulated and held, in cash and investments, in the Senior 
Debt Service Account in or before the month preceding such maturity date of interest or maturity 
or mandatory redemption date of principal, an amount sufficient to pay such principal or interest, 
or both. 

  All moneys in each such Senior Debt Service Account shall be used only for the 
purpose of paying interest on and principal of applicable Outstanding Senior Bonds. 

  (A) Receipts of Pledged Taxes with respect to the Bonds a shall be deposited 
into a separate Pledged Taxes Subaccount of the Senior Debt Service Account and as required by 
this ordinance shall be used solely and only to pay debt service on applicable Bonds. 

  (B) Within the Senior Debt Service Account there shall be a “Pledged 
Subaccount”.  Moneys deposited/credited to the Senior Debt Service Account in excess of the 
amount qualifying for treatment as a BDSF shall be deposited or credited to the related Pledged 
Subaccount for later transfer to the Senior Debt Service Account when the transferred amount 
will not disqualify the Senior Debt Service Account as a BDSF.  Moneys in the Pledged 
Subaccount are hereby pledged to the payment of the Bonds and are subject to determination of 
and payment as to Yield Reduction Payments. 

  (b)  Senior Reserve Account.  There shall next be credited to the Senior Reserve 
Account and held, in cash and investments or as otherwise provided, such amount or amounts at 
such times as may be required in the applicable ordinance or ordinances by which applicable 
Outstanding Senior Bonds have been or are to be authorized and issued. 

  Amounts to the credit of each Senior Reserve Account shall be used to pay 
principal of or interest on applicable Outstanding Senior Bonds of the Waterworks System at any 
time when there are insufficient funds available in the Senior Debt Service Account to pay the 
same as may be provided in the applicable ordinances and shall be transferred to such Account 
for such purpose. 



  (c)  Junior Debt Service Account:  There shall be deposited and credited to the 
Junior Debt Service Account and held, in cash and investments, a fractional amount (not less 
than 1/6) of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date on 
applicable Outstanding Junior Bonds and also a fractional amount (not less than 1/12) of the 
principal becoming due (or subject to mandatory redemption) on the next succeeding principal 
maturity date of all of the Outstanding Junior Bonds until there shall have been accumulated and 
held in cash and investments in each such Account on or before the month preceding such 
interest payment date or principal maturity date, or both, an amount sufficient to pay such 
principal or interest, or both. 

  In computing the fractional amount to be set aside each month in the Junior Debt 
Service Account, the fraction shall be so computed that a sufficient amount will be set aside in 
the Junior Debt Service Account and will be available for the prompt payment of such principal 
of and interest on applicable Outstanding Junior Bonds and shall be not less than one-sixth (1/6) 
of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date and not less than one-
twelfth (1/12) of the principal becoming due (or subject to mandatory redemption) on the next 
succeeding principal payment date on applicable Outstanding Junior Bonds until there is 
sufficient money in the Junior Debt Service Account to pay such principal or interest, or both. 

  Credits into the Junior Debt Service Account may be suspended in any Bond Year 
at such time as there shall be a sufficient sum held in cash and investments in such Account to 
meet principal and interest requirements in such Account for the balance of such Bond Year, but 
such credits shall again be resumed at the beginning of the next Bond Year.  All moneys in the 
Junior Debt Service Account shall be used only for the purpose of paying interest and principal 
and applicable premium on Outstanding Junior Bonds. 

  (A) Receipts of Pledged Taxes with respect to the Bonds shall be deposited 
into a separate Pledged Taxes Subaccount of the Junior Debt Service Account and as required by 
this ordinance shall be used solely and only to pay debt service on the Bonds. 

  (B) Within the Junior Debt Service Account there shall be a “Pledged 
Subaccount”.  Moneys deposited/credited to the Junior Debt Service Account in excess of the 
amount qualifying for treatment as a BDSF shall be deposited or credited to the related Pledged 
Subaccount for later transfer to the Junior Debt Service Account when the transferred amount 
will not disqualify the Junior Debt Service Account as a BDSF.  Moneys in the Pledged 
Subaccount are hereby pledged to the payment of the Bonds and are subject to determination and 
payment as to Yield Reduction Payments. 

  (d)  Junior Reserve Account.  There shall next be credited to the Junior Reserve 
Account and held, in cash and investments or as otherwise provided, such amount or amounts at 
such times as may be required in the applicable ordinance or ordinances by which Outstanding 
Junior Parity Bonds are authorized and issued. 



  Amounts to the credit of each Junior Reserve Account shall be used to pay 
principal of or interest on the applicable Outstanding Junior Bonds as they may secure at any 
time when there are insufficient funds available in the Junior Debt Service Account to pay the 
same as may be provided in the applicable ordinances and shall be transferred to such Account 
for such purpose. 

  (e)  Depreciation Account:  There next shall be deposited in and credited to each 
applicable Depreciation Account such amounts as the Corporate Authorities from time to time by 
resolution or other appropriate action direct. 

  Amounts to the credit of a Depreciation Account shall be used for (i) the payment 
of the costs of extraordinary maintenance, necessary repairs and replacements, or contingencies, 
the payment for which no other funds are available, in order that the Waterworks System may at 
all times be able to render efficient service and, although it is not expected, (ii) the payment of 
principal of or interest and applicable premium on any Outstanding bonds payable from the 
Pledged Revenues of the System at any time when there are no other funds available for that 
purpose in order to prevent a default and shall be transferred to the appropriate account or 
accounts for such purpose. 

  Whenever an amount is withdrawn from the Depreciation Account for the 
purpose stated in clause (ii) of the preceding paragraph, the Issuer shall have undertaken a rate 
study of the System by a qualified accountant, engineer or other finance professional.  Each 
expenditure to be made from a Depreciation Account for the purpose stated in clause (i) of the 
preceding paragraph shall be made only after an approving vote of the Corporate Authorities has 
certified that such expenditure is necessary to the continued effective and efficient operation of 
the System. 

  (f)  Surplus Account:  All moneys remaining in the Waterworks Fund, after 
crediting the required amounts to the respective Accounts above, and after making up any 
deficiency in the Accounts above, shall be used, if at all, for one or more of the following 
purposes (and not for any general corporate purpose) without any priority among them: 

 (1)  For the purpose of constructing or acquiring repairs, replacements, renewals, 
improvements or extensions to the System; or 

 (2)  For the purpose of calling and redeeming applicable Outstanding bonds 
payable from Pledged Revenues of the System; or 

 (3)  For the purpose of paying principal and interest and applicable premium on 
any subordinate bonds or obligations issued for the purpose of acquiring or constructing 
repairs, replacements, renewals, improvements and extensions to the System; or 



 (4)  For any other lawful purpose, including the authorized purchase of 
outstanding bonds payable from applicable Pledged Revenues at the applicable price plus 
applicable premium and accrued interest. 

  (g)  Investments:  Money to the credit of the funds and accounts under this part I 
shall be invested from time to time by the Issuer’s City Treasurer in (i) interest-bearing bonds, 
notes, or other direct full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America, (ii) 
obligations unconditionally guaranteed as to both principal and interest by the United States of 
America, or (iii) certificates of deposit or time deposits of any bank or savings and loan 
association, as defined by Illinois laws, provided such bank or savings and loan association is 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or a successor corporation to the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation and provided further that the principal of such deposits are 
secured by a pledge of obligations as described in clauses (g) (i) and (g) (ii) above in the full 
principal amount of such deposits, or otherwise collateralized in such amount and in such 
manner as may be required by law.  Such investments may be sold from time to time by the 
Treasurer of the Issuer as funds may be needed for the purpose for which such Accounts have 
been created.  All interest on any funds so invested shall be credited to the applicable Account of 
the Fund and is hereby deemed and allocated as expended with the next expenditure or 
expenditures of money from the applicable Subaccount or Account of the applicable Fund.  
Moneys in any of such accounts shall be invested by the Issuer’s Treasurer, if necessary, in 
investments restricted as to yield, which investments may be in U.S. Treasury Securities - State 
and Local Government Series, if available, and to such end the Issuer’s Treasurer shall refer to 
any investment restrictions covenanted by the Issuer or any officer thereof as part of the 
transcript of proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds, and to appropriate opinions of counsel. 

(II) SEWERAGE FUND.  Upon the issuance of any Bonds, the Sewerage System shall 
continue to be operated on a Fiscal Year basis commencing on the first day of May and ending 
the last day of April of each calendar year.  All of the revenues from any source whatsoever 
derived from the operation of the System shall continue to be set aside as collected and be 
deposited in or credited to a separate fund and in accounts in a bank to be designated or 
continued under another ordinance, as the case may be, by the Corporate Authorities, which fund 
is hereby created and established or continued, as the case may be,  as the Issuer’s “Sewerage 
Fund”, which shall constitute a trust fund, including for the purpose of carrying out the 
covenants, terms, and conditions of this ordinance related to the Bonds, including, without 
limitation, the establishment (or continuance and redesignation as desirable) within such fund of 
the “Operation and Maintenance Account”, the  “Bond and Interest Account” (within which 
may be a “Senior Debt Service Account” and/or “Senior Reserve Account” and/or a “Junior 
Debt Service Account”, and/or a “Junior Reserve Account”), the “Depreciation Account”, 
the “Reserve Account” and the “Surplus Account”. 

  First, there shall be deposited to or retained in the Operation and Maintenance 
Account an amount sufficient, when added to the amount then on deposit in such Account, to 



establish or maintain a balance to an amount not less than the amount considered necessary to 
pay operation and maintenance expenses for the System for the then current and next month. 
Then, within the Sewerage Fund, there shall be credited and paid into the applicable Debt 
Service Account, on or before the first day of each month after any Bonds are issued, by the City 
Treasurer or other appropriate financial officer of the Issuer, without any further official action 
or direction than this ordinance, in the order in which such Accounts are hereinafter mentioned 
(provided (X) that ant Net Revenues to be deposited into or credited to a “Net Revenues 
Subaccount” of  applicable Debt Service Account for the Bonds shall be subject to the 
Applicable Percentage Limit and (Y) that any Pledged Taxes with respect to the Bonds shall be 
deposited directly into a “Pledged Taxes Subaccount” of the applicable Debt Service Account), 
and (Z) Revenue Sharing Receipts shall be directly deposited into or credited to the applicable 
Debt Service Account, subject to the requirements of any account having a prior claim, all 
moneys in the Sewerage Fund in accordance with the following provisions: 

  (a)  Senior Debt Service Account.  There shall be credited to the Senior Debt 
Service Account and held, in cash and investments, a fractional amount of the interest becoming 
due on the next succeeding interest payment date on all applicable Outstanding Senior Bonds, if 
any, payable from each such Account and also a fractional amount of the principal becoming due 
or subject to mandatory redemption on the next succeeding principal maturity or mandatory 
redemption date of all Outstanding Senior Bonds, if any, payable from the Senior Debt Service 
Account until there shall have been accumulated and held, in cash and investments, in the Senior 
Debt Service Account in or before the month preceding such maturity date of interest or maturity 
or mandatory redemption date of principal, an amount sufficient to pay such principal or interest, 
or both. 

  All moneys in each such Senior Debt Service Account shall be used only for the 
purpose of paying interest on and principal of applicable Outstanding Senior Bonds. 

  (A) Receipts of Pledged Taxes with respect to the Bonds a shall be deposited 
into a separate Pledged Taxes Subaccount of the Senior Debt Service Account and as required by 
this ordinance shall be used solely and only to pay debt service on applicable Bonds. 

  (B) Within the Senior Debt Service Account there shall be a “Pledged 
Subaccount”.  Moneys deposited/credited to the Senior Debt Service Account in excess of the 
amount qualifying for treatment as a BDSF shall be deposited or credited to the related Pledged 
Subaccount for later transfer to the Senior Debt Service Account when the transferred amount 
will not disqualify the Senior Debt Service Account as a BDSF.  Moneys in the Pledged 
Subaccount are hereby pledged to the payment of the Bonds and are subject to determination of 
and payment as to Yield Reduction Payments. 

  (b)  Senior Reserve Account.  There shall next be credited to the Senior Reserve 
Account and held, in cash and investments or as otherwise provided, such amount or amounts at 



such times as may be required in the applicable ordinance or ordinances by which applicable 
Outstanding Senior Bonds have been or are to be authorized and issued. 

  Amounts to the credit of each Senior Reserve Account shall be used to pay 
principal of or interest on applicable Outstanding Senior Bonds of the Sewerage System at any 
time when there are insufficient funds available in the Senior Debt Service Account to pay the 
same as may be provided in the applicable ordinances and shall be transferred to such Account 
for such purpose. 

  (c)  Junior Debt Service Account:  There shall be deposited and credited to the 
Junior Debt Service Account and held, in cash and investments, a fractional amount (not less 
than 1/6) of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date on 
applicable Outstanding Junior Bonds and also a fractional amount (not less than 1/12) of the 
principal becoming due (or subject to mandatory redemption) on the next succeeding principal 
maturity date of all of the Outstanding Junior Bonds until there shall have been accumulated and 
held in cash and investments in each such Account on or before the month preceding such 
interest payment date or principal maturity date, or both, an amount sufficient to pay such 
principal or interest, or both. 

  In computing the fractional amount to be set aside each month in the Junior Debt 
Service Account, the fraction shall be so computed that a sufficient amount will be set aside in 
the Junior Debt Service Account and will be available for the prompt payment of such principal 
of and interest on applicable Outstanding Junior Bonds and shall be not less than one-sixth (1/6) 
of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date and not less than one-
twelfth (1/12) of the principal becoming due (or subject to mandatory redemption) on the next 
succeeding principal payment date on applicable Outstanding Junior Bonds until there is 
sufficient money in the Junior Debt Service Account to pay such principal or interest, or both. 

  Credits into the Junior Debt Service Account may be suspended in any Bond Year 
at such time as there shall be a sufficient sum held in cash and investments in such Account to 
meet principal and interest requirements in such Account for the balance of such Bond Year, but 
such credits shall again be resumed at the beginning of the next Bond Year.  All moneys in the 
Junior Debt Service Account shall be used only for the purpose of paying interest and principal 
and applicable premium on Outstanding Junior Bonds. 

  (A) Receipts of Pledged Taxes with respect to the Bonds shall be deposited 
into a separate Pledged Taxes Subaccount of the Junior Debt Service Account and as required by 
this ordinance shall be used solely and only to pay debt service on the Bonds. 

  (B) Within the Junior Debt Service Account there shall be a “Pledged 
Subaccount”.  Moneys deposited/credited to the Junior Debt Service Account in excess of the 
amount qualifying for treatment as a BDSF shall be deposited or credited to the related Pledged 
Subaccount for later transfer to the Junior Debt Service Account when the transferred amount 



will not disqualify the Junior Debt Service Account as a BDSF.  Moneys in the Pledged 
Subaccount are hereby pledged to the payment of the Bonds and are subject to determination and 
payment as to Yield Reduction Payments. 

  (d)  Junior Reserve Account.  There shall next be credited to the Junior Reserve 
Account and held, in cash and investments or as otherwise provided, such amount or amounts at 
such times as may be required in the applicable ordinance or ordinances by which Outstanding 
Junior Parity Bonds are authorized and issued. 

  Amounts to the credit of each Junior Reserve Account shall be used to pay 
principal of or interest on the applicable Outstanding Junior Bonds as they may secure at any 
time when there are insufficient funds available in the Junior Debt Service Account to pay the 
same as may be provided in the applicable ordinances and shall be transferred to such Account 
for such purpose. 

  (e)  Depreciation Account:  There next shall be deposited in and credited to each 
applicable Depreciation Account such amounts as the Corporate Authorities from time to time by 
resolution or other appropriate action direct. 

  Amounts to the credit of a Depreciation Account shall be used for (i) the payment 
of the costs of extraordinary maintenance, necessary repairs and replacements, or contingencies, 
the payment for which no other funds are available, in order that the Sewerage System may at all 
times be able to render efficient service and, although it is not expected, (ii) the payment of 
principal of or interest and applicable premium on any Outstanding bonds payable from the 
Pledged Revenues of the System at any time when there are no other funds available for that 
purpose in order to prevent a default and shall be transferred to the appropriate account or 
accounts for such purpose. 

  Whenever an amount is withdrawn from the Depreciation Account for the 
purpose stated in clause (ii) of the preceding paragraph, the Issuer shall have undertaken a rate 
study of the System by a qualified accountant, engineer or other finance professional.  Each 
expenditure to be made from a Depreciation Account for the purpose stated in clause (i) of the 
preceding paragraph shall be made only after an approving vote of the Corporate Authorities has 
certified that such expenditure is necessary to the continued effective and efficient operation of 
the System. 

  (f)  Surplus Account:  All moneys remaining in the Sewerage Fund, after 
crediting the required amounts to the respective Accounts above, and after making up any 
deficiency in the Accounts above, shall be used, if at all, for one or more of the following 
purposes (and not for any general corporate purpose) without any priority among them: 

 (1)  For the purpose of constructing or acquiring repairs, replacements, renewals, 
improvements or extensions to the System; or 



 (2)  For the purpose of calling and redeeming applicable Outstanding bonds 
payable from Pledged Revenues of the System; or 

 (3)  For the purpose of paying principal and interest and applicable premium on 
any subordinate bonds or obligations issued for the purpose of acquiring or constructing 
repairs, replacements, renewals, improvements and extensions to the System; or 

 (4)  For any other lawful purpose, including the authorized purchase of 
outstanding bonds payable from applicable Pledged Revenues at the applicable price plus 
applicable premium and accrued interest. 

  (g)  Investments:  Money to the credit of the funds and accounts under this part II 
shall be invested from time to time by the Issuer’s City Treasurer in (i) interest-bearing bonds, 
notes, or other direct full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America, (ii) 
obligations unconditionally guaranteed as to both principal and interest by the United States of 
America, or (iii) certificates of deposit or time deposits of any bank or savings and loan 
association, as defined by Illinois laws, provided such bank or savings and loan association is 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or a successor corporation to the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation and provided further that the principal of such deposits are 
secured by a pledge of obligations as described in clauses (g) (i) and (g) (ii) above in the full 
principal amount of such deposits, or otherwise collateralized in such amount and in such 
manner as may be required by law.  Such investments may be sold from time to time by the 
Treasurer of the Issuer as funds may be needed for the purpose for which such Accounts have 
been created.  All interest on any funds so invested shall be credited to the applicable Account of 
the Fund and is hereby deemed and allocated as expended with the next expenditure or 
expenditures of money from the applicable Subaccount or Account of the applicable Fund.  
Moneys in any of such accounts shall be invested by the Issuer’s Treasurer, if necessary, in 
investments restricted as to yield, which investments may be in U.S. Treasury Securities - State 
and Local Government Series, if available, and to such end the Issuer’s Treasurer shall refer to 
any investment restrictions covenanted by the Issuer or any officer thereof as part of the 
transcript of proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds, and to appropriate opinions of counsel. 

(III) REVENUE FUND.  Upon the issuance of any of the Bonds, the Issuer shall continue to be 
operated on a Fiscal Year basis.  Revenue Sharing Receipts constituting Pledged Revenues shall 
be set aside as collected and be deposited into a separate fund to be designated or continued, as 
the case may be, as the Revenue Fund (the “Revenue Fund”).  Such Fund shall constitute a trust 
fund for the purpose of carrying out the covenants, terms, and conditions of this ordinance, and 
shall be used only in paying the principal of and interest on specified obligations which by their 
terms are payable from Revenue Sharing Receipts, and providing for the establishment of and 
expenditure from the respective accounts as described in this ordinance. 



  In the Revenue Fund, there shall be and there are hereby created and established, 
as appropriate, the separate accounts known as the “Senior Bond and Interest Account”) for 
the Bonds), the “Senior Bond Reserve Account,” the “Junior Bond and Interest Account”, 
“Junior Bond Reserve Account,” the “Depreciation Account,” and the “General Account,” 
to which there shall be credited, without any further official action or direction, in the order in 
which such accounts are hereinafter mentioned, from Revenue Sharing Receipts, to be held in 
such Revenue Fund, in accordance with the following provisions: 

  (a)  Senior Bond and Interest Account. 

  There shall be credited to the Senior Bond and Interest Account and held, in cash 
and investments, the amount of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest 
payment date on applicable Outstanding Senior Bonds, if any, payable from such Account and 
also a the amount of the principal becoming due or subject to mandatory redemption on the next 
succeeding principal maturity or mandatory redemption date of all of the Outstanding Senior 
Bonds, if any, payable from such Account until there shall have been accumulated and held, in 
cash and investments, in the Senior Bond and Interest Account in or before the day next 
preceding such payment date of interest or maturity and/or mandatory redemption date of 
principal, an amount sufficient to pay such principal or interest, or as applicable, the Pledged 
Account funding date to abate Pledged Taxes. 

  Upon issuance of the Bonds, accrued interest from the sale of the Bonds shall be 
deposited into such Account and used to pay first interest due on the Bonds. 

  All moneys in such Account shall be used only for the purpose of paying interest 
on and principal of such Outstanding Senior Bonds.  Such moneys as are sufficient to make 
payments of principal of and interest on such Bonds when due, along with any fees then due, 
shall be transferred to the Paying Agent not less than five (5) days prior to the applicable 
principal or interest payment date. 

  (A) Receipts of Pledged Taxes with respect to the Bonds shall be deposited 
into a separate Pledged Taxes Subaccount of the Junior Debt Service Account and as required by 
this ordinance shall be used solely and only to pay debt service on the Bonds. 

  (B) Within the Junior Debt Service Account there shall be a “Pledged 
Subaccount”.  Moneys deposited/credited to the Junior Debt Service Account in excess of the 
amount qualifying for treatment as a BDSF shall be deposited or credited to the related Pledged 
Subaccount for later transfer to the Junior Debt Service Account when the transferred amount 
will not disqualify the Junior Debt Service Account as a BDSF.  Moneys in the Pledged 
Subaccount are hereby pledged to the payment of the Bonds and are subject to determination and 
payment as to Yield Reduction Payments.   

  (b)  Senior Bond Reserve Account. 



  There shall next be credited to the Senior Bond Reserve Account and held, in cash 
and investments or as otherwise provided, such amount or amounts at such times and frequency 
as may be required in the applicable ordinance or ordinances by which Outstanding Senior 
Bonds are authorized and issued. 

  Amounts to the credit of the Senior Bond Reserve Account shall be used to pay 
principal of or interest on such Outstanding Senior Bonds at any time when there are insufficient 
funds available in the Senior Bond and Interest Account to pay the same as may be provided in 
the applicable ordinances and shall be transferred to such Account for such purpose. 

  (c)  Junior Bond and Interest Account. 

  There next shall be credited to the Junior Bond and Interest Account and held, in 
cash and investments, a fractional amount of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding 
interest payment date on all Outstanding Junior Bonds payable from such Account and also a 
fractional amount of the principal becoming due or subject to mandatory redemption on the next 
succeeding principal maturity or mandatory redemption date of all of the Outstanding Junior 
Bonds payable from such Account until there shall have been accumulated and held, in cash and 
investments, in the Junior Bond and Interest Account in or before the month preceding such 
maturity date of interest or maturity or mandatory redemption date of principal, an amount 
sufficient to pay such principal or interest, or both. 

  In computing the fractional amount to be set aside each month in the Junior Bond 
and Interest Account, the fraction shall be so computed that a sufficient amount will be set aside 
in said Account and will be available for the prompt payment of such principal of and interest on 
all Outstanding Junior Bonds payable from such Account and , subject to an applicable Bond 
Order, shall be not less than 1/6 of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest 
payment date and not less than 1/12 of the principal becoming due or subject to mandatory 
redemption on the next succeeding principal payment or mandatory redemption date on all 
Outstanding Junior Bonds payable from such Account until there is sufficient money in such 
Account to pay such principal or interest, or both. 

  Upon issuance of the Bonds, accrued interest from the sale of the Bonds shall be 
deposited into such Account and used to pay first interest due on the Bonds. 

  All moneys in such Account shall be used only for the purpose of paying interest 
on and principal of such Outstanding Junior Bonds.  Such moneys as are sufficient to make 
payments of principal of and interest on such Bonds when due, along with any fees then due, 
shall be transferred to the Paying Agent not less than five (5) days prior to the applicable 
principal or interest payment date. 

  (d)  Junior Bond Reserve Account. 



  There shall next be credited to the Junior Bond Reserve Account and held, in cash 
and investments or as otherwise provided, such amount or amounts at such times as may be 
required in the applicable ordinance or ordinances by which Outstanding Junior Parity Bonds are 
authorized and issued. 

  Amounts to the credit of the Junior Bond Reserve Account shall be used to pay 
principal of or interest on the Bonds and such other Outstanding Junior Bonds as they may 
secure at any time when there are insufficient funds available in the Junior Bond and Interest 
Account to pay the same as may be provided in the applicable ordinances and shall be transferred 
to said Account for said purpose. 

  (e)  Depreciation Account. 

  No payments need be made to the Depreciation Account, except:  (i) for such 
amount or amounts at such times as may be required in any applicable ordinance or ordinances 
by which Outstanding Bonds payable from the Pledged Revenues are authorized and issued; or 
(ii) that when any money is paid out of such Account, monthly payments into such Account shall 
be resumed and continued until such Account has been restored to the amount required by any 
applicable ordinance or ordinances by which any Outstanding Bonds payable from the Pledged 
Revenues are authorized and issued. 

  Amounts to the credit of such Depreciation Account shall be used as follows:  (i) 
for the payment of the cost of extraordinary maintenance, necessary repairs and replacements, or 
contingencies, or for improvements, repairs or replacements as provided in such other 
ordinances, the payment for which no other funds are available; (ii) as budgeted from time to 
time, and provided the Corporate Authorities have determined that the amount otherwise on 
deposit to the credit of this Account is sufficient at such time for the purposes set forth in clause 
(i) immediately preceding, for the payment of the costs of constructing and acquiring applicable 
improvements and extensions; and (iii) for the payment of principal of or interest on any 
Outstanding bonds payable from Pledged Revenues at any time when there are no other funds 
available for that purpose in order to prevent a default and shall be transferred to the appropriate 
Bond and Interest Account for such purpose.  Whenever an amount is withdrawn from such 
Account for the purpose stated in clause (iii) of this paragraph immediately above, the amount so 
transferred shall be added to the amount to be next and thereafter credited to this Account until 
full reimbursement to this Account has been made. 

  (f)  General Account. 

  All moneys remaining in the Fund, after crediting the required amounts to the 
respective accounts hereinabove provided for, and after making up any deficiency in the 
accounts described in paragraphs (a) through (e), inclusive, shall be credited each month to the 
General Account.  Funds in the General Account shall be used: first, to make up any subsequent 
deficiencies in any of the Accounts hereinabove named; and, second, at the discretion of the 



Corporate Authorities shall be applied for one or more of the following purposes without any 
priority among them: 

  1. For the purpose of calling and redeeming Outstanding Bonds payable from 
Revenue Sharing Receipts; 

  2. For the purpose of purchasing Outstanding Bonds payable from such 
Revenue Sharing Receipts; 

  3. For the purpose of paying principal of and interest on any subordinate 
bonds or obligations; or 

  4. For any other lawful corporate purpose. 

  (g)  Investments:  Money to the credit of the funds and accounts under this part II 
shall be invested from time to time by the Issuer’s City Treasurer in (i) interest-bearing bonds, 
notes, or other direct full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America, (ii) 
obligations unconditionally guaranteed as to both principal and interest by the United States of 
America, or (iii) certificates of deposit or time deposits of any bank or savings and loan 
association, as defined by Illinois laws, provided such bank or savings and loan association is 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or a successor corporation to the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation and provided further that the principal of such deposits are 
secured by a pledge of obligations as described in clauses (g) (i) and (g) (ii) above in the full 
principal amount of such deposits, or otherwise collateralized in such amount and in such 
manner as may be required by law.  Such investments may be sold from time to time by the 
Treasurer of the Issuer as funds may be needed for the purpose for which such Accounts have 
been created.  All interest on any funds so invested shall be credited to the applicable Account of 
the Fund and is hereby deemed and allocated as expended with the next expenditure or 
expenditures of money from the applicable Subaccount or Account of the applicable Fund.  
Moneys in any of such accounts shall be invested by the Issuer’s Treasurer, if necessary, in 
investments restricted as to yield, which investments may be in U.S. Treasury Securities - State 
and Local Government Series, if available, and to such end the Issuer’s Treasurer shall refer to 
any investment restrictions covenanted by the Issuer or any officer thereof as part of the 
transcript of proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds, and to appropriate opinions of counsel. 

(IV) MISCELLANEOUS.  Any amounts to the credit of the Accounts in excess of the then 
current requirements therefor may be transferred at any time by the Corporate Authorities to such 
other Account or Accounts of the same Fund as it may in its sole discretion lawfully designate. 

  (A) Bona Fide Debt Service Fund.  Money preliminary to deposit in applicable 
subsections above for debt service and used to abate taxes under Section 13 below, which if 
deposited into the an applicable Debt Service Account would disqualify such Debt Service 
Account as a “bona fide debt service fund” (“BFDSF”) shall be in qualified Investments, shall 
be held in a separate account designated the “Pledged Account” (the “Pledged Account”) of 



such Debt Service Account and the investment yield thereon yield restricted and subject to yield 
reduction payments.  Funds in the Pledged Account shall be transferred to the applicable Debt 
Service Account at the time and in the manner that would not disqualify such Debt Service 
Account to the extent as a BFDSF. 

  (B) Yield Reduction Payments.  Unless the Issuer shall have requested and 
received an approving written opinion of Bond Counsel to the contrary, moneys on deposit or 
credited to any Pledged Account shall be restricted as to yield to the yield on the Bonds, subject 
to “yield reduction payments”, as applicable, under Section 1.148-5(e) of the Income Tax 
Regulations, which the Issuer shall determine and, as applicable, pay in the same manner as 
arbitrage rebate. 

  Section 13.  Bond Proceeds Account.  Except for accrued interest received on 
the sale of the Bonds (and an amount of applicable Bond proceeds or other available funds to pay 
interest to and including certain initial interest payment dates as specified in an applicable Bond 
Order), which shall be deposited or credited to upon issuance of the Bonds into the applicable 
Debt Service Account, all remaining proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds, and net of 
applicable issuance costs directly to be paid by the Underwriter, shall be deposited in each 
applicable “Bond Proceeds Account”, within which there further shall be, as applicable, a 
“Proceeds Subaccount” with respect to application of excess proceeds to project costs and 
issuance costs, and a “Refunding Subaccount” with respect to applicable Refunding costs not 
paid by a direct deposit into a Refunding Account or for a Refunding Deposit, which are hereby 
established as special accounts and subaccounts of the Issuer.  Moneys in the applicable accounts 
or subaccounts of the Bond Proceeds Account shall be used for the purposes specified in Section 
3 of this ordinance (that is, issuance costs and costs of a project (from excess proceeds) and 
Refunding with respect to which the Bonds are issued) and for the payment of costs of issuance 
of such Bonds, but may thereafter be reallocated and used for other lawful purposes in 
accordance with applicable law.  Before any such reallocation shall be made, there shall be 
requested and filed with the Issuer’s City Clerk, an opinion of Evans, Froehlich, Beth & 
Chamley, Champaign, Illinois, or other nationally recognized Bond counsel (“Bond Counsel”) 
to the effect that such reallocation is authorized and will not adversely affect the tax-exempt 
status of the Bonds under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  
Moneys in each subaccount of the Bond Proceeds Account be withdrawn from time to time as 
needed for the payment of costs and expenses incurred by the Issuer in connection with the 
Refunding and other authorized costs and for paying the fees and expenses incidental thereto.  
Moneys shall be withdrawn from the depositary in connection with such funds from time to time 
by the City Treasurer or other appropriate financial officer of the Issuer only upon submission to 
such officer of the following (provided that funds to refund Prior Obligations shall be directly 
applied without this process either from an applicable Refunding Subaccount or Deposit or 
Refunding Account under a Refunding Agreement): 



A duplicate copy of the order signed by the Mayor or such other officer(s) as may 
from time to time be by law authorized to sign and countersign orders of the 
Issuer, the Bond Proceeds Account and the purpose for which the order is issued 
and indicating that the payment for which the order is issued has been approved 
by the Corporate Authorities. 

Within sixty (60) days after completion of the Refunding or any project related costs, the Mayor 
shall certify to the Corporate Authorities the fact that a project and/or applicable Refunding has 
been completed, and after all costs have been paid, the Mayor shall execute a completion 
certificate and file it with the City Treasurer and in the records of the Issuer certifying that the 
related project has been completed and that all costs have been paid; and, if at that time any 
funds remain in the Bond Proceeds Account, the same shall be applied for other authorized 
improvements or work or such officer shall credit such funds to the applicable Debt Service 
Account, as the Corporate Authorities direct.   

  Section 14.  Issuance of Additional Bonds.  In connection with the Bonds, 
subject to any ordinance or obligation having a higher claim against Pledged Revenues, the 
Issuer reserves the right to issue: 

 (a) Parity Bonds payable from applicable Pledged Revenues, possibly subject 
to an Applicable Percentage Limit, provided that the applicable Pledged Revenues, as 
determined or as adjusted as hereinbelow set out shall be sufficient to provide for or pay 
all of the following (as applicable): (i) Operation and Maintenance expenses of the 
System (with respect to System Net Revenues, but not including depreciation, (ii) debt 
service on all Outstanding bonds payable from such Pledged Revenues computed 
immediately after the issuance of any proposed Parity Bonds, (iii) all amounts required to 
meet any fund or account requirements with respect to such Outstanding bonds, (iv) other 
contractual or tort liability obligations then due and payable, if any, and (e) an additional 
amount not less than 0.25 times debt service (as provided in Section 15 of the Local 
Government Debt Reform Act) on such of the Alternate Bonds as shall remain 
Outstanding bonds after the issuance of the proposed Parity Bonds.  Such sufficiency 
shall be calculated for each year to the final maturity of such Alternate Bonds which shall 
remain Outstanding after the issuance of the proposed Parity Bonds.  The determination 
of the sufficiency of the applicable Pledged Revenues, subject to applicable law, shall be 
supported by reference to the most recent audit of the Issuer, which audit shall be for a 
Fiscal Year ending not earlier than eighteen (18) months previous to the time of issuance 
of the proposed Parity Bonds.  If such audit shows the applicable Pledged Revenues to be 
insufficient, then the determination of sufficiency, supported by a “report” under the 
Local Government Debt Reform Act, may be made in either of the following two ways: 

1. The applicable source of Pledged Revenues may be adjusted, including in 
the event there has been an increase in the rates or revenues of the System, as the 



case may be, from the revenues or the rates in effect for the Fiscal Year of such 
audit (if such rate increase is still in effect at the time of the issuance of such 
proposed Parity Bonds) or other applicable Pledged Revenues are increased, to 
show such Pledged Revenues as they would have been if such increased rates or 
receipts had been in effect during all of said Fiscal Year.  Any such adjusted 
statement of Pledged Revenues shall be evidenced by the certificate of an 
independent consulting engineer, an independent certified public accountant or an 
independent financial consultant employed for such purpose, in accordance with 
applicable law. 

 2. The determination of sufficiency of such Pledged Revenues may 
be supported by the report of an independent accountant or feasibility analyst, the 
latter having a national reputation for expertise in such matters, and as may be the 
case, with no other involvement in any related project, demonstrating the 
sufficiency of the applicable Pledged Revenues and explaining by what means 
they will be greater than as shown in the audit and sufficient under the Local 
Government Debt Reform Act. 

  The reference to and acceptance of an audit, such an adjusted 
statement of the Pledged Revenues, or a report, as the case may be, and the 
determination of the Corporate Authorities of the sufficiency of the applicable 
Pledged Revenues shall be conclusive evidence that the conditions of this Section 
14(a) have been met and that the Parity Bonds are properly issued hereunder; and 
no right to challenge such determination is granted to the registered owners of the 
Bonds. 

 (b) bonds or other obligations payable from applicable Pledged Revenues 
subordinate to the lien of any prior or superior bonds which remain Outstanding after the 
issuance of such bonds or other obligations. 

  Section 15.  Arbitrage Rebate.  The Issuer shall comply with the provisions of 
Section 148(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relating to the rebate of 
certain investment earnings at periodic intervals to the United States of America to the extent 
that there shall have been requested and filed with the Issuer’s City Clerk an opinion of Bond 
Counsel to the effect that such compliance is necessary to preserve the exclusion from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes of interest on any series of the Bonds under Section 103 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  There is hereby authorized to be created a 
separate and special accounts identified to the Bonds, to be known as the “Rebate Account”, 
into which there shall be deposited as necessary investment earnings to the extent required so as 
to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds under Section 148(f) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  All rebates, special impositions or taxes or yield reduction 
payments for such purpose payable to the United States of America (Internal Revenue Service) 



shall be payable from applicable excess earnings or other sources which are to be deposited into 
the Rebate Account. 

  Section 16.  Investment Regulations.  All investments shall be in Qualified 
Investments, unless otherwise expressly herein provided.  No investment shall be made of any 
moneys in the applicable Debt Service Account, related to the Bonds, or the Bond Proceeds 
Account related to the Bonds, except in accordance with the tax covenants and other covenants 
set forth in Section 17 of this ordinance.  All income derived from such investments in respect of 
moneys or securities in any fund or account shall be credited in each case to the fund or account 
in which such moneys or securities are held. 

  Any moneys in any fund or account that are subject to investment yield 
restrictions may be invested in United States Treasury Securities, State and Local Government 
Series, pursuant to the regulations of the United States Treasury Department, Bureau of Public 
Debt.  The City Treasurer or other appropriate financial officer of the Issuer and agents 
designated by such officers are hereby authorized to submit on behalf of the Issuer subscriptions 
for such United States Treasury Securities and to request redemption of such United States 
Treasury Securities. 

  Section 17.  Non-Arbitrage and Tax-Exemption.  One purpose of this Section is 
to set forth various facts regarding the Bonds and to establish the expectations of the Corporate 
Authorities and the Issuer as to future events regarding the Bonds and the use of Bond proceeds.  
The certifications and representations made herein and at the time of the issuance of the Bonds 
are intended, and may be relied upon, as certifications and expectations described in Section 
1.148-1 et seq. of the Income Tax Regulations dealing with arbitrage and rebate (the 
“Regulations”).  The covenants and agreements contained herein and at the time of the issuance 
of the Bonds are made for the benefit of the registered owners from time to time of the Bonds.  
The Corporate Authorities and the Issuer agree, certify, covenant and represent as follows: 

 (a) The Bonds are being issued to pay costs of refinancing the Prior Projects 
by refunding Prior Obligations and related costs and expenses, and all of the amounts 
received upon the sale of the Bonds, plus all investment earnings thereon (the 
“Proceeds”) are needed for the purposes for which the Bonds are being issued.  The 
Prior Obligations will be retired as provided in a Refunding Agreement or as provided 
with respect to one or more Refunding Deposit. 

 (b) The Issuer has entered into, or did within six months from the date of issue 
of the Prior Obligations enter into, and with respect to the projects will enter into, binding 
contracts or commitments obligating it to spend at least 5% of the proceeds of the 
applicable Prior Obligations for constructing, acquiring and installing the related Prior 
Projects.  The work of acquiring, constructing and installing the Prior Projects timely 
commenced and continued to proceed with due diligence to completion within 3 years of 



issuance, at which time all of the Prior Obligations Proceeds were spent and all of the 
Bond Proceeds are expected to be spent.  There are no unspent Prior Obligation proceeds. 

 (c) The Issuer has on hand no funds which could legally and practically be 
used for refunding Prior Obligations and refinancing the related Prior Projects, which are 
not pledged, budgeted, earmarked or otherwise necessary to be used for other purposes.  
Accordingly, no portion of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used (i) directly or 
indirectly to replace funds of the Issuer or any agency, department or division thereof that 
could be used for refunding Prior Obligations, or (ii) to replace any proceeds of the 
Bonds or any prior issuance of obligations by the Issuer.  No portion of the Bonds is 
being issued solely for the purpose of investing Proceeds at a Yield higher than the Yield 
on any issue of Bonds.  For purposes of this Section, “Yield” means that yield (that is, 
the discount rate) which when used in computing the present worth of all payments of 
principal and interest to be paid on an obligation (using semi-annual compounding on the 
basis of a 360-day year) produces an amount equal to the purchase price of the Bonds, 
including accrued interest, and the purchase price of the Bonds is generally equal to the 
first offering price at which more than 10% of the principal amount of each maturity of a 
particular series of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers or 
similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers). 

 (d) All principal proceeds of the Bonds, net of accrued interest and issuance 
costs directly paid by an applicable fiscal agent, will be deposited in the Bond Proceeds 
Account (or applied as Refunding Deposit with the paying agent for the applicable Prior 
Obligations or funding a Refunding Account under a Refunding Agreement) and used to 
pay related costs and Refunding Prior Obligations and costs of issuance of the Bonds, and 
any accrued interest and premium received on the delivery of the Bonds will be deposited 
in the applicable subaccounts of the applicable Debt Service Account and used to pay 
initial interest on the Bonds.  Earnings on the investment of moneys in any fund or 
account or subaccount will be credited to that fund or account.  Other refunding costs, 
including issuance costs of the Bonds, will be paid directly from other proceeds or from 
the Bond Proceeds Account, and no other moneys are expected to be deposited therein.  
This ordinance provides that moneys in the Depreciation Account to an extent related to 
the Applicable Percentage Limit may be applied to pay debt service on Bonds in the 
event there shall be an insufficiency therefor.  However, due to the expected application 
of such moneys to pay costs of replacement, repair and extraordinary maintenance of the 
System, it is unlikely such moneys will be available for such purpose.  Interest on and 
principal of Bonds will be paid from the applicable Debt Service Account.  Except as 
provided in a Refunding Agreement, no Proceeds will be used more than ninety (90) days 
after the date of issue of the Bonds for the purpose of paying any principal or interest on 
any other issue of bonds, notes, certificates or warrants or on any installment contract or 



other obligation of the Issuer or for the purpose of replacing any funds of the Issuer used 
for such purpose. 

 (e) The applicable Debt Service Account (except the related Pledged 
Subaccount) is established to achieve a proper matching of revenues and earnings with 
debt service in each year for the Bonds.  Other than any amounts held to pay principal of 
matured Bonds that have not been presented for payment, it is expected that any moneys 
deposited in the applicable Debt Service Account (except the related Pledged 
Subaccount) will be spent within the 12-month period beginning on the date of deposit 
therein.  Any earnings from the investment of amounts in the applicable Debt Service 
Account (except the related Pledged Subaccount) will be spent within a one-year period 
beginning on the date of receipt of such investment earnings.  Other than any amounts 
held to pay principal of matured Bonds that have not been presented for payment, it is 
expected that the applicable Debt Service Account (except the related Pledged 
Subaccount) will be depleted at least once a year, except for a reasonable carryover 
amount not to exceed the greater of (i) one-year’s earnings on the investment of moneys 
in each Debt Service Account (except the related Pledged Subaccount), or (ii) in the 
aggregate one-twelfth (1/12th) of the annual debt service on the Bonds. 

 (f) Other than the applicable Debt Service Account, no funds or accounts, 
including any Depreciation Account, have been or are expected to be established, and no 
moneys or property have been or are expected to be pledged (no matter where held or the 
source thereof) which will be available to pay, directly or indirectly, the Bonds or 
restricted so as to give reasonable assurance of their availability for such purposes.  No 
property of any kind is pledged to secure, or is available to pay, obligations of the Issuer 
to any credit enhancer or liquidity provider. 

 (g) (i) All amounts on deposit in the Bond Proceeds Account or in the 
applicable Debt Service Account and all Proceeds, no matter in what funds or accounts 
deposited (“Gross Proceeds”), to the extent not exempted in (ii) below, and all amounts 
in any fund or account or subaccount pledged directly or indirectly to the payment of the 
related series of Bonds which will be available to pay, directly or indirectly, the related 
series of Bonds or restricted so as to give reasonable assurance of their availability for 
such purpose contrary to the expectations set forth in (f) above, shall be invested at 
market prices and at a Yield not in excess of the Yield on such Bonds plus, for amounts 
in the applicable Bond Proceeds Account to be applied to finance an applicable project 
with excess proceeds, 1/8 of 1%. 

 (ii) The following may be invested without Yield restriction: 

 (A) amounts invested in obligations described in Section 103(a) 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (but not specified 



private activity bonds as defined in Section 57(a)(5)(C) of the Code), the 
interest on which is not includable in the gross income of any registered 
owner thereof for federal income tax purposes (“Tax-Exempt 
Obligations”); 

 (B) amounts deposited in the applicable Debt Service Account 
(except the related Pledged Subaccount) that are reasonably expected to be 
expended within thirteen (13) months from the deposit date and have not 
been on deposit therein for more than thirteen (13) months; 

 (C) amounts, if any, in the Bond Proceeds Account constituting 
excess proceeds to be applied to a project to the earlier of completion (or 
abandonment) of such improvements or three (3) years from the date of 
issue of the particular series of related Bonds for each such project; 

 (D) an amount not to exceed the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of a 
particular series of Bond proceeds; 

 (E) all amounts for the first thirty (30) days after they become 
Gross Proceeds (e.g., date of deposit in any fund or account securing a 
particular series of Bonds);  

 (F) all amounts (other than with respect to refundings) derived 
from the investment of the Proceeds for a period of one (1) year from the 
date received; and 

 (G) all amounts for a project for up to a 3-year temporary 
period. 

 (h) Subject to (q) below, once moneys are subject to the Yield limits of (g)(i) 
above, such moneys remain Yield restricted until they cease to be Gross Proceeds. 

 (i) Pursuant to Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, the Issuer is excepted from the required rebate of arbitrage profits on the 
Bonds.  The Issuer is a governmental unit with general taxing powers, none of the Bonds 
is a “private activity bond” as defined in Section 141(a) of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended, and all the net proceeds of the Bonds are to be used for the local 
government activities of the Issuer (i.e., Refunding Prior Bonds), the aggregate face 
amount of all tax-exempt obligations (and excluding “private activity bonds” as defined 
in Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) to be issued by the Issuer and all 
subordinate entities thereof (of which there are none) during the calendar year of issuance 
of the Bonds, including the Bonds, is reasonably expected to exceed $5,000,000 to be 
taken into account under such Section 148(f)(4)(D).  In any event, the Issuer reserves the 



right to use any applicable exception from such arbitrage rebate, including the 6-month 
expenditure and 2-year construction spend down exception under Section 148(f)(4)(C) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the 18-month expenditure exception 
under Section 1.148-7(d) of the Regulations, and the Mayor is authorized to select and 
document any such exception. 

 (j) None of the Proceeds will be used, directly or indirectly, to replace funds 
which were used in any business carried on by any person other than a state or local 
governmental unit. 

 (k) The payment of the principal of or the interest on any series of the Bonds 
will not be, directly or indirectly: (A) secured by any interest in (i) property used or to be 
used for a private business use by any person other than a state or local governmental 
unit, or (ii) payments in respect of such property, or (B) derived from payments (whether 
or not by or to the Issuer), in respect of property, or borrowed money, used or to be used 
for a private business use by any person other than a state or local governmental unit. 

 (l) None of the Proceeds will be used, directly or indirectly, to make or 
finance loans to persons other than a state or local governmental unit. 

 (m) No user of any Prior Project, other than a state or local government unit, 
will use such Prior Project on any basis other than the same basis as the general public, 
and no person other than a state or local governmental unit will be a user of such Prior 
Projects as a result of (i) ownership, or (ii) actual or beneficial use pursuant to a lease or a 
management or incentive payment contract, or (iii) any other similar arrangement. 

 (n) Beginning on the 15th day prior to the sale date of Bonds, the Issuer has 
not sold or delivered, and will not sell or deliver, (nor will it deliver within 15 days after 
the date of issuance of such Bonds) any other obligations pursuant to a common plan of 
financing, which will be paid out of substantially the same source of funds (or which will 
have substantially the same claim to be paid out of substantially the same source of 
funds) as the particular series of Bonds or will be paid directly or indirectly from 
Proceeds. 

 (o) No portion of any Prior Project is expected to be sold or otherwise 
disposed of prior to the last maturity of the Bonds. 

 (p) The Issuer has not been notified of any disqualification or proposed 
disqualification of it by the Internal Revenue Service as a bond issuer which may certify 
bond issues under Section 1.148-0 et seq. of the Regulations. 

 (q) The Yield restrictions contained in (g) above or any other restriction or 
covenant contained herein need not be observed and may be changed if the Issuer 



receives an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such non-observance or change 
will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of interest on any series of Bonds to which 
such Bonds otherwise are entitled. 

 (r) The Issuer acknowledges that any changes in facts or expectations from 
those set forth herein may result in different Yield restrictions or rebate requirements 
from those set forth herein and that Bond Counsel should be contacted if such changes do 
occur. 

 (s) The Corporate Authorities have no reason to believe the facts, estimates, 
circumstances and expectations set forth herein are untrue or incomplete in any material 
respect.  On the basis of such facts, estimates, circumstances and expectations, it is not 
expected that the Proceeds or any other moneys or property will be used in a manner that 
will cause the Bonds to be private activity bonds, arbitrage bonds or hedge bonds within 
the meaning of Sections 141, 148 or 149(g) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, and of applicable regulations.  To the best of the knowledge and belief of the 
Corporate Authorities, such expectations are reasonable, and there are no other facts, 
estimates and circumstances that would materially change such expectations. 

The Issuer also agrees and covenants with the owners of Bonds from time to time outstanding 
that, to the extent possible under Illinois law, it will comply with all present federal tax law and 
related regulations and with whatever federal tax law is adopted and regulations promulgated in 
the future which apply to such Bonds and affect the tax-exempt status of such Bonds. 

  Section 18.  Further Assurances and Actions.  The Corporate Authorities 
hereby authorize the officials of the Issuer responsible for issuing the Bonds, the same being the 
Issuer’s Mayor, City Clerk, City Administrator and City Treasurer, to make such further filings, 
covenants, certifications and supplemental agreements (including but not limited to a Purchase 
Agreement, Disclosure Agreement, Refunding Agreement and Arbitrage Regulation Agreement)  
as may be necessary to assure that any new project, the Prior Projects, the Bonds, and related 
proceeds, will not cause any of the Bonds to be private activity bonds, arbitrage bonds or hedge 
bonds and to assure that the interest on the Bonds will be excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes and that there will be compliance by the Underwriter with Rule 15c2-12.  In 
connection therewith, the Issuer and the Corporate Authorities further agree:  (a) through the 
officers of the Issuer, to make such further specific covenants, representations as shall be true, 
correct and complete, and assurances as may be necessary or advisable; (b) to consult with Bond 
Counsel approving the Bonds and to comply with such advice as may be given; (c) to pay to the 
United States, as necessary, such sums of money representing required rebates of excess 
arbitrage profits relating to the Bonds; (d) to file such forms, statements, and supporting 
documents as may be required and in a timely manner; and (e) if deemed necessary or advisable, 
to employ and pay fiscal agents, financial advisors, attorneys, and other persons to assist the 
Issuer in such compliance.  The call (and other arrangements) to retire the Prior Obligations is 



hereby authorized and approved or ratified if already given and abatement of related prior 
pledged taxes and/or levied taxes is authorized upon the Refundings. 

  Section 19.  General Covenants.  The Issuer covenants and agrees with the 
owners of the Outstanding Bonds, so long as there are any Outstanding Bonds (as defined herein) 
of the applicable series, as follows: 

 (a) The Issuer will take all action necessary to impose, levy and collect the 
applicable Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Taxes at the times, in the manner and with 
the effect contemplated by this ordinance, and such Pledged Revenues (subject to the 
Applicable Percentage Limit) shall not be less than as shall be required under Section 15 
of the Local Government Debt Reform Act to maintain the Bonds as Alternate Bonds 
according to their terms. 

 (b) In connection with Alternate Bonds, the Issuer covenants that it will, while 
any of the Bonds shall remain outstanding, charge rates and fees (including for usage of 
the System in connection with Net Revenues) which, together with any other Pledged 
Revenues applicable to the Bonds, are sufficient to provide for or pay each of the 
following in any given year:  (1) Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the System (but 
not including depreciation); (2) debt service on all Outstanding revenue bonds payable 
from the applicable Pledged Revenues; (3) all amounts required to meet any fund or 
account requirements with respect to the Bonds, remaining Prior Obligations, as 
applicable, or any other obligations payable from applicable Pledged Revenues; (4) any 
other contractual or tort liability obligations, if any, payable from applicable Pledged 
Revenues; and (5) in each year, an amount not less than 1.25 times the debt service for all 
(i) Alternate Bonds payable from applicable Pledged Revenues, and the Bonds 
Outstanding; and (ii) Alternate Bonds proposed to be issued and payable from the 
applicable Pledged Revenues. 

 (c) Whenever the 125% coverage in subsection (b) above is not effected or 
any  Alternate Bonds under this ordinance at any time fail to qualify as Alternate Bonds 
not subject to any applicable debt limit under Section 15 of the Local Government Debt 
Reform Act Pledged Taxes are extended and collected as in Section 10 hereof, the Issuer 
covenants to promptly have prepared a financial analysis of, as applicable, Net Revenues 
of the System or other applicable Pledged Revenues by an independent consulting 
accountant or other qualified professional employed for that purpose, and further, to send 
a copy of such analysis, when completed, to the Underwriter of the Bonds along with a 
letter indicating what action the Issuer has taken responsive to such study and to comply 
with Section 15 of the Local Government Debt Reform Act. 

 (d) The Issuer will make and keep proper books and accounts (separate and 
apart from all other records and accounts of the Issuer), in which complete entries shall 



be made of all transactions relating to the Pledged Taxes, the Pledged Revenues and the 
operation of the System, and hereby covenants that within 120 days following the close 
of each Fiscal Year, it will cause the books and accounts related to the Pledged Revenues 
and the System and the Pledged Taxes, to be audited by independent certified public 
accountants.  Such audit will be available for inspection by owners of any of the Bonds.  
Supplemental to any Disclosure Agreement, upon availability, the Issuer upon request 
will send to the Underwriter a copy of such audit and of its general audit in each year.  
Each such audit, in addition to whatever matters may be thought proper by the 
accountants to be included therein, shall, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
include the following: 

 (i) A balance sheet as of the end of such Fiscal Year, including a 
statement of the amount held in each of the funds and accounts under this 
ordinance. 

(ii) A list of all insurance policies in force at the end of the Fiscal 
Year, setting out as to each policy the amount of the policy, the risks covered, the 
name of the insurer, and the expiration date of the policy. 

(iii) The amount and details of all Outstanding bonds. 

(iv) The accountants comments regarding the manner in which the 
Issuer has carried out the accounting requirements of this ordinance (including as 
to the Alternate Bond, the status of the Bonds), including the Applicable 
Percentage Limit, and has complied with Section 15 of the Local Government 
Debt Reform Act, and the accountants recommendations for any changes. 

It is further covenanted and agreed that a copy of each such audit upon request shall be 
furnished upon completion to the Underwriter. 

 (e) The Issuer will keep its books and accounts in accordance with generally 
accepted fund reporting practices for local government entities and enterprise funds; 
provided, however, that the monthly credits to the applicable Debt Service Account shall 
be in cash, and such funds shall be held separate and apart in cash and investments.  For 
the purpose of determining whether sufficient cash and investments are on deposit in 
such accounts under the terms and requirements of this ordinance, investments shall be 
valued at the lower of the cost or market price on the valuation date thereof, which 
valuation date shall be not less frequently than annually. 

 (f) The Issuer will take no action in relation to the Pledged Revenues or the 
Pledged Taxes which would unfavorably affect the security of any of the Outstanding 
Bonds or the prompt payment of the principal and interest thereon or qualification of any 
Bonds as Alternate Bonds. 



 (g) The owner of any Bond may proceed by civil action to compel 
performance of all duties required by law and this ordinance. 

 (h) The Issuer will adopt a budget and/or approve appropriations for the 
System and its general fund prior to the beginning of each Fiscal Year (or in the next 
quarter if applicable law permits), subject to all applicable laws, providing for payment of 
all sums to be due in the Fiscal Year or Bond Year so as to comply with the terms of this 
ordinance.  The budget may include in its estimate of income the use of available surplus 
moneys or other funds of the Issuer appropriated for such purposes.  If during the Fiscal 
Year there are extraordinary receipts or payments of unusual cost, the Issuer will adopt an 
amended budget for the remainder of the Fiscal Year, providing for receipts or payments 
pursuant to this ordinance. 

 (i) The Issuer will comply with the special covenants concerning Alternate 
Bonds as required by Section 15 of the Local Government Debt Reform Act and this 
ordinance.      

 (j) The Issuer will not sell, lease, loan, mortgage or in any manner dispose of 
or encumber the System or the Prior Projects (subject to the right of the Issuer to issue 
additional bonds (i.e. including Parity Bonds) as provided in this ordinance, to issue 
obligations subordinate to the applicable Outstanding Bonds, and to dispose of real or 
personal property which is no longer useful or necessary to the operation of the System or 
to the function of the Prior Projects), and the Issuer will take no action in relation to the 
System, any project or the Prior Projects which would unfavorably affect the security of 
any of applicable Outstanding Bonds or the prompt payment of the principal and interest 
thereon. 

 (k) The Issuer will pay, or cause to be paid, as the same become due, all taxes 
and governmental charges of any kind whatsoever that may at any time be lawfully 
assessed, imposed or levied against the System or the Issuer or to the Prior Projects. 

 (l) The Issuer will carry insurance on the System and on the Prior Projects of 
the kinds and in the amounts which are usually carried by private parties operating 
similar properties, covering such risks as shall be recommended by a competent 
consulting engineer or insurance consultant employed by the Issuer for the purpose of 
making such recommendations.  All moneys received for loss under such insurance 
policies shall be deposited in a segregated insurance account and used in making good the 
loss or damage in respect of which they were paid, either by repairing the property 
damaged or making replacement of the property destroyed, and provision for making 
good such loss or damage shall be made within ninety (90) days from the date of the loss.  
The payment of premiums for all insurance policies required under the provisions of this 
covenant in connection with the facilities related to the System shall be considered an 



Operation and Maintenance Expense for the System.  The proceeds derived from any and 
all policies for workers compensation or public liability shall be paid into a segregated 
account and used in paying the claims on account of which they were received. 

 (m) After their issuance, to the extent lawful the Bonds shall be incontestable 
by the Issuer. 

  Section 20.  Ordinance to Constitute a Contract.  The provisions of this 
ordinance shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the owners of the Bonds.  Any 
pledge made in this ordinance and the provisions, covenants and agreements herein set forth to 
be performed by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security 
of the registered owners of any and all of the Bonds.  All of the Alternate Bonds issued under 
this ordinance, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, shall be of equal rank in the 
related Pledged Revenues without preference, priority or distinction of any of such Bonds over 
any other thereof, except as expressly provided in or pursuant to this ordinance.  This ordinance, 
as supplemented and amended, shall constitute full authority for the issuance of the Bonds, and 
to the extent that the provisions thereof conflict with the provisions of any other ordinance or 
resolution of the Issuer, the provisions of this ordinance shall control. 

  Section 21.  Severability and No Contest.  If any section, paragraph or provision 
of this ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining 
provisions of this ordinance or any ordinance supplemental hereto.  Upon the issuance of the 
Bonds, neither the Bonds nor this ordinance shall be subject to contest by or in respect of the 
Issuer, to the extent lawful. 

  Section 22.  Bank Qualified Bonds.  Pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the Issuer as applicable at the time of sale and 
delivery of Bonds shall designate in an applicable Bond Order such Bonds as “qualified tax-
exempt obligations” as defined in Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended.  The Issuer by any such designation represents that the reasonably anticipated amount 
of tax-exempt obligations that will be issued by the Issuer and all subordinate entities (of which 
there are none) of the Issuer during the calendar year in which the Bonds are issued will not 
exceed $10,000,000 within the meaning of or to be taken into account under Section 265(b)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  The Issuer by any such designation covenants 
that in that connection it will not so designate and issue more than $10,000,000 aggregate 
principal amount of tax-exempt obligations in such calendar year.  For purposes of this Section, 
the term “tax-exempt obligations” includes “qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds” (as defined in the 
Section 145 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) but does not include other 
“private activity bonds” (as defined in Section 141 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended).  The Issuer anticipates designating the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations,” 
but reserves the right in a Bond Order to redesignate such Bonds. 



  Section 23.  Conflict.   All ordinances, resolutions or parts thereof in conflict 
herewith be and the same are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict and this ordinance 
shall be in full force and effect forthwith upon its adoption.  This ordinance has remained 
continuously on file with the City Clerk for public inspection, in the form in which it finally 
passed, for at least one week before the final passage thereof.  

  Section 24.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective immediately 
upon its adoption and approval in the manner provided by law, and upon its becoming effective 
and upon or prior to the issuance of any Bonds a certified copy of this ordinance, together with a 
related Bond Order setting Pledged Taxes, shall be filed with the County Clerk of Coles County, 
Illinois. 

 Upon motion by Commissioner Owen, seconded by  Commissioner Hall, adopted this 20th 
day of May, 2014, by roll call vote as follows: 

 Ayes (Names): Commissioner Cox, Commissioner Graven, 
Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Owen,  
Mayor Gover  

 Nays (Names): None 
Absent (Names): None 

 
      APPROVED:  May 20, 2014 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ATTEST:     /s/ Timothy D. Gover 
       Mayor 
/s/Susan J. O’Brien 
      City Clerk 
 

Mayor Gover opened the floor for comments/discussion.  Mr. Dan Forbes, Vice President 
of Speer Financial, Inc., addressed the Council regarding the upcoming bond refunding.  He 
expected a good reception with good markets and low yields, an overall savings range of 
$200,000 over a lifetime of the bonds, and Moody’s reaffirming of the City’s A1 rating.  He 
commended Administrator Gill and Finance Director & Treasurer Wright on their meeting with 
Moody’s.  Administrator Gill thanked Mr. Forbes for his assistance with preparing for the 
Moody’s meeting.  Mayor Gover opened the floor for further comments with no response. 

 
Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 

Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA 
Mayor Gover. 
 

Commissioner Owen seconded by Commissioner Graven moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2014-1513, approving an interfund loan in the amount of $40,000 from the 
General Fund to the Mattoon Library.  

 



Mayor Gover opened the floor for comments/discussion.  Commissioner Owen noted the 
loan was a standard operating procedure. 

 
Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 

Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA 
Mayor Gover. 

 
Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to approve Council Decision 

Request 2014-1514, authorizing the purchase of one 2014 Chevrolet Tahoe Police Interceptor 
vehicle from Miles Chevrolet in Decatur in the amount of $30,615 for the Mattoon Police 
Department.   

 
Mayor Gover opened the floor for comments/discussion which was followed with no 

response. 
 
Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 

Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA 
Mayor Gover. 
 

Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Cox moved to approve Council Decision 
Request 2014-1515, approving the bid specifications for replacement windows at the Mattoon 
Police Department and authorizing the solicitation of bids for the replacement windows.   

 
Mayor Gover opened the floor for comments/discussion.  Council with input from 

Administrator Gill and Chief Branson discussed the bid alternates, complete replacement of all 
windows, previously received quotes, and need for replacing the windows. 

 
Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 

Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA 
Mayor Gover.  
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
 CITY ADMINISTRATOR/ COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT elaborated on various 
meetings attended, additional budget completion and wireless lease agreement preparation.  
Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no response. 
 
 CITY ATTORNEY announced an upcoming liquor license violation hearing.  Mayor 
Gover opened the floor for questions with no response. 
 
 CITY CLERK noted payroll updates due to the settlement of the Fire union contract, 
several new summer personnel, birth/death certificates, and rentals of the Burgess Osborne.  
Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no response. 
 
 FINANCE presented the April Financial Report and noted an improved condition.  
Administrator Gill noted some payments received for the delinquent hotel/motel taxes. 



 
 PUBLIC WORKS updated Council on the Public Works activities and projects, State 
mowing right-of-ways, approaching City-wide Cleanup Day, and promotion of Stan Kenton to 
Street/Utility Supervisor.   Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no response. 
 
 FIRE noted several public relations activities.  Mayor Gover opened the floor for 
questions with no response. 
 
 POLICE had nothing new to report. 
 
COMMENTS BY THE COUNCIL 
 
 Commissioners Cox, Graven, Hall, and Owen had no further comments. 
 

Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Owen move to recess to closed session at 6:57 
p.m. pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act for the purpose of discussing the appointment, 
employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the 
City (5ILCS/20 (2)(C)(1)). 

 
Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 

Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA 
Mayor Gover.  

 
Council reconvened at 7:14 p.m. 

 
Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Cox moved to adjourn at 7:14 p.m. 
 
Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 

Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, NAY Commissioner Owen, YEA 
Mayor Gover. 
 
          /s/ Susan J. O’Brien 
                    City Clerk  
  
 



BILLS & PAYROLL: 
 
BILLS & PAYROLL BEGIN ON NEXT PAGE. 
 



CITY OF MATTOON

5‐23‐14 PAYROLL

5‐3‐14/5‐16‐14

G/L ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME AMOUNT

CITY COUNCIL 110 5110‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,476.91$       

CITY CLERK 110 5120‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,663.21$       

110 5120‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,230.62$       

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 110 5130‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 960.37$         

110 5130‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 240.08$         

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 110 5150‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,396.11$       

110 5150‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 26.90$           

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS 110 5170‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,525.09$       

POLICE ADMINISTRATION 110 5211‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 14,344.91$    

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 110 5212‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,591.83$    

110 5212‐113 OVERTIME 268.04$         

PATROL  110 5213‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 79,966.00$    

110 5213‐113 OVERTIME 6,474.64$       

K‐9 SERVICE 110 5214‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,562.43$       

110 5214‐113 OVERTIME 673.92$         

SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM 110 5227‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,628.80$       

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN 110 5241‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 71,153.25$    

110 5241‐112 SALARIES OF PART‐TIME EMPLOYEE 532.00$         

110 5241‐113 OVERTIME 8,301.37$       

110 5241‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 10,311.18$    

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN  110 5261‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,310.51$       

110 5261‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 443.26$         

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 110 5310‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,155.13$       

110 5310‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 368.75$         

STREETS 110 5320‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 26,328.95$    

110 5320‐113 OVERTIME 560.96$         

110 5320‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,668.71$       

CUSTODIAL SERVICES 110 5381‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,904.66$       

110 5381‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 496.23$         

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE  110 5390‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 864.26$         

110 5390‐113 OVERTIME 10.12$           

PARK ADMINISTRATION 110 5511‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,176.58$       

110 5511‐112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,155.00$       

110 5511‐113 OVERTIME 1,871.11$       

110 5511‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,867.00$       

LAKE ADMINISTRATION 110 5512‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,202.53$       

110 5512‐112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,480.00$       

110 5512‐113 OVERTIME 573.07$         

CEMETERY 110 5570‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,310.49$       

110 5570‐112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 2,630.00$       

110 5570‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 812.90$         

*** FUND 110 TOTALS *** 290,517.88$  



CITY OF MATTOON

5‐23‐14 PAYROLL

5‐3‐14/5‐16‐14

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION  122 5653‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 932.59$         

122 5653‐112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 889.00$         

122 5653‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 932.65$         

*** FUND 122 TOTALS *** 2,754.24$       

WATER TREATMENT PLANT 211 5353‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 13,065.24$    

211 5353‐112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 800.00$         

211 5353‐113 OVERTIME 77.19$           

211 5353‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,146.91$       

211 5354‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 7,217.18$       

WATER DISTRIBUTION 211 5354‐113 OVERTIME 150.91$         

211 5354‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,666.10$       

211 5355‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,734.80$       

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 211 5355‐113 OVERTIME 34.82$           

211 5355‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 346.71$         

211 5356‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,709.51$       

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 211 5356‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 366.69$         

*** FUND 211 TOTALS *** 36,316.06$    

212 5342‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 7,690.13$       

SANITARY SEWER MTCE & CLEAN 212 5342‐113 OVERTIME 29.09$           

212 5342‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 227.82$         

212 5344‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 17,214.36$    

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 212 5344‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 385.79$         

212 5345‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,734.81$       

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  212 5345‐113 OVERTIME 34.83$           

212 5345‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 346.74$         

212 5346‐111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,709.51$       

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 212 5346‐114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 366.69$         

*** FUND 212 TOTALS *** 37,739.77$    

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 367,327.95$  



CITY OF MATTOON

5‐23‐14 PAYROLL

5‐3‐14/5‐16‐14

*** PAY CODE TOTALS ***

NO OF TIMES                    HOURS AMOUNT

PAY CODE

74 74 42,891.70$    

CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

41 2,101.25 41,758.48$    

REGULAR PAY

12 95.25 2,293.55$       

SICK PAY‐AFSCME

120 9,583.60 239,178.05$  

SALARY PAY

31 119 2,815.67$       

HOLIDAY PAY‐REGULAR

30 30 512.62$         

BACK PAY

1 15.75 398.05$         

SICK‐FD UNION

20 234 6,010.17$       

VACATION PAY

43 495.5 17,923.53$    

OVERTIME PAY

11 288 7,061.62$       

VACATION PAY

29 29 362.50$         

PEHP

2 48 48.00$           

CAPTAIN PAY

6 196.5 4,672.67$       

SICK‐NON UNION

4 264 158.40$         

SHIFT PAY

3 152 106.40$         

SHIFT PAY

6 19.5 ‐$                

COMP EARNED

2 42 1,136.54$       

STRAIGHT OT POLICE



 5/30/2014  9:35 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: ACBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 505  ARTS COUNCIL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002655 MULTI-PRINT SOLUTIONS  I-935                110 5505-833        EXHIBITS/PERF: SMITHSONIAN TICKETS  120571          35.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002655  TOTALS             35.50

 

01-002838 JENNY OSBORNE          I-201405296873       110 5505-836        ARTS FESTIVAL: POSTCARDS            120572         112.88

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002838  TOTALS            112.88

 

01-003107 MINDY SANDERS          I-201405296875       110 5505-833        EXHIBITS/PERF: REIMBURSE OFFICE SUP 120573         126.32

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003107  TOTALS            126.32

 

01-003222 WENGER CORPORATION     I-658160             110 5505-319        SUPPLIES     : WENGER CORPORATION   120560      10,000.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003222  TOTALS         10,000.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 505   ARTS COUNCIL             TOTAL:      10,274.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 110   GENERAL FUND             TOTAL:      10,274.70

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:      10,274.70



 5/30/2014  9:35 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2014-2015 110-5505-319        SUPPLIES                       10,000.00           0      10,000.00-  Y

          110-5505-833        EXHIBITS/PERFORMANCES             161.82           0         414.82-  Y

          110-5505-836        ARTS FESTIVALS                    112.88           0         112.88-  Y

                                TOTAL:                       10,274.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-505                 ARTS COUNCIL                                     10,274.70

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    110  TOTAL              GENERAL FUND                                     10,274.70

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                      10,274.70

    NO ERRORS



   5/20/2014  9:15 AM                             A / P  CHECK REGISTER                                            PAGE:   1

PACKET:      07205 Regular Payments

  VENDOR SET:  01

  BANK      :  APBNK  GENERAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

                                                               CHECK   CHECK                                CHECK          CHECK

  VENDOR   NAME / I.D.           DESC                          TYPE    DATE        DISCOUNT      AMOUNT      NO#          AMOUNT

 

  002166  ZOLLMANN TRAILER SALES, INC.

          I-1254                CARGO TRAILER                    R  5/20/2014                  8,100.00CR  120509       8,100.00

 

                    * *  T O T A L S  * *              NO#       DISCOUNTS        CHECK AMT        TOTAL APPLIED

                      REGULAR CHECKS:                   1            0.00          8,100.00            8,100.00

                      HANDWRITTEN CHECKS:               0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      PRE-WRITE CHECKS:                 0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      DRAFTS:                           0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      VOID CHECKS:                      0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      NON CHECKS:                       0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      CORRECTIONS:                      0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      REGISTER TOTALS:                  1            0.00          8,100.00            8,100.00

TOTAL ERRORS:   0              TOTAL WARNINGS:   0



   5/20/2014  9:15 AM                             A / P  CHECK REGISTER                                            PAGE:   2

PACKET:      07205 Regular Payments

  VENDOR SET:  01

  BANK      :  APBNK  GENERAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

                                                               CHECK   CHECK                                CHECK          CHECK

  VENDOR   NAME / I.D.           DESC                          TYPE    DATE        DISCOUNT      AMOUNT      NO#          AMOUNT

 

                                                     ** POSTING PERIOD RECAP **

                                              FUND          PERIOD               AMOUNT

                                              -------------------------------------------

 

                                               125          5/2014             8,100.00CR

                                              ===========================================

                                               ALL                             8,100.00CR



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: N/A  NON-DEPARTMENTAL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-017200 FIRE PENSION FUND      I-201405226756       110 2172-001        DUE TO FIREFI: APRIL & MAY PPRT     120514      95,602.35

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017200  TOTALS         95,602.35

 

01-030100 MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY I-201405226757       110 2172-000        DUE TO LIBRAR: APRIL & MAY PPRT     120518      15,503.08

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030100  TOTALS         15,503.08

 

01-038700 POLICE PENSION FUND    I-201405226755       110 2172-002        DUE TO POLICE: APRIL & MAY PPRT     120520      95,602.36

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-038700  TOTALS         95,602.36

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT       NON-DEPARTMENTAL         TOTAL:     206,707.79

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001680 ECIDC                  I-134                110 5110-571        DUES & MEMBER: ANNUAL DUES          120611         375.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001680  TOTALS            375.00

 

01-002906 MATTOON ARTS COUNCIL   I-201405286853       110 5110-826        ARTS COUNCIL : FY 4/30/15 FUNDING   120635       5,000.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002906  TOTALS          5,000.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296871       110 5110-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-4633             120603          48.16

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS             48.16

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 110   CITY COUNCIL             TOTAL:       5,423.16

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296888       110 5120-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5654             120603         264.53

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            264.53

 

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-201405226762       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: 5-13/19 CITY CLERK H 000000          20.50

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-201405306903       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: CITY CLERK 5-13/19 H 000000          20.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-024060  TOTALS             41.00

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 120  CITY CLERK

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-024075 IL DEPT OF PUBLIC HEAL I-201405296882       110 5120-801        VITAL RECORDS: MAY VR FEES          120624       1,360.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-024075  TOTALS          1,360.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 120   CITY CLERK               TOTAL:       1,665.53

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-132113             110 5150-576        SECURITY SERV: MONITORING           120608         300.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012025  TOTALS            300.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296888       110 5150-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5654             120603          57.76

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS             57.76

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:         357.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-020975 HEART TECHNOLOGIES INC I-59607              110 5170-852        NETWORK SECUR: EMAIL SECURITY       120623       1,800.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-020975  TOTALS          1,800.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 170   COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS    TOTAL:       1,800.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001404 RYAN HURST             I-201405306902       110 5211-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 6/26-29        120564         118.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001404  TOTALS            118.00

 

01-001835 KASEY ALEXANDER        I-201405306901       110 5211-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 6/24-27        120562          93.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001835  TOTALS             93.00

 

01-001939 RYAN KOOP              I-201405306900       110 5211-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 6/26-29        120565         118.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001939  TOTALS            118.00

 

01-002215 SIG SAUER INC          I-1911174            110 5211-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SIG SAUER INC        120658         570.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002215  TOTALS            570.00

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 211  POLICE ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002401 SMITHAMUNDSEN          I-440599             110 5211-519        OTHER PROFESS: LEGAL SERVICES       120659      35,723.16

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002401  TOTALS         35,723.16

 

01-003120 TREVOR EASTON          I-201405226769       110 5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TOBACCO COMPLIANCE   120513          50.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003120  TOTALS             50.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405226763       110 5211-532        TELEPHONE    : 045-2243             120512          61.65

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296878       110 5211-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-2677             120603       1,601.14

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS          1,662.79

 

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-1427125-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: NAMEBAR              120648          32.12

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037800  TOTALS             32.12

 

01-038400 PITNEY BOWES INC       I-5093316-MY14       110 5211-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE MACHINE LEAS 120645         130.26

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-038400  TOTALS            130.26

 

01-039221 PRECISION CARTRIDGE IN I-1176               110 5211-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: PRECISION CARTRIDGE  120646       9,545.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039221  TOTALS          9,545.00

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-04163              110 5211-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: OFFICE SUPPLIES      120661         199.99

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1066846191         110 5211-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: OFFICE SUPPLIES      120661         199.99

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1081172541         110 5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      120661          71.97

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1081820451         110 5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      120661          31.49

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043522  TOTALS            503.44

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 211   POLICE ADMINISTRATION    TOTAL:      48,545.77

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001523 VERIZON WIRELESS       I-1733622            110 5212-579        MISC OTHER PU: SMS 4/13-15          120669          50.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001523  TOTALS             50.00

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     4

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 212  CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002337 SAFARILAND, LLC        I-I14-063313         110 5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS: EVIDENCE SUPPLIES    120652         950.91

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002337  TOTALS            950.91

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 212   CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION   TOTAL:       1,000.91

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000735 MILES CHEVROLET INC    I-201405226770       110 5223-743        MEF CONTRIBUT: 2014 TAHOE           120519      30,615.60

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000735  TOTALS         30,615.60

 

01-002019 BARBECK COMMUNICATIONS I-229456             110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SQUAD REPAIR         120582         180.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002019  TOTALS            180.00

 

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-219762             110 5223-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   120618          27.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017000  TOTALS             27.00

 

01-034603 MEARS AUTOMOTIVE, INC. I-13767              110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SQUAD REPAIRS        120637          73.43

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-034603  TOTALS             73.43

 

01-041000 SECRETARY OF STATE     I-201405296877       110 5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS: RENEW STICKER        120656         101.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-041000  TOTALS            101.00

 

01-041001 SEC OF STATE           I-201405296876       110 5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TITLE & TRANSFER OF  120655          95.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-041001  TOTALS             95.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 223   AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES      TOTAL:      31,092.03

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001408 INDUSTRIAL MECHANICAL  I-6842               110 5224-439        OTHER REPAIR : AIR UNIT REPAIRS     120628         712.40

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001408  TOTALS            712.40

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     5

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 224  POLICE BUILDINGS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-003025 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405296879       110 5224-321        UTILITIES    : 29TH & PINE          120578          18.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003025  TOTALS             18.00

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286785       110 5224-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596          75.94

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286798       110 5224-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597           1.00

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286802       110 5224-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597           6.00

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286805       110 5224-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597          11.48

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS             94.42

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405296887       110 5224-321        UTILITIES    : PISTOL RANGE         120601         190.91

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008600  TOTALS            190.91

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146707       110 5224-321        UTILITIES    : 1710 WABASH          000000         214.66

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146708       110 5224-321        UTILITIES    : 221 S 17TH           000000          46.39

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS            261.05

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 224   POLICE BUILDINGS         TOTAL:       1,276.78

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001010 DENNIS CAMFIELD        I-201405286778       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 5/20           120590          10.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001010  TOTALS             10.00

 

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405286869       110 5241-321        UTILITIES    : 1801 PRAIRIE         120577         100.77

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            100.77

 

01-001847 JASON WEISS            I-201405286779       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 5/20           120670          10.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001847  TOTALS             10.00

 

01-001984 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LL I-81430138           110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: HAND CLEANSER        120587           5.04

01-001984 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LL I-81431356           110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: MEDICAL SUPPLIES     120587         235.16

01-001984 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LL I-81436527           110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: MEDICAL SUPPLIES     120587         662.18

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001984  TOTALS            902.38

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     6

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002039 NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTI I-6049669X           110 5241-571        DUE & MEMBERS: MEMBERSHIP           120640         165.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002039  TOTALS            165.00

 

01-002469 CRAIG ANTENNA SERVICE, I-63307              110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SIREN REPAIRS        120605       1,057.15

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002469  TOTALS          1,057.15

 

01-002815 DUSTIN RHOADS          I-201405286780       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAVEL 5/18-24       120649         183.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002815  TOTALS            183.50

 

01-003030 AVOCATION SOFTWARE     I-7724               110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: ANNUAL SUPPORT FEE   120581         150.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003030  TOTALS            150.00

 

01-003036 BROOKE CAREY           I-201405276774       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAVEL 5/20-21       120591         163.40

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003036  TOTALS            163.40

 

01-003218 TYLER JOHNS            I-201405226759       110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: REIMBURSE EQUIPMENT  120516          22.77

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003218  TOTALS             22.77

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286795       110 5241-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596           2.14

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS              2.14

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87293              110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87294              110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87302              110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009870  TOTALS             81.00

 

01-012970 DON BAKER'S PEST CONTR I-593                110 5241-579        MISC OTHER PU: PEST CONTROL         120610          75.00

01-012970 DON BAKER'S PEST CONTR I-594                110 5241-579        MISC OTHER PU: PEST CONTROL         120610          40.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012970  TOTALS            115.00

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     7

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C82286             110 5241-326        FUEL         : JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 120515          29.95

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016000  TOTALS             29.95

 

01-016145 FEDERAL SIGNAL CORP    I-4184890            110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: FEDERAL SIGNAL CORP  120617         852.78

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016145  TOTALS            852.78

 

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-219760a            110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   120618          30.50

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-219808             110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   120618          47.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017000  TOTALS             78.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405226758       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2448             120512          42.69

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405286781       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2442             120603          58.85

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405286782       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0924             120603          52.79

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405286783       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0931             120603          44.14

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296891       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0947             120603          44.01

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296892       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0933             120603          41.05

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            283.53

 

01-029825 KIRCHNER BUILDING CENT I-40115432           110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: KIRCHNER BUILDING CE 120630          26.36

01-029825 KIRCHNER BUILDING CENT I-40115531           110 5241-432        REPAIR OF BUI: FASTENERS            120630           8.72

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-029825  TOTALS             35.08

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-356211             110 5241-312        CLEANING SUPP: CLEANER,LINERS,TOWEL 120634         135.28

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031000  TOTALS            135.28

 

01-036080 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SE I-00525486SNV        110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BOOTS                120639          80.73

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-036080  TOTALS             80.73

 

01-036334 NFPA                   I-6136386Y           110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: NFPA                 120641         105.03

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-036334  TOTALS            105.03

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     8

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-040451 S & S SERVICE CO       I-57798              110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPAIRS              120651       1,123.04

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040451  TOTALS          1,123.04

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S4319976.001       110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BULBS                120660          32.24

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043371  TOTALS             32.24

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-09502              110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      120521         145.18

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043522  TOTALS            145.18

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 241   FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.   TOTAL:       5,863.95

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002812 CHARLES LUKE EDWARDS   I-201405286861       110 5261-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAVEL 4/25/14       120612         116.26

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002812  TOTALS            116.26

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286788       110 5261-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596         520.22

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286793       110 5261-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596           3.22

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286796       110 5261-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596           1.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS            524.44

 

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-94887              110 5261-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             120615          12.67

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-015410  TOTALS             12.67

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405226760       110 5261-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-7367             120512         262.18

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            262.18

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 261   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT    TOTAL:         915.55

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001293 BRAD STROHL            I-201405286863       110 5310-564        PRIVATE VEHIC: MILEAGE 4/14         120662           6.54

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001293  TOTALS              6.54

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     9

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 310  PUBLIC WORKS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-039210 ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERV I-F50000377097       110 5310-421        DISPOSAL SERV: TRASH SERVICES       120510       1,088.25

01-039210 ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERV I-F50000378546       110 5310-421        DISPOSAL SERV: TRASH SERVICES       120510         397.00

01-039210 ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERV I-F50000378552       110 5310-421        DISPOSAL SERV: TRASH SERVICES       120510          80.49

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039210  TOTALS          1,565.74

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 310   PUBLIC WORKS             TOTAL:       1,572.28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000791 EJ EQUIPMENT           I-0062583            110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: EJ EQUIPMENT         120613       1,143.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000791  TOTALS          1,143.50

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P64702             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: PARTS                120586         958.21

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P65222             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SOLENOID             120586          85.37

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P65649             110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BELT                 120586          24.67

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12623             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: ROLLER REPAIRS       120586          87.76

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12638             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: GRADER REPAIRS       120586       1,124.54

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12655             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LOADER REPAIRS       120586         818.30

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12726             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LOADER REPAIRS       120586       1,124.32

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12759             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SKID STEER REPAIRS   120586         193.02

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12778             110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: SAW REPAIRS          120586          99.13

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS          4,515.32

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286792       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596           6.88

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286797       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596           4.28

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286799       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597           3.24

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286806       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597           1.50

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286807       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597          11.66

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286808       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597          12.00

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286809       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597          13.72

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286810       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597           2.06

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286811       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598           2.14

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286812       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598           2.60

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286813       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598           2.88

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286814       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598           4.64

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286815       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598           8.74

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286817       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598           4.38

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286825       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599           2.06

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286830       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599          17.50

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286831       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599           6.10

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286832       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599           6.10

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS            112.48

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    10

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87225              110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87246              110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87247              110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          41.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009870  TOTALS             95.00

 

01-011600 DEBUHR'S SEED STORE    I-31292              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: GRASS SEED           120607          49.75

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-011600  TOTALS             49.75

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT104110        110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FASTENAL COMPANY     120616          12.38

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016140  TOTALS             12.38

 

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-218598             110 5320-432        REPAIR OF BUI: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   120618          98.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017000  TOTALS             98.00

 

01-025600 ILMO PRODUCTS COMPANY  I-201405286867       110 5320-440        RENTALS      : CYLINDER RENTAL,OXYG 120626           8.70

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025600  TOTALS              8.70

 

01-030080 SHANNON LAUE           I-201405286847       110 5320-313        MEDICAL & SAF: REIMBURSE BOOTS      120632          75.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030080  TOTALS             75.00

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405086593       110 5320-321        UTILITIES    : 420 N LOGAN          000000          33.59

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405136668       110 5320-321        UTILITIES    : 221 N 12TH           000000          55.42

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405136669       110 5320-321        UTILITIES    : 212 N 12TH           000000          10.82

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS             99.83

 

01-036010 MIKE MORRIS TOOL SALES I-0515144795         110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: BIT SET, DRIVER      120638         141.65

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-036010  TOTALS            141.65

 

01-040467 SAFETY COMPLIANCE      I-25149              110 5320-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES               120653         311.66

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040467  TOTALS            311.66

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 320   STREETS                  TOTAL:       6,663.27

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    11

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 381  CUSTODIAL SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405286864       110 5381-321        UTILITIES    : 1701 WABASH          120577         252.67

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            252.67

 

01-002529 WILLIAM BEESE          I-1156               110 5381-460        OTHER PROP MA: MAY CLEANING         120585         400.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002529  TOTALS            400.00

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286804       110 5381-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597           9.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS              9.00

 

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-132113             110 5381-576        SECURITY SERV: MONITORING           120608         384.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012025  TOTALS            384.00

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-352181             110 5381-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TOWELS               120634         442.20

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-355081             110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: CLEANERS,TISSUE,TOWE 120634       1,314.86

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031000  TOTALS          1,757.06

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405086594       110 5381-321        UTILITIES    : 1701 WABASH          000000          34.89

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS             34.89

 

01-035600 KONE INC               I-221457707          110 5381-435        ELEVATOR SERV: ELEV MNTCE 5/14      120631         219.97

01-035600 KONE INC               I-221457708          110 5381-435        ELEVATOR SERV: ELEV MNTCE 5/14      120631         133.66

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035600  TOTALS            353.63

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 381   CUSTODIAL SERVICES       TOTAL:       3,191.25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-201405286862       110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: RADIATOR CAP,BATTERY 120575           4.06

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-201405286862       110 5511-434        REPAIR OF VEH: RADIATOR CAP,BATTERY 120575           4.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000550  TOTALS              8.06

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    12

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 511  PARKS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405286854       110 5511-321        UTILITIES    : 1200 CHAMPAIGN       120576          28.53

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS             28.53

 

01-001582 AUTO, TRUCK AND FARM R I-46711              110 5511-434        REPAIR OF VEH: TRUCK REPAIRS        120580         765.71

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001582  TOTALS            765.71

 

01-002067 BSN SPORTS INC.        I-96076832           110 5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: PORTABLE COOLING SYS 120589       1,316.99

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002067  TOTALS          1,316.99

 

01-002357 TITAN INDUSTRIAL CHEMI I-5723               110 5511-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CLEANING SUPPLIES    120666         395.55

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002357  TOTALS            395.55

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P64982             110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: GAS FILTER           120586          10.72

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS             10.72

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286829       110 5511-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599         190.36

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS            190.36

 

01-011600 DEBUHR'S SEED STORE    I-32423              110 5511-315        LANDSCAPING S: WEED & FEED          120607          16.99

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-011600  TOTALS             16.99

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146692       110 5511-321        UTILITIES    : 500 B'DWAY           000000          16.68

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146693       110 5511-321        UTILITIES    : 500 B'DWAY           000000          28.58

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146699       110 5511-321        UTILITIES    : 500 B'DWAY           000000          18.34

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146700       110 5511-321        UTILITIES    : 418 RICHMOND         000000          47.11

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS            110.71

 

01-044270 TCT & A INDUSTRIES     I-054147             110 5511-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TENT REPAIR          120664         675.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-044270  TOTALS            675.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 511   PARKS                    TOTAL:       3,518.62

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    13

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 512  LAKE MATTOON

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000481 PANA BAIT CO           I-2607384            110 5512-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          120643         772.70

01-000481 PANA BAIT CO           I-2607506            110 5512-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          120643         126.75

01-000481 PANA BAIT CO           I-2607698            110 5512-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          120643         557.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000481  TOTALS          1,456.65

 

01-001648 CENTRAL CIGAR-CANDY CO I-523009             110 5512-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          120592         386.48

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001648  TOTALS            386.48

 

01-001715 ROLYAN BUOYS           I-3616317            110 5512-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ROPE                 120650         205.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001715  TOTALS            205.00

 

01-002970 BEACHY'S ICE COMPANY   I-48755              110 5512-317        CONCESSION & : ICE                  120584         113.50

01-002970 BEACHY'S ICE COMPANY   I-48756              110 5512-317        CONCESSION & : ICE                  120584          64.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002970  TOTALS            177.50

 

01-010167 CUMBERLAND CO COLLECTO I-201405296894       110 5512-828        REAL ESTATE T: CUMBERLAND CO COLLEC 120606       1,650.38

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-010167  TOTALS          1,650.38

 

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-94852              110 5512-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             120615          38.84

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-015410  TOTALS             38.84

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT104191        110 5512-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FASTENAL COMPANY     120616          17.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016140  TOTALS             17.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296881       110 5512-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-3611             120603          72.88

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS             72.88

 

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-201405226772       110 5512-802        HUNTING/FISHI: LAKE 5-13/19 HUNT/FI 000000         442.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-024060  TOTALS            442.50

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    14

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 512  LAKE MATTOON

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-024101 IL DEPARTMENT OF REVEN I-201405226761       110 5512-803        SALES TAX REM: APRIL SALES TAX      000000         249.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-024101  TOTALS            249.00

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-56449              110 5512-433        REPAIR OF MAC: NIEMEYER REPAIR SERV 120642          89.67

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037050  TOTALS             89.67

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 512   LAKE MATTOON             TOTAL:       4,785.90

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405286855       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 311 N 6TH ST BLDG 2  120576          32.52

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405286856       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 311 N 6TH            120576         144.82

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405286857       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 221 SHELBY           120576          33.74

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405286858       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 312 N 10TH           120576          27.13

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405286859       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 312 N 10TH           120576         124.84

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405286860       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 421 SHELBY           120576          44.62

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            407.67

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286789       110 5551-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596         172.54

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286791       110 5551-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596         115.80

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286794       110 5551-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596           6.42

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286800       110 5551-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597         106.68

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286816       110 5551-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598          36.48

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286823       110 5551-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599          10.60

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS            448.52

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146691       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 301 RICHMOND         000000          18.00

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146694       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 307 RICHMOND         000000         148.54

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146695       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 713 SHELBY           000000         134.51

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146696       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 305 RICHMOND         000000          15.57

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146697       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 801 SHELBY           000000         307.58

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146698       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : 421 SHELBY           000000           1.69

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201405146728       110 5551-321        UTILITIES    : BASEBALL DIAMOND     000000          43.24

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS            669.13

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 551   SPORTS FACILITIES        TOTAL:       1,525.32

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    15

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 570  DODGE GROVE CEMETERY

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405226767       110 5570-321        UTILITIES    : 917 N 22ND           120511          20.98

01-001070 AMEREN ILLINOIS        I-201405226768       110 5570-321        UTILITIES    : 917 N 22ND           120511         176.01

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            196.99

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P65114             110 5570-433        REPAIR OF MAC: FILTERS              120586          24.87

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS             24.87

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286786       110 5570-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596          11.22

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405296897       110 5570-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599         199.68

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405296898       110 5570-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120600         130.32

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405296899       110 5570-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120600         223.24

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS            564.46

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296883       110 5570-321        UTILITIES    : 234-2055             120603         124.43

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            124.43

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 570   DODGE GROVE CEMETERY     TOTAL:         910.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 110   GENERAL FUND             TOTAL:     326,816.62



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    16

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 122  HOTEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 653  HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001274 AMERICAN LEGION POST # I-201405296880       122 5653-825        TOURISM GRANT: GRANT                120579       6,200.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001274  TOTALS          6,200.00

 

01-003107 MINDY SANDERS          I-201405296874       122 5653-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: REIMBURSE OFFICE SUP 120654          34.02

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003107  TOTALS             34.02

 

01-021348 LEE ENTERPRISES-CENTRA I-201405226771       122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : ADVERTISING          120517       1,854.67

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021348  TOTALS          1,854.67

 

01-031952 MATTOON BABE RUTH BASE I-201405296885       122 5653-825        TOURISM GRANT: GRANT                120636       4,000.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031952  TOTALS          4,000.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 653   HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:      12,088.69

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 122   HOTEL TAX FUND           TOTAL:      12,088.69



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    17

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 123  FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 584  BAGELFEST

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002067 BSN SPORTS INC.        I-96076832           123 5584-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PORTABLE COOLING SYS 120589       1,316.99

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002067  TOTALS          1,316.99

 

01-048900 YMCA                   I-201405296884       123 5584-574        SPECIAL EVENT: GRANT                120671       3,000.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-048900  TOTALS          3,000.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 584   BAGELFEST                TOTAL:       4,316.99

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001640 GP DESIGNS INC         I-10220              123 5586-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: BULBS                120620         185.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001640  TOTALS            185.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 586   LIGHTWORKS               TOTAL:         185.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 123   FESTIVAL MGMT FUND       TOTAL:       4,501.99



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    18

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 125  INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT

DEPARTMENT: 150  FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001766 TAPCO                  I-1453097            125 5150-519        OTHER PROFESS: BARRICADES           120663       1,004.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001766  TOTALS          1,004.50

 

01-002401 SMITHAMUNDSEN          I-440586             125 5150-519        OTHER PROFESS: LEGAL SERVICES       120659         927.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002401  TOTALS            927.50

 

01-003219 PARATECH INC           I-46658              125 5150-519        OTHER PROFESS: HOSE,CONNECTORS,CARR 120644       7,660.87

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003219  TOTALS          7,660.87

 

01-003221 EZ LIFT RESCUE SYSTEMS I-1060               125 5150-519        OTHER PROFESS: EZ LIFT RESCUE SYSTE 120614         649.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003221  TOTALS            649.00

 

01-025600 ILMO PRODUCTS COMPANY  I-201405286867       125 5150-519        OTHER PROFESS: CYLINDER RENTAL,OXYG 120626       4,416.04

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025600  TOTALS          4,416.04

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:      14,657.91

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 125   INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT  TOTAL:      14,657.91



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    19

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 130  CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 321  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-021348 LEE ENTERPRISES-CENTRA I-20628798           130 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 17TH ST RESURFACING  120633          43.86

          PROJ: 247-000           17TH ST RESURFACE              EXPENSES

01-021348 LEE ENTERPRISES-CENTRA I-20631486           130 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : PETERSON PARKING ARE 120633          46.54

          PROJ: 241-000           PETERSON PARK PARKING          EXPENSES

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021348  TOTALS             90.40

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:          90.40

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002429 SHIRLEY UTILITY CONSTR I-20140025           130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : BORE IN WATER SERVIC 120657       1,200.00

          PROJ: 169-000           14th St. Detention             PROJECT EXPENSES

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002429  TOTALS          1,200.00

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286790       130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596         180.50

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286818       130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598         432.46

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286819       130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598         845.00

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286820       130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598         419.26

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286821       130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598         470.80

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286822       130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : COLES CO COLLECTOR   120598         211.84

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286824       130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599       1,012.40

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286828       130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599       1,330.74

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS          4,903.00

 

01-020803 HARRELSON PLUMBING & H I-19211              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : HOOK UP WATER LINE   120621         810.00

          PROJ: 169-000           14th St. Detention             PROJECT EXPENSES

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-020803  TOTALS            810.00

 

01-021348 LEE ENTERPRISES-CENTRA I-20625341           130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 9TH ST DRAINAGE PROJ 120633          47.88

          PROJ: 169-000           14th St. Detention             PROJECT EXPENSES

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021348  TOTALS             47.88

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-3016398-00         130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY  120627         525.50

          PROJ: 169-000           14th St. Detention             PROJECT EXPENSES

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025682  TOTALS            525.50

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    20

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 130  CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 328  STORM DRAINAGE

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-201405286777       130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 9TH STREET DRAINAGE  120574      16,816.00

          PROJ: 169-000           14th St. Detention             PROJECT EXPENSES

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045850  TOTALS         16,816.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 328   STORM DRAINAGE           TOTAL:      24,302.38

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 130   CAPITAL PROJECT FUND     TOTAL:      24,392.78



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    21

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 351  RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-57122              211 5351-433        REPAIR OF MAC: MOWER REPAIRS        120642       1,179.36

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037050  TOTALS          1,179.36

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 351   RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES TOTAL:       1,179.36

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001395 CITY OF CHARLESTON     I-2014-00000006      211 5353-439        OTHER REPAIR : WATER DISTRIBUTION   120594         768.24

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001395  TOTALS            768.24

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS, I I-122139             211 5353-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BATTERY SPECIALISTS, 120583          82.45

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002958  TOTALS             82.45

 

01-003097 CINTAS CORPORATION #37 I-370810842          211 5353-439        OTHER REPAIR : CLEANING             120593          40.38

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003097  TOTALS             40.38

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286865       211 5353-321        NATURAL GAS &: WATER PURIFICATION P 120601       6,551.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008600  TOTALS          6,551.50

 

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-94798              211 5353-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SHIPPING             120615           5.82

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-015410  TOTALS              5.82

 

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C44607             211 5353-312        CLEANING SUPP: WAX,CLEANERS,TOWELS  120515         148.83

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C44918             211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : REGULATOR,COUPLER KI 120515          20.97

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C45901             211 5353-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: FILTERS,COFFEE       120515           6.98

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C51620             211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 120515          41.94

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C52806             211 5353-312        CLEANING SUPP: ARMOR ALL, CAP       120515           7.97

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C69685             211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : BOLT SNAPS,CORDS     120515          45.91

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C77664             211 5353-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: COFFEE,OIL,TRIMMER L 120515           9.98

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C77664             211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : COFFEE,OIL,TRIMMER L 120515          15.97

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C79906             211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : OIL                  120515           3.93

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016000  TOTALS            302.48

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    22

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 353  WATER TREATMENT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-017621 FOREST BIOMEDICAL INC  I-4709               211 5353-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FOREST BIOMEDICAL IN 120619       3,456.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017621  TOTALS          3,456.00

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-355982             211 5353-312        CLEANING SUPP: LINERS               120634          35.31

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031000  TOTALS             35.31

 

01-045171 USA BLUEBOOK           I-342840             211 5353-319        MISCELLANEOUS: USA BLUEBOOK         120667         539.12

01-045171 USA BLUEBOOK           I-344127             211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : TUBING               120667         148.95

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045171  TOTALS            688.07

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 353   WATER TREATMENT PLANT    TOTAL:      11,930.25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P65222             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SOLENOID             120586          85.37

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12623             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: ROLLER REPAIRS       120586          87.76

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12655             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LOADER REPAIRS       120586         818.30

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12726             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LOADER REPAIRS       120586       1,124.32

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12759             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SKID STEER REPAIRS   120586         193.02

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS          2,308.77

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286827       211 5354-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599          16.74

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS             16.74

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286866       211 5354-322        ELECTRICITY  : SBLHC PUMP STA       120601         305.45

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008600  TOTALS            305.45

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87248              211 5354-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87254              211 5354-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87260              211 5354-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009870  TOTALS             81.00

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1059242-01         211 5354-374        SERVICE LINE : IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY  120627         228.00



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    23

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 354  WATER DISTRIBUTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-2030068-01         211 5354-374        SERVICE LINE : IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY  120627       1,198.50

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-3016398-00         211 5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY  120627         846.00

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-3016508-00         211 5354-375        LEAK REPAIR M: IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY  120627         605.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025682  TOTALS          2,877.50

 

01-040467 SAFETY COMPLIANCE      I-25149              211 5354-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES               120653         311.67

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040467  TOTALS            311.67

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 354   WATER DISTRIBUTION       TOTAL:       5,901.13

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296872       211 5355-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5483             120603         154.60

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            154.60

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1061709-00         211 5355-372        METER TILES, : METER PIT            120627         672.00

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1061709-01         211 5355-372        METER TILES, : METER PIT            120627       1,008.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025682  TOTALS          1,680.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 355   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:       1,834.60

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286787       211 5356-816        FARM EXPENSES: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120596         505.88

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286801       211 5356-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120597          36.24

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS            542.12

 

01-010167 CUMBERLAND CO COLLECTO I-201405296893       211 5356-828        REAL ESTATE T: CUMBERLAND CO COLLEC 120606         646.40

01-010167 CUMBERLAND CO COLLECTO I-201405296895       211 5356-816        FARM EXPENSES: CUMBERLAND CO COLLEC 120606         156.20

01-010167 CUMBERLAND CO COLLECTO I-201405296896       211 5356-816        FARM EXPENSES: CUMBERLAND CO COLLEC 120606          67.70

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-010167  TOTALS            870.30

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 356   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:       1,412.42

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-021348 LEE ENTERPRISES-CENTRA I-20624594           211 5770-819        DEBT ISSUANCE: BOND REFUNDING NOTIC 120633         401.82

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021348  TOTALS            401.82

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 770   DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS      TOTAL:         401.82

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    24

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 795  INTEREST EXPENSE

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-017403 FIRST MID-IL BANK & TR I-201405296889       211 5795-817        INTEREST EXPE: 2011 WATERWORKS REFU 120559      11,850.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017403  TOTALS         11,850.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 795   INTEREST EXPENSE         TOTAL:      11,850.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 211   WATER FUND               TOTAL:      34,509.58



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    25

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 342  SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001537 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS,  I-C419472            212 5342-364        SEWER LINE RE: FLEX COUPLING/PVC    120622         854.10

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001537  TOTALS            854.10

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P65222             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SOLENOID             120586          85.39

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12623             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: ROLLER REPAIRS       120586          87.76

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12655             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LOADER REPAIRS       120586         818.31

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12726             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LOADER REPAIRS       120586       1,124.33

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W12759             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SKID STEER REPAIRS   120586         193.02

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS          2,308.81

 

01-007820 COE EQUIPMENT INC      I-56730              212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: COE EQUIPMENT INC    120595         331.57

01-007820 COE EQUIPMENT INC      I-56788              212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: INLET WELDMENT       120595         616.48

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-007820  TOTALS            948.05

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87252              212 5342-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-87259              212 5342-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          120604          27.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009870  TOTALS             54.00

 

01-040467 SAFETY COMPLIANCE      I-25149              212 5342-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES               120653         311.67

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040467  TOTALS            311.67

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 342   SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM  TOTAL:       4,476.63

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286826       212 5343-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599          22.94

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-201405286833       212 5343-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   120599           4.04

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008000  TOTALS             26.98

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286848       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: BUXTON CENTRE        120601          76.63

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286849       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: GOLDEN VALLEY SEWER  120601         193.27

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286850       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: SBLHC LIFT STA       120601         324.18

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286851       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: LLC LIFT STA         120601          92.62

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008600  TOTALS            686.70

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    26

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 343  SEWER LIFT STATIONS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-045505 VANDEVANTER ENGINEERIN I-5311759            212 5343-369        OTHER SEWER M: FLOAT SWITCH         120668         346.08

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045505  TOTALS            346.08

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 343   SEWER LIFT STATIONS      TOTAL:       1,059.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000839 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC C-BMX044812          212 5344-314        CHEMICALS    : RETURN               120588         750.00-

01-000839 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC I-BMS702971          212 5344-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            120588       1,297.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000839  TOTALS            547.50

 

01-001166 QUALITY CHEMICAL COMPA I-12554              212 5344-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            120647         369.32

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001166  TOTALS            369.32

 

01-001213 DIESEL SPEED REPAIR, I I-12413              212 5344-434        REPAIR OF VEH: INSPECT BRAKE SYSTEM 120609         341.12

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001213  TOTALS            341.12

 

01-003077 TEKLAB, INC.           I-158992             212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: TEKLAB, INC.         120665         180.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003077  TOTALS            180.00

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-26576001           212 5344-433        REPAIR OF MAC: TROUBLESHOOT MOTOR O 120602         699.92

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009000  TOTALS            699.92

 

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C62691             212 5344-432        REPAIR OF STR: SEALANT,COFFEE       120515          39.92

01-016000 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   I-C79003             212 5344-432        REPAIR OF STR: BATTERIES,SILICONE,L 120515          55.93

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016000  TOTALS             95.85

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405306906       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-6828             120563          63.25

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405306907       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2737             120563          41.05

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            104.30

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    27

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 344  WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-028488 JIM HODEL              I-01-1204            212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: JIM HODEL            120629       1,534.24

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-028488  TOTALS          1,534.24

 

01-039210 ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERV I-F50000377410       212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : SLUDGE DISPOSAL      120561          85.75

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039210  TOTALS             85.75

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S4270324.001       212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : OVERLOAD RELAY       120660          57.60

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043371  TOTALS             57.60

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 344   WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANTTOTAL:       4,015.60

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201405296872       212 5345-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5483             120603         154.61

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            154.61

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 345   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:         154.61

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000070 IL EPA                 I-201405286852       212 5732-817        DEBT SERVICE : IL EPA               120625      15,726.30

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000070  TOTALS         15,726.30

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 732   1997 SEWR PLANT IEPA NOTETOTAL:      15,726.30

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-021348 LEE ENTERPRISES-CENTRA I-20624594           212 5770-817        DEBT SERVICE : BOND REFUNDING NOTIC 120633         401.82

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021348  TOTALS            401.82

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 770   DEBT SERVICE             TOTAL:         401.82

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000070 IL EPA                 I-201405286852       212 5795-817        INTEREST EXPE: IL EPA               120625       1,895.23

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000070  TOTALS          1,895.23

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 795   DEBT SERVICE             TOTAL:       1,895.23

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 212   SEWER FUND               TOTAL:      27,729.95

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:     444,697.52



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2014-2015 110-2172-000        DUE TO LIBRARY FUND            15,503.08

          110-2172-001        DUE TO FIREFIGHTERS PENSIO     95,602.35

          110-2172-002        DUE TO POLICE PENSION FUND     95,602.36

          110-5110-532        TELEPHONE                          48.16         600         505.18

          110-5110-571        DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                375.00       1,300         925.00

          110-5110-826        ARTS COUNCIL                    5,000.00       5,000         397.48-  Y

          110-5120-532        TELEPHONE                         264.53       3,060       2,531.56

          110-5120-801        VITAL RECORDS FEE REMITTAN      1,360.00      10,000       7,820.00

          110-5120-802        HUNTING/FISHING LIC. FEE R         41.00       1,000         823.50

          110-5150-532        TELEPHONE                          57.76       1,860       1,644.58

          110-5150-576        SECURITY SERVICES                 300.00           0         300.00-  Y

          110-5170-852        NETWORK SECURITY SYSTEMS        1,800.00       4,300       2,500.00

          110-5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   103.46       4,000       3,894.02

          110-5211-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING                32.12       3,100       2,869.80

          110-5211-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT              10,514.98      18,500       7,228.51

          110-5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             50.00       5,782       4,019.24

          110-5211-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE     35,723.16       3,000      43,321.61-  Y

          110-5211-531        POSTAGE                           130.26       2,500       1,588.17

          110-5211-532        TELEPHONE                       1,662.79      16,000      12,732.44

          110-5211-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 329.00      23,500      21,598.63

          110-5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            950.91       8,250       6,284.77

          110-5212-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI         50.00       1,500       1,400.00

          110-5223-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  27.00         250         223.00

          110-5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            196.00       2,500       2,177.68

          110-5223-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                253.43      35,000      31,093.75

          110-5223-743        MEF CONTRIBUTION               30,615.60      29,000       5,782.27-  Y

          110-5224-321        UTILITIES                         469.96      71,200      66,120.26

          110-5224-439        OTHER REPAIR & MAINT SRVCS        712.40      25,000       9,292.20

          110-5224-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                  94.42           0          94.42-  Y

          110-5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   145.18       3,800       3,307.09

          110-5241-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 135.28       5,300       4,755.62

          110-5241-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES       1,052.38      19,398      16,763.24

          110-5241-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING               103.50      12,760      12,075.81

          110-5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,089.39       7,670       6,145.98

          110-5241-321        UTILITIES                         100.77      11,000      10,270.90

          110-5241-326        FUEL                               29.95      29,200      23,135.75

          110-5241-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                 8.72       7,500       7,478.71

          110-5241-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                78.00      17,350      16,916.84

          110-5241-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES              2,056.82      24,398      18,739.40

          110-5241-532        TELEPHONE                         283.53       7,880       7,262.16

          110-5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 498.29      18,325      12,301.25

          110-5241-571        DUE & MEMBERSHIPS                 165.00       1,650         243.05

          110-5241-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        115.00      29,498      29,383.00

          110-5241-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   2.14           0           2.14-  Y

          110-5261-531        POSTAGE                            12.67         500         487.33

          110-5261-532        TELEPHONE                         262.18       3,000       2,737.82

          110-5261-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 116.26       3,000       2,883.74



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    29

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5261-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 524.44           0         524.44-  Y

          110-5310-421        DISPOSAL SERVICES               1,565.74      20,000      18,434.26

          110-5310-564        PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB           6.54         150         143.46

          110-5320-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         386.66       1,800       1,344.67

          110-5320-316        TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT               240.78       7,000       6,376.84

          110-5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS                   1,180.55      27,000      23,585.31

          110-5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             49.75      10,000       9,626.45

          110-5320-321        UTILITIES                          99.83      17,000      15,778.20

          110-5320-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                98.00       3,000       2,902.00

          110-5320-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             4,391.52      50,000      43,912.19

          110-5320-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 95.00      13,000      11,261.38

          110-5320-440        RENTALS                             8.70       7,000       6,737.89

          110-5320-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 112.48         120           7.52

          110-5381-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES               1,314.86       5,000       2,201.54

          110-5381-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            442.20       4,000       3,354.43

          110-5381-321        UTILITIES                         287.56      51,000      43,409.31

          110-5381-435        ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMEN         353.63       5,000       3,778.79

          110-5381-460        OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES         400.00       9,000       8,280.00

          110-5381-576        SECURITY SERVICES                 384.00           0         384.00-  Y

          110-5381-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   9.00          10           1.00

          110-5511-315        LANDSCAPING SUPPLIES               16.99       1,500         699.04

          110-5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               1,316.99       5,000       3,297.56

          110-5511-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,070.55      15,000      11,864.18

          110-5511-321        UTILITIES                         139.24      31,000      28,746.05

          110-5511-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                14.78      15,000      14,813.67

          110-5511-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                769.71       5,000       4,060.62

          110-5511-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 190.36           0         190.36-  Y

          110-5512-317        CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP      2,020.63      25,000      19,995.68

          110-5512-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            222.00      10,000       6,657.58

          110-5512-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                89.67       3,000       2,910.33

          110-5512-531        POSTAGE                            38.84         100          61.16

          110-5512-532        TELEPHONE                          72.88         600         473.16

          110-5512-802        HUNTING/FISHING REMITTANCE        442.50      12,000       9,813.75

          110-5512-803        SALES TAX REMITTANCE              249.00       3,500       3,251.00

          110-5512-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES               1,650.38       1,700          49.62

          110-5551-321        UTILITIES                       1,076.80      35,000      33,186.27

          110-5551-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 448.52         300         148.52-  Y

          110-5570-321        UTILITIES                         321.42       5,000       4,464.47

          110-5570-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                24.87       7,500       7,317.26

          110-5570-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 564.46         500          64.46-  Y

          122-5653-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    34.02       1,000         922.78

          122-5653-540        ADVERTISING                     1,854.67      25,000      21,934.29

          122-5653-825        TOURISM GRANTS                 10,200.00     120,000      86,525.00

          123-5584-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,316.99         400       1,022.98-  Y

          123-5584-574        SPECIAL EVENT SERVICES          3,000.00      10,000       7,000.00

          123-5586-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 185.00         500         315.00

          125-5150-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE     14,657.91      28,235       2,046.91-  Y

          130-5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL         90.40     160,000     159,909.60



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    30

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          130-5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     24,302.38     450,000     408,598.29

          211-5351-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,179.36       3,000       1,820.64

          211-5353-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    16.96         600         583.04

          211-5353-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 192.11       1,200       1,007.89

          211-5353-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      88.27         600         511.73

          211-5353-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          3,995.12      16,000      11,708.93

          211-5353-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          6,551.50      63,000      51,996.68

          211-5353-378        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR               277.67      10,000       8,538.19

          211-5353-439        OTHER REPAIR & MAINT. SERV        808.62       3,000       1,500.89

          211-5354-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         311.67       1,500       1,188.33

          211-5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 846.00       7,000       5,800.11

          211-5354-322        ELECTRICITY                       305.45       3,000       1,283.55

          211-5354-374        SERVICE LINE MATERIALS          1,426.50      12,000       4,902.30

          211-5354-375        LEAK REPAIR MATERIALS             605.00      12,000      11,371.20

          211-5354-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             2,308.77       8,000       4,288.39

          211-5354-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 81.00      10,000       8,232.26

          211-5354-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                  16.74          20           3.26

          211-5355-372        METER TILES, RIMS & LIDS        1,680.00       8,500       5,332.00

          211-5355-532        TELEPHONE                         154.60       1,500       1,216.67

          211-5356-816        FARM EXPENSES                     729.78         700          29.78-  Y

          211-5356-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 682.64         700          17.36

          211-5770-819        DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS               401.82           0         401.82-  Y

          211-5795-817        INTEREST EXPENSE               11,850.00           0      52,836.93-  Y

          212-5342-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         311.67       1,500       1,188.33

          212-5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     948.05       7,500       5,780.49

          212-5342-364        SEWER LINE REPAIR MATERIAL        854.10       3,000       2,145.90

          212-5342-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             2,308.81      10,000       6,288.35

          212-5342-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 54.00      10,000       7,920.22

          212-5343-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (AM        169.25      31,000      26,251.15

          212-5343-322        ELECTRICITY (COLES-MOULTRI        517.45       9,000       8,482.55

          212-5343-369        OTHER SEWER MTCE SUPPLIES         346.08       2,000         790.86

          212-5343-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                  26.98          50          23.02

          212-5344-314        CHEMICALS                         916.82      15,000      11,113.18

          212-5344-366        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR MATERI         57.60      20,000      18,154.70

          212-5344-432        REPAIR OF STRUCTURES               95.85       5,000       4,013.68

          212-5344-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               699.92      30,000      25,295.37

          212-5344-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                341.12       3,000       2,658.88

          212-5344-439        OTHER REPAIR & MNTCE SERVI         85.75      15,000      13,335.55

          212-5344-460        OTHER PROPERTY MTCE SERVIC      1,714.24      42,500      36,193.94

          212-5344-532        TELEPHONE                         104.30       3,500       3,086.99

          212-5345-532        TELEPHONE                         154.61       1,500       1,216.65

          212-5732-817        DEBT SERVICE                   15,726.30      35,243      19,516.70

          212-5770-817        DEBT SERVICE                      401.82           0         401.82-  Y

          212-5795-817        INTEREST EXPENSE                1,895.23           0       1,895.23-  Y

                                TOTAL:                      444,697.52

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    31

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110                     NON-DEPARTMENTAL                                206,707.79

                    110-110                 CITY COUNCIL                                      5,423.16

                    110-120                 CITY CLERK                                        1,665.53

                    110-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                            357.76

                    110-170                 COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS                             1,800.00

                    110-211                 POLICE ADMINISTRATION                            48,545.77

                    110-212                 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION                            1,000.91

                    110-223                 AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES                              31,092.03

                    110-224                 POLICE BUILDINGS                                  1,276.78

                    110-241                 FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.                            5,863.95

                    110-261                 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT                               915.55

                    110-310                 PUBLIC WORKS                                      1,572.28

                    110-320                 STREETS                                           6,663.27

                    110-381                 CUSTODIAL SERVICES                                3,191.25

                    110-511                 PARKS                                             3,518.62

                    110-512                 LAKE MATTOON                                      4,785.90

                    110-551                 SPORTS FACILITIES                                 1,525.32

                    110-570                 DODGE GROVE CEMETERY                                910.75

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    110  TOTAL              GENERAL FUND                                    326,816.62

                    122-653                 HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION                         12,088.69

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    122  TOTAL              HOTEL TAX FUND                                   12,088.69

                    123-584                 BAGELFEST                                         4,316.99

                    123-586                 LIGHTWORKS                                          185.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    123  TOTAL              FESTIVAL MGMT FUND                                4,501.99

                    125-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                         14,657.91

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    125  TOTAL              INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT                          14,657.91

                    130-321                 STREETS                                              90.40

                    130-328                 STORM DRAINAGE                                   24,302.38

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    130  TOTAL              CAPITAL PROJECT FUND                             24,392.78

                    211-351                 RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES                          1,179.36

                    211-353                 WATER TREATMENT PLANT                            11,930.25

                    211-354                 WATER DISTRIBUTION                                5,901.13

                    211-355                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                           1,834.60

                    211-356                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                          1,412.42

                    211-770                 DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS                                 401.82

                    211-795                 INTEREST EXPENSE                                 11,850.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    211  TOTAL              WATER FUND                                       34,509.58

                    212-342                 SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM                           4,476.63



 5/30/2014  9:37 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    32

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    212-343                 SEWER LIFT STATIONS                               1,059.76

                    212-344                 WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT                         4,015.60

                    212-345                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                             154.61

                    212-732                 1997 SEWR PLANT IEPA NOTE                        15,726.30

                    212-770                 DEBT SERVICE                                        401.82

                    212-795                 DEBT SERVICE                                      1,895.23

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    212  TOTAL              SEWER FUND                                       27,729.95

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                     444,697.52

                                                           *** PROJECT TOTALS ***

               PROJECT                              LINE ITEM                                           AMOUNT

 

               169 14th St. Detention               000      PROJECT EXPENSES                        19,399.38

                                                                     ** PROJECT 169 TOTAL **         19,399.38

 

               241 PETERSON PARK PARKING            000      EXPENSES                                    46.54

                                                                     ** PROJECT 241 TOTAL **             46.54

 

               247 17TH ST RESURFACE                000      EXPENSES                                    43.86

                                                                     ** PROJECT 247 TOTAL **             43.86

 

    NO ERRORS



 5/30/2014  9:49 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: EHBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: N/A  NON-DEPARTMENTAL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002405 LARRY WRIGHT           I-201405306904       221 4701-021        EMPLOYEE CONT: REIMBURSE INSURANCE  120566         488.77

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002405  TOTALS            488.77

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT       NON-DEPARTMENTAL         TOTAL:         488.77

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000221 COVENTRY HEALTH CARE O I-201405226765       221 5411-211        STOP LOSS INS: STOP LOSS AGGREGATE  120523       1,466.05

01-000221 COVENTRY HEALTH CARE O I-201405226765       221 5411-211        STOP LOSS INS: STOP LOSS AGGREGATE  120523      21,768.78

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000221  TOTALS         23,234.83

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 411   STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE   TOTAL:      23,234.83

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000221 COVENTRY HEALTH CARE O I-201405226765       221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: ADMIN FEES           120523      10,881.05

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000221  TOTALS         10,881.05

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:      10,881.05

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000236 COVENTRY HEALTH CARE   I-201405226764       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: COVENTRY HEALTH CARE 000000      32,814.35

01-000236 COVENTRY HEALTH CARE   I-201405306908       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: COVENTRY HEALTH CARE 000000      14,571.72

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000236  TOTALS         47,386.07

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 413   MEDICAL CLAIMS           TOTAL:      47,386.07

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000236 COVENTRY HEALTH CARE   I-201405226764       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : COVENTRY HEALTH CARE 000000      17,159.08

01-000236 COVENTRY HEALTH CARE   I-201405306908       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : COVENTRY HEALTH CARE 000000      22,799.10

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000236  TOTALS         39,958.18

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 414   RX CLAIMS                TOTAL:      39,958.18

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-003216 ASSURANT EMPLOYEE BENE I-201405226754       221 5417-212        LIFE INSURANC: JUNE LIFE INS        120522       2,155.61

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003216  TOTALS          2,155.61

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 417   LIFE INSURANCE           TOTAL:       2,155.61

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:     124,104.51

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:     124,104.51



 5/30/2014  9:49 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2014-2015 221-4701-021        EMPLOYEE CONTRI*NON-EXPENS        488.77     229,100-    203,949.92-

          221-5411-211        STOP LOSS INSURANCE            23,234.83     217,693     194,458.17

          221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION     10,881.05     132,029     118,578.33

          221-5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIMS                 47,386.07   2,032,287   1,847,194.74

          221-5414-211        RX CLAIMS                      39,958.18     912,853     800,794.85

          221-5417-212        LIFE INSURANCE                  2,155.61      29,400      25,084.04

                                TOTAL:                      124,104.51

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221                     NON-DEPARTMENTAL                                    488.77

                    221-411                 STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE                           23,234.83

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                10,881.05

                    221-413                 MEDICAL CLAIMS                                   47,386.07

                    221-414                 RX CLAIMS                                        39,958.18

                    221-417                 LIFE INSURANCE                                    2,155.61

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                           124,104.51

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                     124,104.51

    NO ERRORS



 5/30/2014  9:47 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: DDBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 412  HEALTH PLAN ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL-ASC       I-201405306905       221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: DELTA DENTAL-ASC     000000       1,254.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000276  TOTALS          1,254.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:       1,254.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL-ASC       I-201405226766       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL-ASC     000000         761.60

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL-ASC       I-201405306905       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL-ASC     000000         685.47

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000276  TOTALS          1,447.07

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 415   DENTAL CLAIMS            TOTAL:       1,447.07

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:       2,701.07

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       2,701.07



 5/30/2014  9:47 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2014-2015 221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION      1,254.00     132,029     118,578.33

          221-5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS                   1,447.07     120,492     114,709.94

                                TOTAL:                        2,701.07

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                 1,254.00

                    221-415                 DENTAL CLAIMS                                     1,447.07

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                             2,701.07

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       2,701.07

    NO ERRORS



 5/30/2014  9:52 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: MFTBK

FUND      : 121  MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 321  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      5/21/2014 THRU  6/03/2014

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-10373MB            121 5321-353        COLD MIX ASPH: COLD MIX             120675         184.28

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-022400  TOTALS            184.28

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:         184.28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286834       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: S RT 45 & PARADISE   120674          52.86

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286835       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: S RT 45 & PARADISE   120674          15.13

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286836       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: S RT 45 & PARADISE   120674          15.13

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286837       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: LAKELAND INN ENTRANC 120674           9.00

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286838       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: OLD STATE VILLAGE    120674          10.59

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286839       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: OLD STATE & S 9TH    120674           9.00

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286840       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: SUNRISE APTS         120674          10.59

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286841       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: S RT 45 & OLD STATE  120674          76.34

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286842       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: RT 16 & LERNA RD     120674          96.16

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286843       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: GOLDEN OAK           120674          15.39

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286844       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: COLES CENTRE PKWY    120674         277.69

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286845       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: PIATT & RT 316       120674          13.50

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201405286846       121 5326-322        ELECTRIC (COL: 3020 LAKELAND BLVD   120674           9.09

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008600  TOTALS            610.47

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 326   STREET LIGHTING          TOTAL:         610.47

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002963 MUNICIPAL SUPPLY & SIG I-118480             121 5327-356        STREET SIGNS : MUNICIPAL SUPPLY & S 120676         418.00

          PROJ: 239-000           2013 FED AID RESURFC           EXPENSES

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002963  TOTALS            418.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 327   TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES  TOTAL:         418.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 121   MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND      TOTAL:       1,212.75

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       1,212.75



 5/30/2014  9:52 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2014-2015 121-5321-353        COLD MIX ASPHALT                  184.28     108,000     107,337.68

          121-5326-322        ELECTRIC (COLES MOULTRIE)         610.47       6,000       4,794.54

          121-5327-356        STREET SIGNS                      418.00       8,000       7,471.03

                                TOTAL:                        1,212.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    121-321                 STREETS                                             184.28

                    121-326                 STREET LIGHTING                                     610.47

                    121-327                 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES                             418.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    121  TOTAL              MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND                               1,212.75

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       1,212.75

                                                           *** PROJECT TOTALS ***

               PROJECT                              LINE ITEM                                           AMOUNT

 

               239 2013 FED AID RESURFC             000      EXPENSES                                   418.00

                                                                     ** PROJECT 239 TOTAL **            418.00

 

    NO ERRORS



 5-23-2014  8:42 AM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet: 30256 - Refunds From Zone 03                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  5/23/2014

 

                                                                                        ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- -CK #- ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

13-15700-03     KEIGLEY, JENNIFER L         5/23/14 FINAL BILL    120524         6.63CR  100 36519          60.00CR

14-12400-14     SANDERS, NATASHA L          5/23/14 FINAL BILL    120525        13.08CR  100 34948          60.00CR

14-13980-13     ELLIOTT, ALEXANDRIA F       5/23/14 FINAL BILL    120526        39.73CR  100 38843          60.00CR

21-09600-09     LABARBERA, AMY C            5/23/14 FINAL BILL    120527        26.72CR  100 38672          60.00CR

22-07100-05     SWEET, SCOTT                5/23/14 FINAL BILL    120528        51.60CR  100 39892          60.00CR

23-00210-11     GRIDER, AMY J               5/23/14 FINAL BILL    120529        53.71CR  100 39872          60.00CR

23-12700-13     LUCAS, TRISHA Y             5/23/14 FINAL BILL    120530        24.72CR  100 38134          60.00CR

26-19550-09     COWGER, MELISSA D           5/23/14 FINAL BILL    120531        38.76CR  100 36918          60.00CR

35-13900-02     KIMA PROPERTIES             5/23/14 DEMAND RETURN 120532       140.39CR  000                 0.00



 5-30-2014  8:24 AM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet: 30307 - Refunds From Zone 04                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  5/30/2014

 

                                                                                        ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- -CK #- ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

26-09700-02     BRAASCH, ROGER D            5/30/14 DEMAND RETURN 120567       710.14CR  000                 0.00

29-20400-08     PETERS, JASON P             5/30/14 FINAL BILL    120568        37.73CR  100 38618          60.00CR

33-23700-01     TEMPLE, TIMOTHY             5/30/14 FINAL BILL    120569        56.04CR  100 28122          60.00CR

34-16110-06     SWEET, DAVID & CHERYL S     5/30/14 FINAL BILL    120570        53.08CR  100 39870          60.00CR



 

NEW BUSINESS: 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-2916 

 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE PREVAILING RATE OF WAGES IN THE 
COLES COUNTY AREA AS DETERMINED BY THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF 

LABOR AS THE WAGES THAT MUST APPLY TO PUBLIC WORKS 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE CITY OF MATTOON CONSISTENT WITH MANDATES 

OF ILLINOIS STATUTE 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of Illinois has enacted “An ACT regulating wages of laborers, 
mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by the State, County, City or any 
public body or any political subdivision or by anyone under contract for public works,” approved 
June 26, 1941, as amended, being Chapter 820 ILCS 130/1-12 Illinois Compiled Statutes, 
commonly referred to as The Prevailing Wage Act; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the aforesaid Act requires that the City Council of the City of Mattoon, 
Illinois investigate and ascertain the prevailing rate of wages as defined in said Act for laborers, 
mechanics and other workers in the locality of said City of Mattoon, Illinois employed in 
performing construction of public works, for said City of Mattoon, Illinois. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, COUNTY OF COLES, AND STATE OF ILLINOIS: 
 
 SECTION 1: To the extent and as required by “An Act regulating wages of laborers, 
mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by State, County, City or any public 
body or any political subdivision or by anyone under contract for public works,” approved June 
26, 1941, as amended, the general prevailing rate of wages in this locality for laborers, 
mechanics and other workers engaged in construction of public works coming under the 
jurisdiction of the City of Mattoon, Illinois is hereby ascertained to be the same as the prevailing 
rate of wages for construction work in the Coles County area as determined by the Department of 
Labor of the State of Illinois as of June 2014, a copy of that determination being attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A” and  incorporated herein by reference.  The definition of any terms appearing in 
this Resolution which are also used in aforesaid Act shall be the same as in said Act. 
 
 SECTION 2: Nothing herein contained shall be construed to apply said general 
prevailing rate of wages as herein ascertained to any work or employment except public works of 
the City of Mattoon, Illinois to the extent required herein by the aforesaid Act. 
 
 SECTION 3: The City Clerk shall publicly post or keep available for inspection by any 
interested party in the main office of the City of Mattoon, Illinois this determination of such 
prevailing rate of wage. 
 



 SECTION 4: The City Clerk shall mail a copy of this determination to any employer, 
and to any association of employers and to any person or association of employees who have 
filed or file their names and addresses, requesting copies of any determination stating the 
particular rates and the particular class of workers whose wages will be affected by such rates. 
 
 SECTION 5: The City Clerk shall promptly file a certified copy of this Resolution with 
both the Secretary of State Index Division and the Department of Labor of the State of Illinois. 
 
 SECTION 6: The City Clerk shall cause a notice to be published in a newspaper of 
general circulation within the area that the determination of prevailing wages has been made.  
Said notice shall conform substantially to the notice attached hereto.  Such publication shall 
constitute notice that this is the determination of the City of Mattoon, Illinois and is effective. 
 
Upon motion by    , seconded by      
adopted this    day of   , 2014, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):          

       
       

NAYS (Names):         
ABSENT (Names):        
      
Approved this    day of   , 2014.  
 
             
      Tim Gover, Mayor  
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
  
            
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    Janett S. Winter-Black City Attorney    
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on   , 2014.  
 
Published this    day of June, 2014.  



EXHIBIT A 

Coles County Prevailing Wage for June 2014 
(See explanation of column headings at bottom of wages) 

Trade Name           RG TYP C Base   FRMAN M-F>8  OSA OSH H/W   Pensn  Vac  Trng   
==================== == === = ====== ====== ===== === === ===== ===== ===== =====  
ASBESTOS ABT-GEN        BLD   29.990 31.240 1.5   1.5 2.0 6.300 10.34 0.000 0.800  
ASBESTOS ABT-MEC        BLD   21.500 22.500 1.5   1.5 2.0 6.500 5.700 0.000 0.650  
BOILERMAKER             BLD   32.060 34.560 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.070 21.27 1.000 0.350  
BRICK MASON             BLD   31.320 32.820 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 10.68 0.000 0.630  
CARPENTER               BLD   29.600 31.850 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.700 13.65 0.000 0.520  
CARPENTER               HWY   30.100 31.850 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.700 13.65 0.000 0.520  
CEMENT MASON            BLD   30.410 32.160 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 8.500 0.000 0.500  
CEMENT MASON            HWY   31.040 32.540 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 8.560 0.000 0.500  
CERAMIC TILE FNSHER     BLD   28.830  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 8.200 0.000 0.000  
ELECTRIC PWR EQMT OP    ALL 1 36.770  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 5.760 10.29 0.000 0.370  
ELECTRIC PWR EQMT OP    ALL 2 32.820  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 5.760 9.190 0.000 0.330  
ELECTRIC PWR GRNDMAN    ALL   26.280 45.290 1.5   1.5 2.0 5.790 7.360 0.000 0.260  
ELECTRIC PWR LINEMAN    ALL   42.540 45.290 1.5   1.5 2.0 6.280 11.92 0.000 0.430  
ELECTRICIAN             BLD   34.680 38.150 1.5   1.5 2.0 5.600 8.240 0.000 0.520  
ELECTRONIC SYS TECH     BLD   31.130 32.880 1.5   1.5 2.0 5.350 6.110 0.000 0.400  
ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR    BLD   41.070 46.200 2.0   2.0 2.0 12.73 13.46 3.290 0.600  
FENCE ERECTOR           ALL   28.600 31.460 1.5   1.5 2.0 6.450 11.30 0.000 0.300  
GLAZIER                 BLD   31.030 33.030 1.5   2.0 2.0 7.050 8.400 0.000 0.430  
HT/FROST INSULATOR      BLD   29.990 30.990 1.5   1.5 2.0 5.050 10.09 0.000 0.280  
IRON WORKER             ALL   29.290 32.220 1.5   1.5 2.0 6.450 11.60 0.000 0.300  
LABORER                 BLD   27.990 29.240 1.5   1.5 2.0 6.300 10.34 0.000 0.800  
LABORER                 HWY   29.550 30.550 1.5   1.5 2.0 6.300 11.79 0.000 0.800  
LATHER                  BLD   29.600 31.850 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.700 13.65 0.000 0.520  
MACHINIST               BLD   43.920 46.420 1.5   1.5 2.0 6.760 8.950 1.850 0.000  
MARBLE FINISHERS        BLD   28.830  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 8.200 0.000 0.000  
MARBLE MASON            BLD   30.330  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 8.200 0.000 0.000  
MILLWRIGHT              BLD   29.620 31.870 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.700 14.09 0.000 0.520  
MILLWRIGHT              HWY   31.400 33.150 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.700 14.74 0.000 0.520  
OPERATING ENGINEER      ALL 1 37.750  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.600 9.100 0.000 0.850  
OPERATING ENGINEER      ALL 2 24.300  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.600 9.100 0.000 0.850  
PAINTER                 ALL   33.560 35.060 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 4.480 0.000 0.600  
PAINTER SIGNS           ALL   33.560 35.060 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 4.480 0.000 0.600  
PILEDRIVER              BLD   30.100 32.350 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.700 13.65 0.000 0.520  
PILEDRIVER              HWY   31.100 32.850 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.700 13.65 0.000 0.520  
PIPEFITTER              BLD   38.140 40.640 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.000 11.45 0.000 0.990  
PLASTERER               BLD   30.500 32.500 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 10.27 0.000 0.500  
PLUMBER                 BLD   38.140 40.640 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.000 11.45 0.000 0.990  
ROOFER                  BLD   29.150 30.650 1.5   1.5 2.0 9.250 8.400 0.000 0.200  
SHEETMETAL WORKER       BLD   34.560 36.560 1.5   1.5 2.0 8.400 12.50 0.000 0.520  
SPRINKLER FITTER        BLD   37.120 39.870 1.5   1.5 2.0 8.420 8.500 0.000 0.350  
STONE MASON             BLD   31.320 32.820 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 10.68 0.000 0.630  
SURVEY WORKER           ALL   29.550 30.550 1.5   1.5 2.0 6.300 10.34 0.000 0.800  
TERRAZZO FINISHER       BLD   28.830  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 8.200 0.000 0.000  
TERRAZZO MASON          BLD   30.330  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 8.200 0.000 0.000  
TILE LAYER              BLD   29.600 31.850 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.700 13.65 0.000 0.520  



TILE MASON              BLD   30.330  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 8.200 0.000 0.000  
TRUCK DRIVER            ALL 1 31.230  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TRUCK DRIVER            ALL 2 31.680  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TRUCK DRIVER            ALL 3 31.890  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TRUCK DRIVER            ALL 4 32.180  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TRUCK DRIVER            ALL 5 33.020  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TRUCK DRIVER            O&C 1 24.980  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TRUCK DRIVER            O&C 2 25.340  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TRUCK DRIVER            O&C 3 25.510  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TRUCK DRIVER            O&C 4 25.740  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TRUCK DRIVER            O&C 5 26.420  0.000 1.5   1.5 2.0 10.30 4.840 0.000 0.250  
TUCKPOINTER             BLD   31.320 32.820 1.5   1.5 2.0 7.100 10.68 0.000 0.630  
 
Legend:  RG (Region) 
TYP  (Trade Type - All,Highway,Building,Floating,Oil & Chip,Rivers) 
C  (Class) 
Base (Base Wage Rate) 
FRMAN (Foreman Rate) 
M-F>8 (OT required for any hour greater than 8 worked each day, Mon through Fri. 
OSA  (Overtime (OT) is required for every hour worked on Saturday) 
OSH  (Overtime is required for every hour worked on Sunday and Holidays) 
H/W  (Health & Welfare Insurance) 
Pensn (Pension) 
Vac (Vacation) 
Trng (Training) 
 

Explanations 

COLES COUNTY 
 
The following list is considered as those days for which holiday rates 
of wages for work performed apply: New Years Day, Memorial Day, 
Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and 
Veterans Day in some classifications/counties.  Generally, any of 
these holidays which fall on a Sunday is celebrated on the following 
Monday.  This then makes work performed on that Monday payable at the 
appropriate overtime rate for holiday pay. Common practice in a given 
local may alter certain days of celebration.  If in doubt, please 
check with IDOL. 
 
Oil and chip resealing (O&C) means the application of road oils and 
liquid asphalt to coat an existing road surface, followed by 
application of aggregate chips or gravel to coated surface, and 
subsequent rolling of material to seal the surface. 
 
EXPLANATION OF CLASSES 
 
ASBESTOS - GENERAL - removal of asbestos material/mold and hazardous 
materials from any place in a building, including mechanical systems 
where those mechanical systems are to be removed.  This includes the 
removal of asbestos materials/mold and hazardous materials from 
ductwork or pipes in a building when the building is to be demolished 
at the time or at some close future date. 
 
ASBESTOS - MECHANICAL - removal of asbestos material from mechanical 
systems, such as pipes, ducts, and boilers, where the mechanical 
systems are to  remain. 



 
CERAMIC TILE FINISHER, MARBLE FINISHER, TERRAZZO FINISHER 
 
Assisting, helping or supporting the tile, marble and terrazzo 
mechanic by performing their historic and traditional work assignments 
required to complete the proper installation of the work covered by 
said crafts.  The term "Ceramic" is used for naming the classification 
only and is in no way a limitation of the product handled.  Ceramic 
takes into consideration most hard tiles. 
 
ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN 
 
Installation, service and maintenance of low-voltage systems which 
utilizes the transmission and/or transference of voice, sound, vision, 
or digital for commercial, education, security and entertainment 
purposes for the following:  TV monitoring and surveillance, 
background/foreground music, intercom and telephone interconnect, 
field programming, inventory control systems, microwave transmission, 
multi-media, multiplex, radio page, school, intercom and sound burglar 
alarms and low voltage master clock systems. 
 
Excluded from this classification are energy management systems, life 
safety systems, supervisory controls and data acquisition systems not 
intrinsic with the above listed systems, fire alarm systems, nurse 
call systems and raceways exceeding fifteen feet in length. 
 
SURVEY WORKER - Operated survey equipment including data collectors, 
G.P.S. and robotic instruments, as well as conventional levels and 
transits. 
 
TRUCK DRIVER - BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION 
Class 1.  Drivers on 2 axle trucks hauling less than 9 ton.  Air 
compressor and welding machines and brooms, including those pulled by 
separate units, truck driver  helpers, warehouse employees, mechanic 
helpers, greasers and tiremen, pickup trucks when hauling materials, 
tools, or workers to and from and on-the-job  site, and fork lifts up 
to 6,000 lb. capacity. 
 
Class 2.  Two or three axle trucks hauling more than 9 ton but hauling 
less than 16 ton.  A-frame winch trucks, hydrolift trucks, vactor 
trucks or similar  equipment when used for transportation purposes. 
Fork lifts over 6,000 lb. capacity, winch trucks, four axle 
combination units, and ticket writers. 
 
Class 3.  Two, three or four axle trucks hauling 16 ton or more. 
Drivers on water pulls, articulated dump trucks, mechanics and working 
forepersons, and  dispatchers.  Five axle or more combination units. 
 
Class 4.  Low Boy and Oil Distributors. 
 
Class 5.  Drivers who require special protective clothing while 
employed on hazardous waste work. 
 
TRUCK DRIVER - OIL AND CHIP RESEALING ONLY. 
 
This shall encompass laborers, workers and mechanics who drive 
contractor or subcontractor owned, leased, or hired pickup, dump, 



service, or oil distributor trucks.  The work includes transporting 
materials and equipment (including but not limited to, oils, aggregate 
supplies, parts, machinery and tools) to or from the job site; 
distributing oil or liquid asphalt and aggregate; stock piling 
material when in connection with the actual oil and chip contract. 
The Truck Driver (Oil & Chip Resealing) wage classification does not 
include supplier delivered materials. 
 
OPERATING ENGINEERS - BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION 
 
Class 1.  Power Cranes, Draglines, Derricks, Shovels, Gradalls, 
Mechanics, Tractor Highlift, Tournadozer, Concrete Mixers with Skip, 
Tournamixer, Two Drum  Machine, One Drum Hoist with Tower or Boom, 
Cableways, Tower Machines, Motor Patrol, Boom Tractor, Boom or Winch 
Truck, Winch or Hydraulic Boom Truck,  Truck Crane, Tournapull, 
Tractor Operating Scoops, Bulldozer, Push Tractor, Asphalt Planer, 
Finishing Machine on Asphalt, Large Rollers on Earth, Rollers on 
Asphalt Mix, Ross Carrier or similar Machine, Gravel Processing 
Machine, Asphalt Plant Engineer, Paver Operator, Dredging Equipment, 
or Dredge Engineer, or  Dredge Operator, Central Mix Plant Engineer, 
CMI or similar type machine, Concrete Pump, Truck or Skid Mounted, 
Tower Crane, Engineer or Rock Crusher Plant,  Concrete Plant Engineer, 
Ditching Machine with dual attachment, Tractor Mounted Loaders, 
Cherry Picker, Hydro Crane, Standard or Dinkey Locomotives, 
Scoopmobiles, Euclid Loader, Soil Cement Machine, Back Filler, 
Elevating Machine, Power Blade, Drilling Machine, including Well 
Testing, Caissons, Shaft or any  similar type drilling machines, Motor 
Driven Paint Machine, Pipe Cleaning Machine, Pipe Wrapping Machine, 
Pipe Bending Machine, Apsco Paver, Boring Machine,  (Head Equipment 
Greaser), Barber-Greene Loaders, Formless Paver, (Well Point System), 
Concrete Spreader, Hydra Ax, Span Saw, Marine Scoops, Brush Mulcher, 
Brush Burner, Mesh Placer, Tree Mover, Helicopter Crew (3), 
Piledriver-Skid or Crawler, Stump Remover, Root Rake, Tug Boat 
Operator, Refrigerating Machine,  Freezing Operator, Chair Cart- 
Self-Propelled, Hydra Seeder, Straw Blower, Power Sub Grader, Bull 
Float, Finishing Machine, Self-Propelled Pavement Breaker, Lull  (or 
similar type Machine), Two Air Compressors, Compressors hooked in 
Manifold, Overhead Crane, Chip Spreader, Mud Cat, Sull-Air, Fork Lifts 
(except when  used for landscaping work), Soil Stabilizer (Seaman 
Tiller, Bo Mag, Rago Gator, and similar types of equipment), Tube 
Float, Spray Machine, Curing Machine,  Concrete or Asphalt Milling 
Machine, Snooper Truck-Operator, Backhoe, Farm Tractors (with 
attachments), 4 Point Lift System (Power Lift or similar type), 
Skid-Steer (Bob Cat or similar type), Wrecking Shears, Water Blaster. 
 
Class 2.  Concrete Mixers without Skips, Rock Crusher, Ditching 
Machine under 6', Curbing Machine, One Drum Machines without Tower or 
Boom, Air Tugger,  Self-Propelled Concrete Saw, Machine Mounted Post 
Hole Digger, two to four Generators, Water Pumps or Welding Machines, 
within 400 feet, Air Compressor  600 cu. ft. and under, Rollers on 
Aggregate and Seal Coat Surfaces, Fork Lift (when used for landscaping 
work), Concrete and Blacktop Curb Machine, One Water  Pump, Oilers, 
Air Valves or Steam Valves, One Welding Machine, Truck Jack, Mud Jack, 
Gunnite Machine, House Elevators when used for hoisting material, 
Engine  Tenders, Fireman, Wagon Drill, Flex Plane, Conveyor, Siphons 
and Pulsometer, Switchman, Fireman on Paint Pots, Fireman on Asphalt 
Plants, Distributor Operator  on Trucks, Tampers, Self-Propelled Power 



Broom, Striping Machine (motor driven), Form Tamper, Bulk Cement 
Plant, Equipment Greaser, Deck Hands, Truck Crane  Oiler-Driver, 
Cement Blimps, Form Grader, Temporary Heat, Throttle Valve, Super 
Sucker (and similar type of equipment). 
 
Other Classifications of Work: 
 
For definitions of classifications not otherwise set out, the 
Department generally has on file such definitions which are available. 
If a task to be performed is not subject to one of the 
classifications of pay set out, the Department will  upon being 
contacted state which neighboring county has such a classification and 
provide such rate, such rate being deemed to exist by reference in 
this  document.  If no neighboring county rate applies to the task, 
the Department shall undertake a special determination, such special 
determination  being then deemed to have existed under this 
determination.  If a project requires these, or any classification not 
listed, please contact IDOL at 217-782-1710 for  wage rates or 
clarifications. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
Landscaping work falls under the existing classifications for laborer, 
operating engineer and truck driver.  The work performed by landscape 
plantsman and  landscape laborer is covered by the existing 
classification of laborer.  The work performed by landscape operators 
(regardless of equipment used or its size) is  covered by the 
classifications of operating engineer.  The work performed by 
landscape truck drivers (regardless of size of truck driven) is 
covered by the  classifications of truck driver. 
 
 
 

 



                     

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-2917  
 

A CORPORATE RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GRANT FROM THE ILLINOIS 
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S ABANDONED RESIDENTIAL 

PROPERTY MUNICIPAL RELIEF PROGRAM 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon (the “Sponsor”) has been awarded a grant (the “Grant”) from 
the Illinois Housing Development Authority (the “Authority”) program administrator of the 
Abandoned Residential Property Municipal Relief Program (the “Program”), as that Program is 
authorized by Section 7.31 of the Illinois Housing Development Act, 20 ILCS 3805/1 et seq. and 
the rules promulgated under the Act codified at 47 Ill. Adm. Code 381, as may be amended from 
time to time. 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sponsor shall enter into the Agreement with the 
Authority wherein the Authority agrees to make the Grant to the Sponsor, which shall be used by 
the Sponsor to assist with the maintenance and demolition of abandoned properties within the 
Recipient’s area, all in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement. 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor of the Sponsor and the City Clerk of the Sponsor are 
hereby authorized and empowered to execute and deliver in the name of or on behalf of the 
Sponsor the Agreement and any and all amendments, modifications and supplements thereto, and 
to execute and deliver such additional documents, instruments and certificates, as may be 
necessary or desirable for the Sponsor to perform its obligations under the Agreement. 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and the City Clerk be and hereby are authorized and 
directed to take such additional actions, to make further determinations, to pay such costs and to 
execute and deliver such additional instruments (including any amendments, Agreements or 
supplements) as he or she deems necessary or appropriate to carry into effect the foregoing 
resolutions. 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Sponsor hereby ratifies, authorizes and confirms and 
approves all documents and instruments executed in connection with the Grant and the 
Agreement, including those acts taken prior to the date hereof.  

 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of ___________________, 2014, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
       
Approved this         day of   , 2014. 
 
 
 
             
       Timothy D. Gover, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  



                     

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
             
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk     Janett Winter-Black, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on   , 2014.  
 



                     

 
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:  06/03/14    CDR NO: 2014-1516                 
 
SUBJECT:    Tourism Grants 
   
SUBMITTAL DATE:  05//28/2014 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Angelia Burgett, Mattoon Tourism Coordinator 
 
APPROVED FOR     Kyle Gill    05/29/14   
COUNCIL AGENDA:   City Administrator   Date            
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Grant Applications 
            
EXPENDITURE 
ESTIMATE: 

AMOUNT 
BUDGETED: 

FUNDS 
REMAINING: 

CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING: 

$6,200.00 $80,000 $50,525.00 $0 
 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 
“I move to approve $6,200.00 to the Mattoon American Legion Post #88 for the purposes of 
hosting the 2014 Firecracker Classic June 23-29, 2014.” 

 
 

SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
This application was considered and approved by the Tourism Advisory Committee at a meeting 
held May 14, 2014.”  









 1

Agreement 
 

 This Agreement made this ___________ day of _________________________, _____________ 

by and between the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois (hereinafter, “City”) and 

Mattoon American Legion Post 88 , of Mattoon, Illinois,(hereinafter “Grantee). 

 

Witnesseth: 

 WHEREAS. City has agreed to provide a grant of money in the amount of  six 

thousand and two hundred dollars ($6,200.00), for the purposes set forth in the Tourism 

Grant Application(appended hereto, marked as Exhibit A, and fully incorporated herein 

by reference); and , 

 WHEREAS, Grantee, as a condition of the grant, has agreed to fully disclose its 

financial standing to prove that the grant was used as represented on Exhibit A. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO AS 

FOLLOWS: 

1. As a condition of the grant (Exhibit A), Grantee shall make available to City, 

or any of its designated representatives, any or all of its financial records, 

including but not limited to:  checking accounts, savings accounts, bank 

accounts, financial institution accounts, books of account, general ledgers, 

and all other financial records and business records, such records request 

shall be satisfied within seven (7) business days of written request to 

Grantee.   

2. City agrees to fund the grant (Exhibit A) consistent with the terms of Exhibit A. 



 2

3. City may conduct an audit of Grantee’s financial records at any time within 

fourteen (14) months of the date of Exhibit A.  City may also conduct an audit 

within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice as set forth in the next 

paragraph, hereof. 

4. Grantee shall provide a written notice to the City Clerk of the City of 

Mattoon within sixty (60) days of the conclusion of the grant program 

(Exhibit C).  Grantee will comply with all other requirements set forth in 

“General Information Sheet” appended hereto and marked as Exhibit B which 

are not expressly contradicted by this agreement. 

5. The audit referred to in this agreement shall include the unrestricted access to 

all financial records of Grantee as provided in this Agreement. 

6. Grantee shall, upon written request by City, give written direction to all 

financial institutions, with which it has any account, to disclose any 

information with respect to such account(s)  and, by this Agreement, waives 

any privilege or right of confidentiality which it may have to any financial 

records possessed by it or possessed by any financial institution.   

7. Financial institution, as used in this Agreement, includes any bank, savings 

and loan, securities house, or any other institution having the purpose of 

holding or investing funds for clients or customers of such financial 

institution. 

8. In the event of noncompliance with this Agreement, Grantee shall refund all 

monies paid to it pursuant to Exhibit A within thirty (30) days upon written 

demand to it by City because of such noncompliance.  City will not demand 



 3

refund until reasonable efforts have been made to obtain compliance with this 

Agreement. 

9. Grantee agrees that all funds paid to it pursuant to Exhibit A shall be used 

solely and only for the purposes represented on Exhibit A. 

 

 

_______________________________________________ 

                    Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________________ 

                      City Clerk 

 

 

      _______________________________________________ 

                Grantee 



                     

 
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:  06/03/14    CDR NO: 2014-1517          
 
SUBJECT:    Tourism Grants 
   
SUBMITTAL DATE:  05//28/2014 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Angelia Burgett, Mattoon Tourism Coordinator 
 
APPROVED FOR     Kyle Gill    05/29/14   
COUNCIL AGENDA:   City Administrator   Date            
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Grant Applications 
            
EXPENDITURE 
ESTIMATE: 

AMOUNT 
BUDGETED: 

FUNDS 
REMAINING: 

CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING: 

$4,000.00 $80,000 $46,525.00 $0 
 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 
“I move to approve $4,000.00 to the Mattoon Babe Ruth Baseball Organization for the purposes 
of the Babe Ruth 12 and 15 year old State Tourneys to be held July 10-13, 2014.” 

 
 

SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
This application was considered and approved by the Tourism Advisory Committee at a meeting 
held May 14th, 2014.”  

 









 1

Agreement 
 

 This Agreement made this ___________ day of _________________________, _____________ 

by and between the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois (hereinafter, “City”) and 

Mattoon Babe Ruth Baseball , of Mattoon, Illinois, (hereinafter “Grantee). 

 

Witnesseth: 

 WHEREAS. City has agreed to provide a grant of money in the amount of  four 

thousand dollars ($4,000.00), for the purposes set forth in the Tourism Grant 

Application(appended hereto, marked as Exhibit A, and fully incorporated herein by 

reference); and , 

 WHEREAS, Grantee, as a condition of the grant, has agreed to fully disclose its 

financial standing to prove that the grant was used as represented on Exhibit A. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO AS 

FOLLOWS: 

1. As a condition of the grant (Exhibit A), Grantee shall make available to City, 

or any of its designated representatives, any or all of its financial records, 

including but not limited to:  checking accounts, savings accounts, bank 

accounts, financial institution accounts, books of account, general ledgers, 

and all other financial records and business records, such records request 

shall be satisfied within seven (7) business days of written request to 

Grantee.   

2. City agrees to fund the grant (Exhibit A) consistent with the terms of Exhibit A. 



 2

3. City may conduct an audit of Grantee’s financial records at any time within 

fourteen (14) months of the date of Exhibit A.  City may also conduct an audit 

within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice as set forth in the next 

paragraph, hereof. 

4. Grantee shall provide a written notice to the City Clerk of the City of 

Mattoon within sixty (60) days of the conclusion of the grant program 

(Exhibit C).  Grantee will comply with all other requirements set forth in 

“General Information Sheet” appended hereto and marked as Exhibit B which 

are not expressly contradicted by this agreement. 

5. The audit referred to in this agreement shall include the unrestricted access to 

all financial records of Grantee as provided in this Agreement. 

6. Grantee shall, upon written request by City, give written direction to all 

financial institutions, with which it has any account, to disclose any 

information with respect to such account(s)  and, by this Agreement, waives 

any privilege or right of confidentiality which it may have to any financial 

records possessed by it or possessed by any financial institution.   

7. Financial institution, as used in this Agreement, includes any bank, savings 

and loan, securities house, or any other institution having the purpose of 

holding or investing funds for clients or customers of such financial 

institution. 

8. In the event of noncompliance with this Agreement, Grantee shall refund all 

monies paid to it pursuant to Exhibit A within thirty (30) days upon written 

demand to it by City because of such noncompliance.  City will not demand 



 3

refund until reasonable efforts have been made to obtain compliance with this 

Agreement. 

9. Grantee agrees that all funds paid to it pursuant to Exhibit A shall be used 

solely and only for the purposes represented on Exhibit A. 

 

 

_______________________________________________ 

                    Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________________ 

                      City Clerk 

 

 

      _______________________________________________ 

                Grantee 



                     

 
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:  06/03/14    CDR NO: 2014-1518 
 
SUBJECT:    Tourism Grants 
   
SUBMITTAL DATE:  05//28/2014 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Angelia Burgett, Mattoon Tourism Coordinator 
 
APPROVED FOR     Kyle Gill    05/29/14   
COUNCIL AGENDA:   City Administrator   Date            
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Grant Applications 
            
EXPENDITURE 
ESTIMATE: 

AMOUNT 
BUDGETED: 

FUNDS 
REMAINING: 

CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING: 

$3,000.00 $3,0000 $0 $0 
 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 
“I move to approve $3,000.00 grant by the Tourism Advisory Committee from Bagelfest funds 
to the Mattoon YMCA for the purposes of the Run for the Bagel to be held July 19, 2014.” 

 
 

SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
This application was considered and approved by the Tourism Advisory Committee at a meeting 
held May 14, 2014. 
 









 1

Agreement 
 

 This Agreement made this ___________ day of _________________________, _____________ 

by and between the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois (hereinafter, “City”) and 

Mattoon YMCA , of Mattoon, Illinois,(hereinafter “Grantee). 

 

Witnesseth: 

 WHEREAS. City has agreed to provide a grant of money in the amount of  three 

thousand dollars ($3,000.00), for the purposes set forth in the Tourism Grant 

Application(appended hereto, marked as Exhibit A, and fully incorporated herein by 

reference); and , 

 WHEREAS, Grantee, as a condition of the grant, has agreed to fully disclose its 

financial standing to prove that the grant was used as represented on Exhibit A. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO AS 

FOLLOWS: 

1. As a condition of the grant (Exhibit A), Grantee shall make available to City, 

or any of its designated representatives, any or all of its financial records, 

including but not limited to:  checking accounts, savings accounts, bank 

accounts, financial institution accounts, books of account, general ledgers, 

and all other financial records and business records, such records request 

shall be satisfied within seven (7) business days of written request to 

Grantee.   

2. City agrees to fund the grant (Exhibit A) consistent with the terms of Exhibit A. 



 2

3. City may conduct an audit of Grantee’s financial records at any time within 

fourteen (14) months of the date of Exhibit A.  City may also conduct an audit 

within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice as set forth in the next 

paragraph, hereof. 

4. Grantee shall provide a written notice to the City Clerk of the City of 

Mattoon within sixty (60) days of the conclusion of the grant program 

(Exhibit C).  Grantee will comply with all other requirements set forth in 

“General Information Sheet” appended hereto and marked as Exhibit B which 

are not expressly contradicted by this agreement. 

5. The audit referred to in this agreement shall include the unrestricted access to 

all financial records of Grantee as provided in this Agreement. 

6. Grantee shall, upon written request by City, give written direction to all 

financial institutions, with which it has any account, to disclose any 

information with respect to such account(s)  and, by this Agreement, waives 

any privilege or right of confidentiality which it may have to any financial 

records possessed by it or possessed by any financial institution.   

7. Financial institution, as used in this Agreement, includes any bank, savings 

and loan, securities house, or any other institution having the purpose of 

holding or investing funds for clients or customers of such financial 

institution. 

8. In the event of noncompliance with this Agreement, Grantee shall refund all 

monies paid to it pursuant to Exhibit A within thirty (30) days upon written 

demand to it by City because of such noncompliance.  City will not demand 



 3

refund until reasonable efforts have been made to obtain compliance with this 

Agreement. 

9. Grantee agrees that all funds paid to it pursuant to Exhibit A shall be used 

solely and only for the purposes represented on Exhibit A. 

 

 

_______________________________________________ 

                    Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________________ 

                      City Clerk 

 

 

      _______________________________________________ 

                Grantee 



                     

 
   ---------------------------------------------------------- 
     Nothing follows 




